

Introduction

Thank you for purchasing the WR3330-801 FULL-2WAY Web Server Unit (Panel Use). This document is the user's manual and installation manual for the Web Server Unit. The Web Server Unit enables network connectivity to the FULL-2WAY Remote Lighting Control System functionalities.

Intended Audience

This document is intended for the following users.

- Users who install and configure the product or a system containing the product (personnel in charge of indoor wiring and network administration)
- Users who operate and maintain or configure the product or a system containing the product (personnel in charge of server administration and lighting control system management)
- Users who control lighting circuits using the product or a system containing the product (general users)

Copyright

© 2006 Matsushita Electric Works, Ltd. All rights reserved.

This document cannot be copied or duplicated, either in part or whole, without the prior written permission of Matsushita Electric Works, Ltd. except for personal use.

Trademarks and Registered Trademarks

- Ethernet is a registered trademark of Xerox Corporation.
- Microsoft, Microsoft Internet Explorer and Windows are either registered trademarks or trademarks of Microsoft Corporation in the United States and/or other countries.
- Sun Microsystems, Java and J2SE are trademarks or registered trademarks of Sun Microsystems, Inc. in the United States and other countries
- Other company or product names given in this document are the registered trademarks or trademarks of the relevant companies.
- The official name for Microsoft Windows XP is the Microsoft® Windows® XP Operating System.
- Screen shots are used according to the guidelines of Microsoft Corporation.

Further Inquiries

Matsushita Electric Works, Ltd. 1048, Kadoma, Osaka 571-8686, Japan Telephone : +81-6-6908-1860

Disclaimer

The changes or modifications not expressly approved by the party responsible for compliance could void the user's authority to operate the equipment.

Repair, disassembly, upgrade, or modification of the product without written permission from Matsushita Electric Works, Ltd. shall void any rights entitled to the customer regarding the product, and Matsushita Electric Works, Ltd. shall not be liable for any damages resulting from these actions, except when Matsushita Electric Works, Ltd. is responsible for the damages.

Revisions

Information contained in this document is subject to change without notice.

Package Contents

Check that the package contains the main unit and accessories before using the product. If anything is missing, please contact your retailer or Matsushita Electric Works, Ltd.



Unit 1



CD (User's Manual) 1

Before Using This Product

Read and understand this user's manual thoroughly before using the product.

Requirements for Use

(1) Purpose and Usage of the product

The product and related products have been developed mainly for lighting control applications. Therefore, do not use the product for security applications, such as crime prevention, protection from disasters, or other applications involving protection of human lives.

Other general requirements:

- Please ensure easy recovery of any system failure (i.e. data backup, etc.).
- Please ensure safety of system usage by installation of protective devices, protective circuits, or by any other means deemed appropriate.
- * Please ensure that incorporation of this product with any other components or products as a system is done with respect to the above-mentioned safety instructions.

(2) Operating Environment

Products compatible with the FULL-2WAY Remote Lighting Control System

- Network Control Units (NCUs), WR3387-8 Series
- Local Interface Units (LIUs), WR3388-8 Series
- Transmission Units, WRT2050-80, WRT2040-82, WRT2040-81, WRT2040-894 Series Supported Client PC Environment
- OS : Microsoft® Windows® XP Operating System (SP1 or SP1a recommended)
- Browser : Microsoft® Internet Explorer® version 5.5 or later (version 6.0 recommended)
- Java applet : Sun Microsystems® Java™ 2 Platform, Standard Edition 1.4.2 (J2SE)
- * The Web Server Unit (WR3330-801) may not function in response to operations from a Microsoft OS earlier than Microsoft Windows XP, such as Microsoft® Windows® 2000, NT, Me, 98, 95, or CE, and from portable devices.
- * Update the OS and browser before hand to ensure normal functionality.

Safety Precautions

Always observe these precautions to prevent injuries or accidents.



- Tighten unit screws firmly.
 Loose screws may cause overheating, resulting in burning or fire.
 Applicable tightening torque :0.5 N·m to 1.0 N·m {5.1 kgf·cm to 10.2 kgf·cm}
- Do not repair, disassemble, or modify the product.
 Doing so may cause electric shock, fire, or malfunction.
- Do not exceed the rated current and voltage.
 Doing so may cause overheating resulting in fire.



- Do not install the product outdoors or in any location subject to splashes of water. Doing so may result in smoking, ignition, or malfunction.
- Do not touch live units.
 Doing so may cause electric shock.

About FCC



This device complies with Part 15 of the FCC Rules. Operation is subject to the following two conditions: (1) this device may not cause harmful interference, and (2) this device must accept any interference received, including interference that may cause undesired operation.

Table of Contents

Summary	(P. 2)
I. Functions and Characteristics	(P. 3)
II. Operating Principles of Major Functions	(P. 6)
Product Description	(P. 15)
I. Name and Function of Parts	(P. 16)
II. Page Layout	(P. 19)
Installation Section	(P. 23)
I. Device (Unit) Connection and Configuration (Installation)	(P. 24)
II. Network Connection and Settings (Installation)	(P. 29)
System Administration	(P. 38)
I. System Administration Settings	(P. 39)
II. Creation and Management of Maps	(P. 68)
Advanced Control & Settings	(P. 70)
I. Advanced Controls & Settings	(P. 71)
Monitoring & Control	(P.113)
I. Basic Operations for Connection (Login)	(P.114)
II. List Window Operations	(P.116)
III. Map Window Operations	(P.119)
IV. Advanced Control	(P.121)
V. Error Status Displays	(P.132)
Specifications & Important Information	(P.135)
I. Hardware Specifications	(P.136)
II. Software Specifications	(P.140)
III. Warranty	(P.148)
IV. Prohibited Matters for Safety Reasons	(P.149)
V. Precautions and Disclaimers	(P.150)
Miscellaneous Information	(P.153)
I. Appendix	(P.154)
II. Troubleshooting	(P.163)

This section provides an overview of the whole system.

I. Functions and Characteristics	(P.	3)
II. Operating Principles of Major Functions	(P .	6)

I. Functions and Characteristics

The FULL-2WAY Remote Control takes advantage of a Web browser on a PC to provide a control history and schedule control in addition to conventional monitoring and control, offering the best user interface for daily administration. It is designed not only for new installations, but enables upgrading existing systems, thereby enabling full utilization of the previous FULL-2WAY Lighting Control System and network infrastructure.



- Central Control of Large-scale Systems
 Multiple FULL-2WAY lighting systems can be controlled from a single or multiple PC
- Network Connection Remote control is possible from a Web browser through an intranet or the Internet.
- Customized Interface Monitoring and control windows (maps) that match the actual facility can be easily constructed.
- Programmable Controlling
 A timer inside the Web Server Unit enables detailed schedule control.
- Data Management and Editing
 Various data can be downloaded and uploaded in CSV format.

Functions

The functions of the Web Server Unit can be split depending on the different user rights as follows:





II. Operating Principles of Major Functions

The system configuration and data flow are explained here. The system configuration is based on the system shown in the following diagram. The actual control of lighting fixtures requires devices on the lighting control (local) system, namely a FULL-2WAY Remote Control consisting of Network Control Units (NCUs) (WR3387-8), Local Interface Units (LIUs) (WR3388-8), Transmission Units (WRT2050-80, WRT2040-82, -81, -894 Series), and their terminal circuits (T/Us, Switches, etc.). The Web Server Unit functions as the interface between the PC (client) connected through the Ethernet on the network side of the system, and the local lighting control system.



The data flow for major functions is described here.

- (1) Manual Control from a Web Browser
- (2) Operation Controlled by a Schedule (Timer)
 - 1. Program Setup
 - 2. Program Execution
- (3) Monitoring of Circuit Status Changes Controlled by the Wall Switches of the Local System
- (4) Address Settings for Symbols on the Web Browser
- (5) Patterns/Groups (P/G) Settings on the Web Browser
 - 1. P/G Number Selection (Confirmation of Control Content)
 - 2. P/G Setting Control Content (Content Change)
- (6) Zone Settings on the Web Browser
 - 1. Zone Number Selection (Confirmation of Control Content)
 - 2. Zone Setting Control Content (Content Change)
- (7) Transmission of Settings Data Files
 - 1. Patterns/Groups (P/G) Settings Data
 - 2. Other Settings Data
- (8) Transfer of Map Data from the Drawing Software
- (1) Manual Control from a Web Browser



- * The Java applet running on the Web browser displays a window according to the operation.
- * Control requests from multiple Web browsers are stored on the Web Server Unit and executed sequentially.
- * If the present status of the circuit is already requested status, the control request will still be issued.

- (2) Operation Controlled by a Schedule (Timer)
 - 1. Program Setup



- * Program data for schedule control is stored in the Web Server Unit.
- 5 (5) 3 **4** A RC232C RS485 -1-111 10.0 Ŀ. WR3330-801 WR3387-8 WR3388-8 NCU Web Server Unit LIU Π. . . Transmission Unit Switch T/U T/U To lighting fixture (1)Contact output status 1 Timer control time (2)Request to NCU (2)Circuit address status 3 Request to subject LIU 3 Status acquisition by NCU (4) Status acquisition by Web Server Unit 4 Request to transmission unit General-purpose PC Monitor & control/configuration (5) Reloading browser page (5) Request to control T/U
- 2. Program Execution

* Operations are based on the clock inside the Web Server Unit.



(3) Monitoring Circuit Status Changes Controlled by the Wall Switches of the Local System

* Basic monitoring is performed periodically on all circuits. Data for groups, patterns, and zones, however, can be reported to the higher levels in the hierarchy only when the status changes due to local switch operations at registered addresses.

(4) Address Settings for Symbols on the Web Browser



- * Address settings on the Web browser are only for the symbols (buttons for monitoring and control) located on the maps. Therefore, address settings for switches and devices such as the T/U on the local system must be performed separately.
- * The mapping data between symbols on the window and addresses of FULL-2WAY Remote Control circuits is stored in the Web Server Unit.

- (5) Patterns/Groups (P/G) Settings on the Web Browser
 - 1. P/G Number Selection (Confirmation of Control Content)



2. P/G Settings Control Content (Content Change)



* Pattern and group settings are stored in the Transmission Units.

(6) Zone Settings on the Web Browser

In principle, zone controls in this system are performed on the Web window in the Web Server Unit.

1. Zone Number Selection (Confirmation of Control Content)



- * Zone settings can be retrieved from the Web Server Unit and NCU.
- * Data on the Web Server Unit and that on the NCU must be identical.
- 2. Zone Setting Control Content (Content Change)



- * Zone settings are stored in the Web Server Unit, NCU, and LIU.
- * Data displayed on the browser is the data used to synchronize the settings on the Web Server Unit, NCU, and LIU.
- * When replacing the Web Server Unit, existing data in the NCU must be read into the browser page, and set again to use the data in the NCU to write to the Web Server Unit.

- (7) Transmission of Settings Files
 - 1. Patterns/Groups (P/G) Settings



- * When data in the Web Server Unit is downloaded to a PC, settings contained in the Transmission Unit are collected into a file and then transferred.
- * When a valid data file on a PC is successfully uploaded to the Web Server Unit, setting of Transmission Units automatically takes place from the Web Server Unit.



2. Other Settings Data

(8) Transfer of Map Data from the Screen Builder



- * The customized maps displayed on the Web browser are created in a specialized Map Drawing Software. The map data can be sent to the Web Server Unit using FTP from the PC running the Drawing Software via Ethernet.
- * Data formats on the Screen Builder (e.g., HAD) are different from those generated (compiled) for display on the Web browser (e.g., HTML).
- * The data in formats to be displayed on the Web browser only are stored in the Web Server Unit. Because the data cannot be converted back to editable state, it is recommended to keep a backup of the original editable data (e.g., HAD).
- * Refer to the Screen Builder for Web Server Unit (WR3339-801) user's manual for further details.

This section describes the external appearance and other aspects of the product.

I. Name and Function of Parts	(P. 16)
ll. Page Layout	(P. 19)

I. Name and Function of Parts



Front view & Right side view

1. Power Terminals

These terminals connect to the transformer (WR2301-811, WR2311-821 series) and supply power to the product.

2. Ground Terminal

This terminal is connected to a ground of 100Ω or less (class-D grounding based on Internal Wiring Regulations) and to ensure the electrical quality of the product.

3. LAN modular jack

This socket connects to the Ethernet cable plug. This port is used for communications with PCs through the Ethernet.

4. NCU Connector (Male)

This connector connects to the D-sub 9-pin female connector of the RS-232C communications cable. This port is used for serial communications with the WR3387-8 series FULL-2WAY Remote Control Network Controller Unit (NCU) for Switchboards.

5. Setting Unit Connector (Male)

This connector is for maintenance purposes only.

6. Status Indicators (LEDs)

Power (Red)

- ON : Power is being supplied.
- OFF : Power is not being supplied.

Ethernet LINK (Green)

- ON : Ethernet is connected normally.
- OFF : Ethernet is not connected normally.

Ethernet ACT (Orange)

- ON : Data is being transferred via Ethernet.
- OFF : Data is not being transferred via Ethernet.

NCU Unconnection Or Post Error / Date & Time Setting Error Indicator (Red)

- ON : NCU connection is abnormal. (Clock in the Web Server Unit may not be set.)
- Blink : NCU connection is normal, but the date and time are out of order. "Date & Time Setting Error" status indicates that the date and time could not be kept (e.g. after a power supply interruption longer than the clock's battery maximum time range).
- OFF : NCU connection is normal, and the date and time on the Web Server Unit are properly set.

7. DIP Switch

One 8-pin DIP switch is provided.

Pin 1 of this DIP switch is used to set the network settings and is assigned the following functions.

0 (OFF)	: User-settings are used when the power is turned
	ON or the Unit is rebooted.

1 (ON) : The following default values are used when the power is turned ON or the Unit is rebooted.

- IP address : 192.168.0.1
- Subnet mask : 255.255. 0. 0
- Default gateway : None
- Host name

* Always set pins 2 to 8 to 0 (OFF).

8. Reboot Switch

This switch is used, for example, to enable changes made to network settings using the DIP switch. Power is turned ON or the Unit is rebooted.





: None

9. User-defined Network Value Fields

These fields are used to record the user-defined network values for the following parameters, which are enabled for the Web Server Unit when it is restarted with pin 1 of the DIP switch set to user settings (0).

- IP address
- Subnet mask
- Default gateway
- Host name
- 10. Default Network Settings Record

Default network values, which are enabled for the Web Server Unit when it is restarted with pin 1 of the DIP switch set to default settings (1), are printed here. When the default network settings are used, the default gateway and host name are *None*.

- IP address : 192.168.0.1
- Subnet mask : 255.255.0.0

 USER IP ADDRESS . SUBNET MASK . DEFAULT GATEWAY . HOST NAME HOST NAME FIXED IP ADDRESS 192.168. 1 SUBNET MASK 255.255. 0 	NETWORK PARAMETER
 IP ADDRESS SUBNET MASK DEFAULT GATEWAY HOST NAME HOST NAME IP ADDRESS 192.168. 0. 1 SUBNET MASK 255.255. 0. 0 	●USER
 SUBNET MASK SUBNET MASK DEFAULT GATEWAY HOST NAME HOST NAME FIXED IP ADDRESS 192.168. 0. 1 SUBNET MASK 255.255. 0. 0 	IP ADDRESS
 SUBNET MASK DEFAULT GATEWAY HOST NAME ● FIXED IP ADDRESS 192.168. 0. 1 SUBNET MASK 255.255. 0. 0 	
 DEFAULT GATEWAY HOST NAME FIXED 	SUBNET MASK
● FIXED IP ADDRESS 192.168. 0. 1 SUBNET MASK	
 HOST NAME FIXED IP ADDRESS 192.168. 0. 1 SUBNET MASK 255.255. 0. 0 	DEFAULT GATEWAY
HOST NAME • FIXED IP ADDRESS 192.168. 0. 1 SUBNET MASK 255.255.0.0	
 FIXED IP ADDRESS 192.168. 0. 1 SUBNET MASK 255.255. 0. 0 	HOST NAME
 FIXED IP ADDRESS 192.168. 0. 1 SUBNET MASK 255.255. 0. 0 	
IP ADDRESS 192.168. 0. 1 SUBNET MASK	
192.168. 0. 1 SUBNET MASK	
SUBNET MASK	192.168. 0. 1
255 255 0 0	
200.200. 0. 0	255.255. 0. 0

II. Page Layout



(2) Menu Configuration (Menu Frame)

The menu that is displayed depends on the authentication rights of the user who logged in.

1. Menu for Basic Monitoring Rights



2. Menu for Basic Monitoring & Control Rights





Select Map2 🗸

Advanced Control & Settings... Address Settings

Select Map1 🗸

s Setting

g Level Display

Advanced Control... Individual Circuits

Global Addre

List

4. Menu for System Administration Rights



- 1. Basic monitoring rights = monitoring only
- 2. Basic monitoring & control rights = 1 + control
- 3. Advanced control & settings rights = 2 + advanced control & settings for control & monitoring
- 4. System administration rights = 3 + Settings for system administration

(3) Menu Descriptions

Global Addresses

(a) Basic Monitoring & Control Menu Maps selection : Selects maps to monitor and control. Basic Monitoring & Control list : Monitors and Controls the lighting status of items at specified addresses in a table format. (Addresses to display can be selected with either the advanced control & settings or administration rights.) (b) Advanced Control & Settings Menu Maps selection for Address Settings : Selects maps by name to allocate addresses to symbols. Advanced Control : Monitors and controls the lighting status of all circuit addresses in a table format. Individual Circuits : Displays all individual and dimmer addresses with LIU units. Groups : Displays all group addresses with LIU units. Patterns : Displays all pattern addresses with LIU units. Zones : Displays all zones. **Global Addresses** : Displays all global addresses. Group Settings : Configures group settings with Transmission Units. : Configures pattern settings with Transmission Units. Pattern Settings Zone Settings : Configures zone settings with NCU/LIU. *Here, zone is a method of controlling the set status pattern of the specified area. **Global Address Settings** : Configures global settings. *Here, global is a method of comprehensively controlling one global point shared by multiple systems. Schedule Settings : Configures how circuits are automatically controlled on specified dates. Programs : Configures the contents of schedule control programs. : Confirms control scheduling for specified data. Program Monitor : Configures days, such as national holidays, when Special Days Special functions are to be performed. Special Day Calendar : Confirms special day settings and overlapping. Astronomical Clock : Sets sunrise/sunset functions and daylight savings time functions Name Settings : Sets names for control items. : Displays all individual and dimmer addresses with LIU units Individual Circuits : Displays all group addresses with LIU units. Groups Patterns : Displays all pattern addresses with LIU units. Zones : Displays zones.

: Displays global point addresses.

- Dimmer Settings Individual Circuits Groups
- Status Bar Manager
- (c) System Administration Menu
- Network Settings
- Authentication
- Date & Time Settings
- RS-232C Settings
- LIU Settings
- Page Reload Settings
- Project Display Settings
- System Error Monitor
- Log Settings
 - Groups Patterns
 - Zones
- Log Viewer Activity

System Errors

- Download Manager
- Upload Manager
- Run Command
- Data Monitor
- Map Manager
- Factory Settings
- Reboot

- : Configures the display of dimmer levels.
- : Displays all individual circuit addresses with LIU units
- : Displays all group addresses with LIU units.
- : Sets and clears the display to notify users that settings are in progress
- : Configures Ethernet communications settings.
- : Configures login rights, user name, and password.
- : Configures the date and time of the clock in the Web Server Unit.
- : Configures serial communications setting between the Web Server Unit and NCU.
- : Configures LIU addresses for the communications link.
- : Configures reload intervals in the browser.
- : Configures project and map display.
- : Confirms information on current system errors.
- : Sets control points for local circuits for which changes in status are to be logged.
- : Displays all group addresses with LIU units.
- : Displays all pattern addresses with LIU units.
- : Displays all zones addresses.
- : Displays the activity log and system error log.
- : Displays window operation, schedule, and status change log by date.
- : Displays system error log by date.
- : Transfers data files from Web Server Unit to the client PC.
- : Transfers data files from the client PC to the Web Server Unit.
- : Reserved for maintenance.
- : Displays used and unused space reserved for map data.
- : Erases map data by page.
- : Initializes and erases user data.
- : Reboots Web Server Unit.

(4) Main Frame

Once a menu has been selected, all operations including Basic Monitoring & Control, Advanced Control & Settings will be processed within the main frame. Buttons, pull-down menus, panes for key input, and other elements are displayed as necessary.

1. Basic Monitoring & Control screen (Maps)



2. Basic Monitoring & Control Window (List)



(5) Status Bar

Statuses 1 to 8 shown below can be displayed in the status bar.

If more than one status exists at the same time, the lower numbered status has higher priority for display.

 Please wait for a moment... (Red) Indicates the network connection to the Web Server Unit h

Indicates the network connection to the Web Server Unit has been temporarily disconnected (e.g. broken wire, a device that has stopped, etc.).

Please wait for a momen

- Date & Time out of order. (Red) Indicates that the date and time could not be kept (e.g. after a power supply interruption longer than the clock's battery maximum time range).
 - Date & Time out of order.
- 3. System error occurred. (Red)

Indicates errors in the Web Server Unit or local system.

* This error includes situations when the local system is being set using the patterns/groups setting switches.

System error occurred

- Settings inconsistencies. (Red) Indicates normal monitoring and control has been disabled because the LIU Settings or Zone Settings are inconsistent with those of the NCU.
- 5. Initializing (Red)

Indicates that the Web Server Unit is being initialized.

6. Data transfer in progress. Please wait..." (Red) Indicates communications with the NCU, such as group settings, pattern settings, zone settings, and LIU Settings are in progress.

Data transfer in progress. Please wait

7. Performing setup. (Red)

Indicates that setup operations have been started in the Status Bar Manager.

8. Connected (Green)

Indicates that normal operations can be performed.

Connected

This section describes installation procedures for electrical connections and network connections.

I. Device (Unit) Connection and Configuration (Installation)	(P. 24)
II. Network Connection and Settings (Installation)	(P. 29)

I. Device (Unit) Connection and Configuration (Installation)

This section describes installation of the main unit and connections to peripherals.

(1) Connections between Devices



(a) Connections between the Web Server Unit and Network (Ethernet) Devices

- Requires LAN cables (with modular plugs).
- The Ethernet communications port is always used as an MDI-type port and requires a straight cable when connected to normal ports (MDI-X type) of hubs and routers.

* A cross cable can be used for connections to MDI-type ports or ports that can be configured as MDI.

* Use a cross cable when directly connecting to a PC (MDI type).

(b) Connections between the Web Server Unit and the Network Control Unit (NCU).

- Always use the WR3387-8 series Network Control Unit.
- An RS-232C (serial) communications cable is required.
- The connectors at the ends of the cable are a D-sub 9-pin (female) and a D-sub 25-pin (male) and are cross-linked.
- Connect the connector labeled "NCU (RS232C)" on the Web Server Unit to the connector labeled "Host (RS232C)" on the NCU.
- * Do not connect anything to the connectors labeled "Setting Unit (RS-232C)".
- * For details on terminal arrangement, refer to Specifications.

(c) Connections between Local Interface Unit (LIU) and NCU.

- Always use the WR3388-8 Local Interface Unit.
- The local bus (network) between the NCU and LIU requires a shielded cable (CPEV-S).
- Connect the terminals labeled "Network signal output" on the NCU and "Network signal input" on the LIU with matching polarities.
- When connecting multiple LIUs, terminals labeled "Network signal output" must be connected in a bus configuration.
- Connect the NCU to the end terminal of the local bus (local network). (Bus terminating resistance is built in.).

* Do not connect anything to the terminals on the Configurator (RS-232C).

(d) Connections between FULL-2WAY Remote Control System and LIU

- Always use the WRT2050-80, WRT2040-82, -81, -894 series Transmission Unit.
- Communications cables such as CPEV are recommended for connections.
- The output signal for the Transmission Unit must be sent to the FULL-2WAY signal terminal of the LIU. FULL-2WAY devices, such as circuit control devices (T/U) and switches, must be connected to the same communications cable.
- * Wire connections using a star or bus configuration. Do not use a loop. Doing so may cause malfunctions.
- * Do not wire signal lines parallel to power lines. If unavoidable, separate the cables by at least 30 cm, or lay the cables in a metal conduit grounded to 100Ω or less (class D grounding).
- * A distance of 30 cm or less is allowable within the power board. The signal line, however, must be separated from the power line (more than 100 A.) by at least 5 cm.
- * For details on FULL-2WAY Remote Control, refer to the specific catalog and technical manuals.

(e) Power Supply to Each Unit

- Use the WR2301-811, WR2311-821 series Transformer (Panel Use) for the power supply.
- * These items are NOT applicable to U.S.A market. Required UL approval, but NOT approval.
- Input the secondary output of the Compact Remote Control Transformer to the 24-V terminals of the Web Server Unit, NCUs, and LIUs.
- Use multiple transformers if the total rated current of the connected devices exceeds the capacity of a single Compact Remote Control Transformer (1.5 A).

(f) Grounding Units

 Always ground the ground terminals of the Web Server Unit, NCUs, LIUs, and Transmission Units to 100Ω or less.

- (2) Hardware Device Settings
- (a) DIP Switch Settings for Network Control Units (NCUs)
 - * Set the DIP switches on the Unit as follows:

For details on DIP switch pin number assignments, refer to the NCU product specifications

1. Set host-to-host communications (RS-232C).

RS-232C communications settings for the Web Server Unit can be changed from the browser, make sure to much the settings for the baud rate (19,200 bps), word length (7 bits), and parity (even), and set the same parameters on the NCU.

Baud rate 19,200 bps : Pin 1 of switch 1 = ON

	Pin 3 = ON
Word length 7 bits	: Pin 4 of switch $1 = OFF$
Even parity	: Pin 5 of switch 1 = OFF
	Pin 6 of switch $1 = OFF$

* The word length of 7 bits cannot be set if parity is set to none.

2. Set the baud rate on the local network.

Set to 19200 bps.	
Baud rate 19,200 bps	: Pin 7 of switch 1 =

3. Set zone command specifications.

Set to 1#.

Zone command specifications 1#

: Pin 2 of switch 2 = ON

Pin 2 = OFF

ON

4. Set the status change notification for patterns, groups, and zones.

Set the corresponding DIP switch pins to "Yes" (ON) if notifications are <u>necessary</u> .
(All pins are set to "Yes" in the example.)	
Pattern status change notification Yes [No]	: Pin 3 of switch 2 = ON [OFF]
Group status change notification Yes [No]	: Pin 4 of switch 2 = ON [OFF]
Zone status change notification Yes [No]	: Pin 5 of switch 2 = ON [OFF]
* Status change notification DIP switch pins on t	he LIU must be set to the same values.

5. Set unused pins.

Always set unused pins to the values indicated below. Unused : Pin 8 of switch 1 = OFF

Unused : Pin 1 of switch 2 = OFF		
	Unused	: Pin 1 of switch 2 = OFF

6. Press the Reboot Button (switch 3).

When all settings have been completed, always cycle the power or press the **Reboot** Button to enable the changed settings.



(b) DIP switch settings for the Local Interface Unit	s (LIU)	
Set the DIP switches on the Unit as follows:		
* For details on DIP switch pin number assignm	nents, refer to the LIU product specif	ications.
1. Set the local network address (LIU address	5).	
Assign addresses between 1 and 31, set a unio	que address for each interconnected	d LIU.
Addresses 1 to 31	: Pins 1 to 5 of switch 1 = 10000	to 11111
* Do not set address 00000.		- 4
2. Set the baud rate on the local network.		1 - 1
Set to 19,200 bps and Pin 7 of switch 1 = ON		ယ ယ 💶
3. Set the terminating resistance.		4 ▲ _ σ, ຫ _
Set the terminating resistance to "ON" for the L	IU at the end of the network.	ත 🗉 💶
Terminating resistance ON/OFF : Pin 1	of switch 2 = ON [OFF].	78
* If the LIU is not physically terminating the network, always set to "OFF."		
4. Set the status change notification for patterns, groups, and zones.		
Set the corresponding DIP switch to "ON" (1) if	notifications are necessary	
(All status pins are set to "ON" in the example.)		$\mathbf{\omega}$
Pattern status change notification Yes [No]	: Pin 3 of switch 2 = ON [OFF]	ທ 🚺 🌆
Group status change notification Yes [No]	: Pin 4 of switch 2 = ON [OFF]	OFF
Zone status change notification Yes [No]	: Pin 5 of switch 2 = ON [OFF]	
* Status change notification DIP switches on the	e NCU must be set to the same valu	Jes.
5. Set unused pins.		
Always set unused pins to the values indicated	on the nameplate.	

Unused	: Pin 6 of switch 1 = OFF
Unused	: Pin 8 of switch 1 = ON
Unused	: Pin 2 of switch 2 = OFF

6. Press the Reboot Button (switch 3).

When all settings have been completed, always cycle the power or press the Reboot Button to enable the changed settings.

- (c) Settings for FULL-2WAY Remote Control System Terminals Address settings for T/Us and terminal switches installed in switchboards or on walls must be completed using the DIP switches on the terminals or through the light address configurator. Addresses for these terminals cannot be set from the Web Server Unit.
 - * It is possible to set the patterns and groups control content of Transmission Units using Pattern and Group Configurators if required. For details, refer to FULL-2WAY Remote Control catalogs and technical manuals.
 - 27 -



 (d) DiP Switch Settings for the Web Server Unit Set the DIP switches on the front of the Unit as follows 1. Select the network settings. Select the pre-registered network settings (IP address, subnet mask, default gateway, and I The Web Server Unit has two types of network settings: fixed (default) settings and user-de settings. Select either type. Network setting switch default [user] : Pin 1 = 1 [0] (i) Default Settings The network is connected to using the fixed conditions indicated on the label. Set the following settings if connecting for the first time, or if user values are unknown. IP address : 192. 168. 0. 1 Subnet mask : 255. 255. 0. 0 Default gateway : None Host name : None (ii) User Settings Set the following settings when user-defined network parameters registered under Network Settings are to be used. IP address : Parameters set in "Network Settings" Subnet mask : Parameters set in "Network Settings" Host name : Parameters set in "Network Settings" For details on Network Settings, refer to Administration and Setting Section I. Settings fo Administration. 	
 Set the Dir switches of the following settings. Select the network settings. Select the pre-registered network settings (IP address, subnet mask, default gateway, and I The Web Server Unit has two types of network settings: fixed (default) settings and user-de settings. Select either type. Network setting switch default [user] : Pin 1 = 1 [0] (i) Default Settings The network is connected to using the fixed conditions indicated on the label. Set the following settings if connecting for the first time, or if user values are unknown. IP address : 192. 168. 0. 1 Subnet mask : 255. 255. 0. 0 Default gateway : None Host name : None (ii) User Settings are to be used. IP address : Parameters set in "Network Settings" Subnet mask : Parameters set in "Network Settings" Default gateway : Parameters set in "Network Settings" For details on Network Settings, refer to Administration and Setting Section I. Settings for Administration. 	
 Select the network settings. Select the pre-registered network settings (IP address, subnet mask, default gateway, and I The Web Server Unit has two types of network settings: fixed (default) settings and user-de settings. Select either type. Network setting switch default [user] : Pin 1 = 1 [0] (i) Default Settings The network is connected to using the fixed conditions indicated on the label. Set the following settings if connecting for the first time, or if user values are unknown. IP address : 192. 168. 0. 1 Subnet mask : 255. 255. 0. 0 Default gateway : None Host name : None (ii) User Settings are to be used. IP address : Parameters set in "Network Settings" Subnet mask : Parameters set in "Network Settings" Host name : Parameters set in "Network Settings" * For details on Network Settings, refer to Administration and Setting Section I. Settings fo 	
Select the pre-registered network settings (IP address, subnet mask, default gateway, and f The Web Server Unit has two types of network settings: fixed (default) settings and user-de settings. Select either type. Network setting switch default [user] : Pin 1 = 1 [0] (i) Default Settings The network is connected to using the fixed conditions indicated on the label. Set the following settings if connecting for the first time, or if user values are unknown. IP address : 192. 168. 0. 1 Subnet mask : 255. 255. 0. 0 Default gateway : None Host name : None (ii) User Settings Set the following settings when user-defined network parameters registered under Network Settings are to be used. IP address : Parameters set in "Network Settings" Subnet mask : Parameters set in "Network Settings" Default gateway : Parameters set in "Network Settings" Host name : Parameters set in "Network Settings" * For details on Network Settings, refer to Administration and Setting Section I. Settings fo Administration.	
The Web Server Unit has two types of network settings: fixed (default) settings and user-de settings. Select either type. Network setting switch default [user] : Pin 1 = 1 [0] (i) Default Settings The network is connected to using the fixed conditions indicated on the label. Set the following settings if connecting for the first time, or if user values are unknown. IP address : 192. 168. 0. 1 Subnet mask : 255. 255. 0. 0 Default gateway : None Host name : None (ii) User Settings Set the following settings when user-defined network parameters registered under Network Settings are to be used. IP address : Parameters set in "Network Settings" Subnet mask : Parameters set in "Network Settings" Default gateway : Parameters set in "Network Settings" Host name : Parameters set in "Network Settings" * For details on Network Settings, refer to Administration and Setting Section I. Settings for Administration.	d host name)
settings. Select either type. Network setting switch default [user] : Pin 1 = 1 [0] (i) Default Settings The network is connected to using the fixed conditions indicated on the label. Set the following settings if connecting for the first time, or if user values are unknown. IP address : 192. 168. 0. 1 Subnet mask : 255. 255. 0. 0 Default gateway : None Host name : None (ii) User Settings Set the following settings when user-defined network parameters registered under Network Settings are to be used. IP address : Parameters set in "Network Settings" Subnet mask : Parameters set in "Network Settings" Default gateway : Parameters set in "Network Settings" Host name : Parameters set in "Network Settings" * For details on Network Settings, refer to Administration and Setting Section I. Settings for Administration.	defined (user)
Network setting switch default [user] : Pin 1 = 1 [0] (i) Default Settings The network is connected to using the fixed conditions indicated on the label. Set the following settings if connecting for the first time, or if user values are unknown. IP address : 192. 168. 0. 1 Subnet mask : 255. 255. 0. 0 Default gateway : None Host name : None (ii) User Settings Set the following settings when user-defined network parameters registered under Network Settings are to be used. IP address : Parameters set in "Network Settings" Subnet mask : Parameters set in "Network Settings" Set the following settings when user-defined network parameters registered under Network Settings are to be used. IP address : Parameters set in "Network Settings" Subnet mask : Parameters set in "Network Settings" Default gateway : Parameters set in "Network Settings" Pefault gateway : Parameters set in "Network Settings" Host name : Parameters set in "Network Settings" * For details on Network Settings, refer to Administration and Setting Section I. Settings fo Administration.	
 (i) Default Settings The network is connected to using the fixed conditions indicated on the label. Set the following settings if connecting for the first time, or if user values are unknown. IP address : 192. 168. 0. 1 Subnet mask : 255. 255. 0. 0 Default gateway : None Host name : None (ii) User Settings are to be used. IP address : Parameters set in "Network Settings" Subnet mask : Parameters set in "Network Settings" Default gateway : Parameters set in "Network Settings" * For details on Network Settings, refer to Administration and Setting Section I. Settings for Administration. 	PUSH
The network is connected to using the fixed conditions indicated on the label. Set the following settings if connecting for the first time, or if user values are unknown. IP address : 192. 168. 0. 1 Subnet mask : 255. 255. 0. 0 Default gateway : None Host name : None (ii) User Settings Set the following settings when user-defined network parameters registered under Network Settings are to be used. IP address : Parameters set in "Network Settings" Subnet mask : Parameters set in "Network Settings" Default gateway : Parameters set in "Network Settings" Subnet mask : Parameters set in "Network Settings" For details on Network Settings, refer to Administration and Setting Section I. Settings fo Administration.	I REBO
Set the following settings if connecting for the first time, or if user values are unknown. IP address : 192. 168. 0. 1 Subnet mask : 255. 255. 0. 0 Default gateway : None Host name : None (ii) User Settings Set the following settings when user-defined network parameters registered under Network Settings are to be used. IP address : Parameters set in "Network Settings" Subnet mask : Parameters set in "Network Settings" Default gateway : Parameters set in "Network Settings" Subnet mask : Parameters set in "Network Settings" Subnet mask : Parameters set in "Network Settings" Subnet mask : Parameters set in "Network Settings" Default gateway : Parameters set in "Network Settings" Host name : Parameters set in "Network Settings" * For details on Network Settings, refer to Administration and Setting Section I. Settings for Administration.	NET W PARAN
unknown. IP address : 192. 168. 0. 1 IP address : 255. 255. 0. 0 Default gateway : None Host name : None (ii) User Settings : None Set the following settings when user-defined network parameters registered under Network Settings are to be used. IP address : Parameters set in "Network Settings" Subnet mask : Parameters set in "Network Settings" Default gateway : Parameters set in "Network Settings" Host name : Parameters set in "Network Settings" Host name : Parameters set in "Network Settings" Host name : Parameters set in "Network Settings" Kost name : Parameters set in "Network Settings" * For details on Network Settings, refer to Administration and Setting Section I. Settings for Administration.	ORK
IP address : 192. 168. 0. 1 Subnet mask : 255. 255. 0. 0 Default gateway : None Host name : None (ii) User Settings Set the following settings when user-defined network parameters registered under Network Settings are to be used. IP address : Parameters set in "Network Settings" Subnet mask : Parameters set in "Network Settings" Default gateway : Parameters set in "Network Settings" Host name : Parameters set in "Network Settings" Host name : Parameters set in "Network Settings" Kost name : Parameters set in "Network Settings" * For details on Network Settings, refer to Administration and Setting Section I. Settings fo Administration.	
Subnet mask : 255. 255. 0. 0 Default gateway : None Host name : None (ii) User Settings Set the following settings when user-defined network parameters registered under Network Settings are to be used. IP address : Parameters set in "Network Settings" Subnet mask : Parameters set in "Network Settings" Default gateway : Parameters set in "Network Settings" Host name : Parameters set in "Network Settings" * For details on Network Settings, refer to Administration and Setting Section I. Settings for Administration.	El
Default gateway : None Host name : None (ii) User Settings : None Set the following settings when user-defined network parameters registered under Network Settings are to be used. IP address : Parameters set in "Network Settings" Subnet mask : Parameters set in "Network Settings" Default gateway : Parameters set in "Network Settings" Host name : Parameters set in "Network Settings" * For details on Network Settings, refer to Administration and Setting Section I. Settings fo Administration.	
Host name : None (ii) User Settings Set the following settings when user-defined network parameters registered under Network Settings are to be used. IP address : Parameters set in "Network Settings" Subnet mask : Parameters set in "Network Settings" Default gateway : Parameters set in "Network Settings" Host name : Parameters set in "Network Settings" * For details on Network Settings, refer to Administration and Setting Section I. Settings for Administration.	
 (ii) User Settings Set the following settings when user-defined network parameters registered under Network Settings are to be used. IP address Subnet mask Parameters set in "Network Settings" Default gateway Parameters set in "Network Settings" Host name Parameters set in "Network Settings" * For details on Network Settings, refer to Administration and Setting Section I. Settings for Administration. 	
 Set the following settings when user-defined network parameters registered under Network Settings are to be used. IP address : Parameters set in "Network Settings" Subnet mask : Parameters set in "Network Settings" Default gateway : Parameters set in "Network Settings" Host name : Parameters set in "Network Settings" * For details on Network Settings, refer to Administration and Setting Section I. Settings for Administration. 	
 Network Settings are to be used. IP address : Parameters set in "Network Settings" Subnet mask : Parameters set in "Network Settings" Default gateway : Parameters set in "Network Settings" Host name : Parameters set in "Network Settings" * For details on Network Settings, refer to Administration and Setting Section I. Settings for Administration. 	
 IP address Subnet mask Parameters set in "Network Settings" Default gateway Parameters set in "Network Settings" Host name Parameters set in "Network Settings" * For details on Network Settings, refer to Administration and Setting Section I. Settings for Administration. 	
Subnet mask : Parameters set in "Network Settings" Default gateway : Parameters set in "Network Settings" Host name : Parameters set in "Network Settings" * For details on Network Settings, refer to Administration and Setting Section I. Settings for Administration.	
Default gateway : Parameters set in "Network Settings" Host name : Parameters set in "Network Settings" * For details on Network Settings, refer to Administration and Setting Section I. Settings fo Administration.	REBO
Host name : Parameters set in "Network Settings" * For details on Network Settings, refer to Administration and Setting Section I. Settings fo Administration.	OT
* For details on Network Settings, refer to Administration and Setting Section I. Settings fo Administration.	
Administration.	for System
* The DIP switch is set to the default settings at the factory.	
2. Set unused switches.	
Always set to 0. Unused : 2 to 8 = All 0	

3. Press the Reboot Button.

When all settings have been completed, always cycle the power or press the **Reboot** Button to enable the changed settings.

(e) Set the connections between the Web Server Unit and Ethernet devices.

Refer to II. Network Connection and Settings (Implementation).

II. Network Connection and Settings (Installation)

Communications settings for connection to network devices are explained here.

(1) Check the operating environment of the PC.

Users must prepare the following client PC environment.

The information provided in this manual assumes that this environment is being used.

1. Hardware Requirements

The following must be used.

 LAN port : Modular socket to connect to Ethernet (requires a LAN card or board to be installed in advance)
 Input device : Mouse and keyboard

The following are recommended.

- Memory : 128 MB min.
- Graphic adapter : 1024 × 768 dots (XGA) 256 colors or better

2. Software Requirements

The following are all required.

• OS	: Microsoft® Windows® XP Operating System
	(SP1 or SP1a recommended)
Web Browser	: Microsoft® Internet Explorer® Version 5.5 or later
	(Version 6.0 recommended)
 Java applets 	: Sun Microsystems® Java™ 2 Platform, Standard Edition,
	Version 1.4.2 (J2SE).
	Java installer is included in the accompanying CD.
- (2) Set the network address for the Web Server Unit.
 - (a) If network parameters (user-defined) have not been set for the Web Server Unit:
 - 1. Set the Network Configuration using pin 1 of the DIP switch on the front of the Unit to default and turn ON the Reboot switch.
 - 2. The Web Server Unit will start up with the following parameters.
 - IP address = 192.168.0.1
 - Subnet mask = 255.255.0.0
 - * Rebooting takes about 2 to 7 minutes.
 - 3. With these parameters set, connect the Web Server Unit directly to the PC.
 - 4. Set the network parameters for the PC.

For details, refer to (3) Setting network parameters for PC.

5. Configure the Web browser on the PC.

For details, refer to (4) Setting browser parameters for PC

- 6. Enter the address (URL) of the Web Server Unit in the browser and connect to it. For details, refer to (6) Opening the home page of the Web Server Unit
- 7. The start page will be displayed if it is connected. Log in with the system administration right (User name: admin, Password: admin).

Other windows will appear for other authentication rights, but always click the **Yes** Button to proceed. For details, refer to (6) Opening the home page of the Web Server Unit

- 8. Set the actual network parameters (user-defined) in the Network Settings window. (For details, refer to I. System Operation and Administration in Administration and Setting.)
- 9. Set the Network Configuration to user setting by changing pin 1 of the DIP switch on the front of the Unit to user settings and press ON the Reboot switch.

The steps above will reboot the Web Server Unit with user-defined parameters.

- (b) If network parameters (user-defined) have been set for the Web Server Unit:
- 1. Set the Network Configuration to user setting by changing pin 1 of the DIP switch on the front of the Unit to user settings and press ON the Reboot switch.
- 2. The Web Server Unit will reboot with user-defined network parameters.
 - * It will take 2 to 7 minutes to reboot.
- 3. Connect the Web Server Unit to the actual onsite network and check the settings for peripheral devices such as routers.

For details, refer to (5) Setting network peripheral devices.

4. to 8.

Same as the procedure in the preceding section, so refer to the previous section (a)- to .

9. To enable the settings, reboot the Web Server Unit in the Reboot menu.

The steps above will reboot the Web Server Unit with user-defined parameters.

(3) Set the network parameters for the PC.

Set the IP address, subnet mask, and default gateway.

Set the parameters according to the connected network in the Internet protocol (TCP/IP) properties window, as described below. For details, consult the network administrator of the network to which you are connecting.

- * The details below are based on the TCP/IP setup window of Microsoft® Windows® XP Operating System.
- (a) Connecting to an Intranet
- 1. Select Control Panel from the Start Menu.
- 2. Select Switch to Category View in the Control Panel. Then select Network and Internet Connections under Pick a category. Next, select Network Connections under or pick a Control Panel icon in the Network and Internet Connections Window.

Alternately, select *Switch to Classic View* in the Control Panel. Then select *Network Connections*.

- 3. Right-click *Local Area Connection* in the Network Connections Window. Then select *Property*.
- 4. Select Internet Protocol [TCP/IP] in the General Tab Page under Local Area Connection Properties. Select Property (The Properties Button will be displayed with a

Select **Property** (The Properties Button will be displayed with a check mark (\checkmark).

Construent C	Construent C		
Creation Pick a category Instruction Pick a category	Considered C	3110 - 10 - 13 / 24	arch 😥 Folders 🛄 •
Concentration Concentration Concentration Concentration Concentration Concentration	Constrained Constrain	órms 🕞 Control Panel	
See Also What will define the server and the server of the server	See Ada White head 2 agest When add 2 agest W	Control Panel (8)	Pick a category
	Add or Recover Program Data International Optimises	See Also	Appearance and Interest Indexe Interest and Interest Protocols and Interest Interest and Interest Interest Interest Interest Interest Interest Interest Interest Interest Interest Interest I
Accessibility Options			Performance and



192.168.0.2 255.255.0.0

Advanced...

S Network Connections				+ Local Area Connection Properties	Internet Protocol (TCP/IP
File Edit View Favorites Took	s Advanced Help		<u>.</u>		Connel
🕒 Back + 🕥 - 🎓 🔎	Search 😥 Folders			General Authentication Advanced	General
Address Network Connections			💌 🛃 Go	Connect using:	You can get IP settings assig this capability. Otherwise, yo
	Name	Type	Status	Broadcom NetXtreme 57xx Gigabit Controller	the appropriate IP settings.
Network Fanks Chiefs a ten connection Chiefs a ten connection Set a known or small Intervent tradeetoxet Chiefs network Unitervent Tradeetoxet Chief network Chief network Chief network Mie Computer Details Network Connections System Fader	LAN or High-Speed Intern	et	Enabled	Configure This connection uses the following Rems:	Obtain an IP address a G Use the following IP ad IP address: Subnet mask: Default gateway: Obtain DNS server add Obtain DNS server: Alternate DNS server:

5. Select the General Tab in the Internet Protocol (TCP/IP) Properties Window.

If a fixed IP address is to be used, select **Use the following IP address** and then enter the IP address, subnet mask, and default gateway.

* For the actual values and the IP address of the DNS server, consult the network administrator of the network to which you are connecting.

- * If pin 1 of the DIP switch is set to default settings, set the following parameter values:
 - IP address: 192.168.0.X(X is any value between 2 to 255.)Subnet mask: 255.255.0.0
 - Default gateway : leave blank

If an IP address is obtained from the DNS server (DHCP), select **Obtain an IP address automatically**.

* For the IP address of the DNS server, consult the network administrator of the network to be connected to.

6. Click the OK Button to complete the procedure.

(b) Connecting to the Internet

1.For step 1 to 4

Refer to the preceding section 1 to 4.

5. Select the General Tab in the Internet Protocol (TCP/IP) Properties Window.

If a fixed IP address is to be used, select **Use the following IP address** and enter the IP address, subnet mask, and default gateway.

- * For the actual values and the IP address of the DNS server, consult the network administrator of the network to which you are connecting.
- If an IP address is obtained from DNS server (DHCP), select Obtain an IP address automatically.
- * For the address of the DNS server, consult the network administrator of the network to which you are connecting.

6. Click the OK Button to complete the procedure.

- * For Internet connections, users need to subscribe to an Internet service provider (ISP) and obtain a user name and password. Depending on the ISP, the DNS server address may also be required.
- * ISPs may refer to user names and passwords by other names, as follows:
- User name : Authentication ID, Login ID, Connection ID, Network ID, etc.
- Password : Authentication password, Login password, Connection password, Network password, etc.

* Check with the ISP for details.

* For the network connection speed, ADSL or faster is recommended.

(4)Set the browser on the PC.

Set the browser (Internet Explorer) as follows: (The details below are based on the TCP/IP setup window of Microsoft® Windows® XP)

1. Settings for Internet Option (Internet Properties)

Right-click the Internet Explorer 😂 Icon and select Internet Properties. (Alternately, left-click Internet Properties and select Tool - Internet Options.)

2

Enable Java (Sun)

Select the **Advanced** Tab.

Select (V) Use Java 2 v1.4.2_05 for <applet> (requires restart) under Java (Sun).

yava (Sun)
✓ Use Java 2 v1.4.2_05 for <applet> (requires restart)

Click the **OK** Button to complete the procedure.

To enable the changed settings, close the browser.

- * Java Version 1.4.2 is required.
- * If this item is missing or another version is specified, follow step 2 to install Java.
- * Setting for Microsoft VM does not require changes.

Enable SSL 3.0

Select the **Advanced** Tab. Select (☑) **Use SSL 3.0** under Security. Click the **OK** Button to complete the procedure.

Disable Cookies

Select the **Privacy** Tab. Select **Advanced**. Select (☑) **Override automatic cookie handling** in the Advanced Privacy Settings Window. Select **Block** under *First party Cookies* and *Third-party Cookies*. Click the **OK** Button to complete the procedure.

Disable the Cache

Select the General Tab.

Click the **Settings...** Button under *Temporary Internet* Select *Every visit to the page* under *Check for newer*

pages.

Click the **OK** Button to complete the procedure.









2. Installing Java

Run **the installer on the included CD.** (Execute j2re-1_4_2_03-windows-i586-p.exe included in the CD to start installation and Follow the instructions from the installer application.)

🖗 Java 2 Rustime Environment, SE v1.4.2_05 - License 🛛 🔯	🖗 Java 2 Rustime Environment, SE v1.4.2,05 - Setup Type 🛛 🔀	😥 Java 2 Runtime Environment, SE v1.4.2_05 - Progress 📰 🗐 🕅	🖗 Java 2 Runtime Environment, SE v1.4.2_05 - Complete
License Agreement Please read the following license agreement carefully:	Setup Type Oxnose the setup type that best suits your needs.	Installing Java 2 Rustiane Environment, SE v1.4.2_65 The program features you selected are being installed.	InstallShield Wizard Completed
Sun Microsystems, Inc. Binary Code License Agreement for the JAVA® 2 RUNTIME ENVIRONMENT (J2RE), STANDARD EDITION, VERSION 1-4.2,X	Prese relich a satig traje. Organization Armonemeth fruitures will be instabled. Image: Conserved fruitures will be instabled. Image: Conserved fruitures will be instabled. Ocearem Contem Image: Conserved fruitures will be instabled. Image: Conserved fruitures will be instabled.	Reserve view dob the build will find the set of the set	The bind all bind is successful in radial jaws 2 Reams bindment, 2014 42,05. Gold Amhitteet the work
SUN MICROSTETERE, INC. (SUP) IS WELLING TO LICENSE THE SOFTWARE TRANSPORTED SECURITO YOU ONLY THON & Society of the main of the low agreement Defined acquire terms of the low agreement terminations Cancel	And Annual		

3. Proxy Server

Set the connection to the proxy server and other connections if needed.

Right-click the Internet Explorer Icon 😂 and select *Internet Properties*. (Alternately, left-click *Internet Properties* and select *Tool - Internet Options*.)

Select the **Connections** Tab.

General Security Privacy Content Connection P Solution Connection, clob Solution Connection, clob Solution Connection, clob Dialup and Virtual Private Netwook settings	Advanced Setup	Automatic configuration Address
Choose Setting: If you need to configure a proxy server for a connection. Where dial a connection Data whereien a network connection is not present Anney data wy default connection Current None	Settings	Procy server Idea aport server for your LAN (There settings will not apply to del-up or VMI connections). Address: inebproxy mere Port: 8000 Advanced Bypass proxy server for local addresses
Local Area Network (LAN) settings LAN Settings do not apply to dial-up connections. Choose Settings along for dial-up retrieves	LAN Settings	OK Cancel

Click the LAN Settings... Button.

- * Make the settings under *Proxy server* in the Local Area Network (LAN) Settings Window. Consult your network administrator for setup parameters.
- * Some applications, such as direct connections, do not require **Use a proxy server for your LAN** to be selected (☑).

(5) Network peripheral devices.

* Consult your network administrator for details of the network peripheral devices and their environments.

1. Ports.

The product uses the ports listed below. It is required that these ports be open on the firewalls and routers between this device and the remote PCs.

- 443 for HTTPS services
- 6001 for **proprietary**
- * If port 6001 is closed, the refresh cycle of status display will take 30 seconds or more.

* If the port 6001 is open, it can be refreshed in real time. Therefore, it is recommended that this port be open.

2. Firewalls and routers.

When connecting to the Internet, firewalls and routers must be installed to maintain security, but be sure to enable the ports listed in 1.

3. Internet connection.

- Requirements for the Internet Connection to Web Server Unit (Publishing to the Web):
- * Always-ON network connection
- * Availability of fixed (Global) IP address
- * Connection speed : ADSL or faster (Recommended)

Carrier and ISP

The user is responsible for entering a contract with an ADSL carrier and an Internet service provider (ISP) that provide a fixed IP address service.

• PPPoE

The Web Server Unit is not equipped with PPPoE connection functionality. If you subscribe to a service that requires the user authentication by PPPoE, a router with PPPoE functionality (or an ADSL modem with routing functionality) will be needed in addition to an ADSL modem.

(6) Open the home page of the Web Server Unit.

Follow the steps below to access the Web site through the browser (Internet Explorer).

1. Enter the address (URL) of the Server Unit.

As follows

https://***.***.***/

* denotes the IP address digits of the Server Unit. (e.g. if the IP address is 192.168.0.1, enter https://192.168.0.1/ as the URL).

* "https" is used at the beginning of the URL.

2. Proceed to the Security Alert Window.

Two Security Alert Windows will be displayed because the data is encrypted (SSL).

Click the **OK** Button in the first window Click the **Yes** Button in the second window The Start Window (Web page) will be displayed if connection is established.

3. Login (start operation).

Click the image in the Start Window to display the Login Window. Login with the system administration rights.

The following parameters are set for login as the factory settings.

- User name (U) : admin
- Password (P) : admin

The Main Frame will be displayed if connection is established.

4. Proceed to the Java Warning Window.

Two warning windows and a login window will be displayed before the Main Frame is completely displayed. This is related to the use of Java (Sun).

Click the Yes Button in the Warning – Security Window.

Enter the user name and password exactly the same as those entered in the Login Window in step 3 in the corresponding fields of the Password Needed – Networking Window, and then click the **Yes** Button.

* Do not enter a user name or password (authentication right) different from those entered in the Login Window.

Click the **Yes** Button in the Warning -- HTTPS Window.

The Main Frame will be displayed normally if the connection has been established.



5. Logout (operation complete).

Logout by closing the browser window.

* To login with a different authentication rights, close the browser window first. The authentication rights at login are retained, even after returning to the Start Window, until the browser is closed.

Java Authentication Problems.

* It may take a while before the Java Warning (Authentication) Dialog Box is displayed.

If you ignore the Warning (Authentication) Dialog Box and minimize the browser before the dialog box is displayed, the Warning (Authentication) Dialog Box will remain hidden even after maximizing the browser again, preventing the user from operating the browser.

In this situation, press the **ALT-Tab** keys simultaneously to display the Windows task switcher view. Select the Java icon in the tag switcher view by pressing the **ALT-Tab** keys.

This will bring back the Java warning (authentication) dialog box. From there, proceed as described above.



- * If the user name or password that had been entered at login is not entered correctly three times in succession, or if the **Cancel** Button is clicked, the Authentication Required Window will be displayed. In this situation, the browser must be closed and then reopened.
- * Java applets and the browser run on the client computer, so if the computer does not have sufficient resources, they may not function properly.

This section provides information on the system administration functionalities of the system.

I. System Administration Settings	(P. 39)
II. Creation and Management of Maps	(P. 68)

I. System Administration Settings

The following administrative functionalities are supported when logged in with the system administration rights. These functions can be selected in System Administration Menu.

- (1) Network Settings
- (2) Authentication
- (3) Date & Time Settings
- (4) RS-232C Settings
- (5) LIU Connection Settings
- (6) Page Reload Settings
- (7) Project Display Settings
- (8) System Errors Monitor
- (9) Log Settings
 - (a) Groups
 - (b) Patterns
 - (c) Zones
- (10) Log Viewer
- (a) Activity
- (b) System Errors
- (11) Download Manager
- (12) Upolad Manager
- (13) Run command
- (14) Data Monitor
- (15) Map Manager
- (16) Factory Settings
- (17) Reboot

(1) Network Settings

Specify Ethernet communications settings (e.g. IP address) in the Network Settings Window.

Basic Monitoring & Control Basic Settings Advanced Control & Settings Host Name: iiu [32 characters or less] MAC Address: 00-C0-RF:/F:D0:3B [Fixed]	Location name	System Administration > Network Settings	
System Administration Network Settings Authentication Obtain an IP address: Obtain an IP address: Outente following IP address: IV Settings Subnet Mask: 255 255 255 0 Default Gateway: Default Gateway: Default Gateway: Obtain an IP address. IP Address.	Basic Monitoring & Control Advanced Control & Settings System Administration Natwork Settings Basic Control of Control of Control Date & Time Settings Basic Control Control Date & Time Settings Project Display Settings Dates Display Settings Dates Display Settings System Error Monitor Log Virwar Download Manager Upland Manager Pathonics Map Manager Factory Settings Reboot	Basic Settings Host Name: iiu [32 characters or less] MAC Address: 00-C0:3F:TF:D0:3B [Fixed] Local Network Settings Obtain an IP address automatically Ouse the following IP address: IP Address: 192.168.128.150 Subnet Masie: 255.255.255.0 Default Gateway: Clobal Network Settings O Do not use global IP address. Default Gateway: Local Default Gateway: Do not use global IP address. IP Address: IP Address: IP Address: Clear To enable changes, please reboot Go to Reboot Page	

1. Basic settings.

Host Name : Identification name for the Web Server Unit

- * 32 characters or less, excluding hyphens (-), and underscores (_)
- * The host name becomes valid when the browser is reopened or the page is reloaded after rebooting the Web Server Unit.
- * The host name denotes a machine identification text string on a network and is used in a network environment with DNS.
- * The MAC address denotes the physical address of the Web Server Unit.

2. Local network settings.

If the IP address is to be obtained dynamically, select Obtain an IP address automatically.

If the IP address is to be specified directly, select Use the following IP address and enter the following:

IP Address : IP address to be assigned to the Web Server

* Enter XXX. XXX. XXX. XXX (XXX : Alphanumeric characters)

* Enter a global address if the IP unnumbered functionality is used by the router.

Subnet mask : The subnet mask for the network the Web Server Unit connects to * Enter XXX. XXX. XXX. XXX (XXX : Alphanumeric characters)

Default gateway : The gateway for the network the Web Server Unit connects to

* Enter XXX. XXX. XXX. XXX (XXX : Alphanumeric characters)

3.Global network settings.

If not connecting to the Internet, select *Do not use global IP address*. If connecting to the Internet, select *Use global IP address* and enter the IP address. IP Address : Global IP (Fixed) address provided by the Internet Provider

* Ports must be set for the router independently.

* Port 6001 is used for the status displayed using symbols in the Monitor & Control List and Maps Windows. If this port is not supported, realtime symbol refreshing is not supported in response to local circuits status changes, but they can still be monitored by periodically reloading the Main Frame by selecting *Enable automatic reload of basic monitoring & control pages* in the Page Reload Settings Menu.

4. Submit button.

When the submit button is clicked, the parameters specified and shown in the window will be submitted to the Web Server Unit as the user-defined values.

5. Enable the submitted parameters.

To enable the submitted values, reboot the web server unit.

- * If the DIP switch pin is set to **Default**, user-defined values can be submitted and the web server unit can be rebooted. But after rebooting, the DIP switch settings will override the defined values.
- * Rebooting can be performed either from this window or by setting the DIP switch on the Unit.

6. Other

Click the "Reset" Button to display the current network settings. Click the "Clear" Button to clear all entries.

7. Factory default values

Host name	: host
Local network	: Use the following IP address
IP address	: 192.168.0.1
Subnet mask	: 255.255.0.0
Default gateway	: Blank
Global address settings	: Do not use global IP address

(2) Authentication

The user's access rights, user name, and password can be registered or deleted in the Authentication Dialog Box.

Location name	System Administration > Authentication
Basic Monitoring & Control	Add New User
Advanced Control & Settings Network Settings Authentication Date & Time Settings RS-332C Settings LIU Settings Date Restings	Access Rights: Basic Monitoring User
Project Display Settings System Error Monitor Log Settings Log Vinver Download Manager Upload Manager Fun Command Data Monitor Map Manager Enclory Settings Reboot	Delete User Basic Monitoring Users Basic Control & Monitoring Users Advanced Users Administrators monitor control advanced admin (cannot delete) Delete Delete Delete Delete Delete
	Connected

(i) Registering a User (Add/Change)

Perform these settings under Add New User.

1. Select the access right from the pull-down menu in the Access Rights field.

Types of Access Rights are described as follows:

- Basic Monitoring User
- Basic Monitoring & Control User
- Advanced Monitoring & Control User
- System Administrator

- : Enables monitoring only of lighting circuits operations.
- : Enables monitoring and control of lighting circuits operations.
- : Enables setting in addition to monitoring and control of lighting circuits operations.
- : Enables all operations including those related to system administration settings.

2. Enter the user name and password, and retype the password.

The following is a list of conditions for user names and passwords to be valid:

- Valid user names and passwords can be of 4 and 8 characters long, excluding hyphens, underscores, and other special characters.
- Same user names cannot be used more than once, regardless of whether the access rights are different
- User names are not case-sensitive.

• The number of user accounts is limited depending on the user type as described in the following table:

User Type	Minimum number of user accounts	Maximum number of user accounts
Basic Monitoring	1	5
Basic Monitoring & Control	1	5
Advanced Control & Settings	1	1
System Administration	1	1

* Click the Clear Button to delete text entries in the User Name, Password, and Retype Password fields.

* An Advanced User and Administrator can be registered by overwriting the default text.

3.Click the Submit Button.

- * Registrations are disabled for a period of one minute after one registration/deletion operation has beed performed. This restriction applies when registering multiple users in succession.
- * Also, simultaneous registration from multiple clients is not possible.

(ii) Deleting User Registrations

Registered users can be deleted under Delete User.

1. Select the displayed user names for Basic Monitoring and Basic Monitoring & Control Users

2. Click the Delete Button.

- * Note that there must be at least one user registered for all types of users.
- * Also, entries for the **Advanced Control & Settings User** and **System Administrator User** cannot be deleted, but can be overwritten under *Add New User*.
- * If another **administrator** concurrently logged in has changed/deleted the registration, the changes are not displayed until operating windows are reloaded. Therefore, even if operations have been completed, actual registrations may not be stored in the Web Server Unit, because the user registration has not yet been enabled.
- * A user registration may be deleted while a user is still logged in. In this situation, a window requiring the user authentication will be displayed to that user. Also, the "Please wait for a moment..." message will be displayed on the task bar .
- In that case, the user must reopen the browser and log in again with another user name and password that are valid.

(iii) Changing a Password

Perform these settings under Add New User.

- 1.Select the access right from the pull-down menu in the Access Rights field.
- 2. Enter the user name in the User name field.
- 3. Enter a new password in the Password and Retype Password fields.
- 4. Click the Submit Button.
 - * Password changes can be performed by the user with the system administration right only.
 - * If the system administration password has been changed, a new login is required immediately after clicking the Submit Button.

* **Important notice**: <u>The user name and password for the system administrator cannot be recovered by</u> <u>the user</u> if they are ever forgotten after being changed. They do not respond to initialization using the hardware switches for security. Therefore, be sure to store this information in a safe place.

(iv) Factory defaults values

The factory default values for users and passwords are as described in the following table:

User Type	User Name	Password
Basic Monitoring	monitor	monitor
Basic Monitoring & Control	control	control
Advanced Control & Settings	advanced	advanced
System Administration	admin	admin

* Be sure to change user **names** and passwords before operation for security.

* User names and passwords can be reset to the above text in the Factory Settings Menu.

(3) Date & Time Settings

The clock inside the Web Server Unit can be adjusted in the **Date & Time Settings** Dialog Box. Date and time must be set for schedule control and log keeping.

Location name	System Administration > Date & Time Settings
Basic Monitoring & Control Advanced Control & Settings System Administration Natvork Settings Authenitation Date & Time Settings R3-332C Settings HUISettings Project Display Settings System Error Monitor Leg Settings Leg Views Leg Views Download Manger Pata Monitor Map Manger Pata Monitor Map Manger Eactory Settings Reboot	Present time: May 30th, 2005 14:47:21 Date & Time: 2005/05/30/14/47/21 (Input format: Year Month Day:Hour (24h) Minutes/Seconds) Current time status : Daylight saving Submit
	Connected

1. Enter the date and time in the Date & Time field.

The required format to enter the new date and time is as follows

year/month/day/hour (24 hours format)/minutes/seconds

e.g., December 1st 2004 11:01:59 p.m. will be set as "2004/12/01/23/01/59".

•

* Always use four digits for the year, two digits each for the month, day, hour, minutes, and seconds.

* Also use a single-byte slash "/" as the delimiter.

The maximum range for the date & time settings is as follows

2000/01/01/00/00/00 to 2037/12/31/23/59/59

2. Click the Submit Button.

- * Changes to the Date & Time Settings will affect the stored log data. The logs recorded up to six days before the renewed date will be deleted
- * If the date changes naturally due to the passing of time while this window is displayed before clicking the Submit Button, a registration error will occur to protect the log.

Current Time Status

Current time status, daylight saving time or normal time, is indicated below the date & time setting field.

Supplementary Information:

* Periodic adjustment is required due to the clock's precision.

- * The time displayed in the *Present time* field is the time set on the Web Server Unit when Date & Time Settings is displayed on the client PC. Because this value is not automatically refreshed, it should not be interpreted as a functional clock.
- * The clock will return to January 1, 2000 after December 31, 2037.
- * The clock will start with 1980/01/01/00/00/00 on initialization after a power failure longer then the clock's batteries maximum longevity (Date & Time Out of Order).
- * When the clock is in "Date & Time Out of Order" status, the LED indicator on the Unit will be flashing and the error message will remain until a valid date and time are specified.
- * Value at rebooting: 2000/01/01/00/00/00

(4) RS-232C Settings

This page provides an interface in order to set the RS-232C communications parameters between the Web Server Unit and NCU.

Location name	System Administration > RS-232C Settings
Basic Monitoring & Control Advanced Control & Settings System Administration Network Settings Authentication Date & Time Settings Page Reload Settings Project Display Settings Project Display Settings System Error Monitor Log Viewer Download Manager Upload Manager Run Command Data Monitor Map Manager Factory Settings Reboot	Bits per Second: 19200 ♥ Data Bits: 7 bit ♥ Parity: Even ♥ Polling Ratio: 2 ♥ Polling Cycle: 0.4 ♥ s Default Submit To enable changes, please reboot. Go to Reboot Page
	Connected

1. Select the values.

Use the following values

- Bits per Second : 19200 or 9600 [bps] *
- Data Bits : 7 bits *
- Parity : Even *
- Polling Ratio : 2
- Polling Cycle : 0.4 [s]

* The DIP switch on the NCU must be set to the same values.

Factory settings:

- Bits per Second : 19200 [bps]
- Data Bits : 7 bits
- Parity : Even
- Polling Ratio : 2
- Polling Cycle : 0.4 [s]

* Click the Default Button to display the above values.

2. Click the Submit Button.

3. Enable the registered values.

Registered values are enabled by rebooting the web server unit.

(5) LIU Settings

This page provides the interface for configuring LIU connections. An LIU can be physically connected but communications with it can be disabled in these settings.

Location name	System Administration > LIU S	ettings		
Basic Monitoring & Control		Web Server L	Jnit 💙 Select	
Advanced Control & Settings	Warning: Disabling LIU It is advis	connection will also disable all co sable to verify your settings befor	ntrols, programs and othe e performing any changes	r configurations related to this l in LIU connections.
System Administration Network Settings Authentication Date & Time Settings RS-232C Settings LIU Settings		After submitting data, Go to Re	ubmit please reboot the system. aboot Page	
Page Reload Settings Project Display Settings System Error Monitor	LIU No	Connection	LIU No	Connection
Log Settings Log Viewer	01	Enabled 💌	17	Disabled 💌
Download Manager Upload Manager	02	Disabled 💌	18	Disabled 💌
Run Command Data Monitor	03	Disabled 💌	19	Disabled 💌
Map Manager Factory Settings	04	Disabled 💌	20	Disabled 💌
Reboot	05	Disabled 💌	21	Disabled 💌
	06	Disabled 💌	22	Disabled 💌
	07	Disabled 🛩	23	Disabled 💌
	08	Disabled 🐱	24	Disabled 💌

1. Check the data.

- * Select a Unit in the drop down list at the top of the view and click the **Select** Button. Data will be displayed.
- * When the window opens, values stored on the Web Server Unit are displayed. LIU connection settings are set in the Web Server Unit and NCU, and the settings must be identical.
- * If not, they can be matched using this page. If the settings of the Web Server Unit and NCU remain different, monitoring and control will not function normally.
- * The NCU must be connected to the Web Server Unit in order to check the Web Server Unit's data.

2. Enable/disable the connection.

Select Enabled or Disabled for each of the LIU (01 to 31).

3. Click the Submit Button.

The values shown in the window will be submitted and saved to the Web Server Unit and the NCU.

* The NCU must be connected when values are submitted.

Saving and Resetting Zone Settings

Zone settings data will be deleted when the LIU connection is set. Therefore, when the **Submit** Button is clicked, a warning message to that effect will be displayed. Zone settings data that have already been set will not be lost if the user follows the following instructions.

To prevent loosing zone settings, first save the zone settings data to the client PC in the Download Window prior to modifying LIU connections settings. Once LIU Connection Settings modifications are completed, transfer the zone data back to the Web Server Unit in the Upload Window. Edit the zone settings in the Zone Settings Window to correspond with the new LIU Connection Settings.

(6) Page Reload Settings

This window is used to enable automatic reload of basic monitoring & control pages and periodically refresh advanced control pages, system error monitor page, and the status bar.

Location name	System Administration > Page Reload Settings
Basic Monitoring & Control Advanced Control & Settings	Enable automatic reload of basic monitoring & control pages: \bigcirc γ_{es} \odot N_0
System Administration Network Settings Authentication Date & Time Settings RS.2202 Settings HU Settings Project Display Settings Project Display Settings System Error Monitor Log Settings Log Viewset Download Manager Upload Manager Upload Manager Eactory Settings Reboot	Advanced control pages, system error monitor and status bar: Reload Cycle: 55 V Submit Reset
	Connected

(i) Enabling Automatic Reloading of Basic Monitoring & Control Pages

These pages communicate through a proprietary port (6001). Even if this port is closed in the user's PC environment, status monitoring is still possible.

1. Select Yes/No.

By selecting Yes in the Enable automatic reload of basic monitoring & control pages field, the Main Frame will be reloaded periodically, and the status data can be automatically refreshed.

* If the proprietary port is open, this reloading is unnecessary. It is set to No in the factory settings.

* If Yes is selected, the Page Reload Button will be displayed in both windows. Clicking this button will reload the Main Frame once, regardless of the reload cycle.

2. If Yes is set, select the reload cycle.

Reload Cycle : Select from 30 seconds or 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 10, 15, 20, 25, or 30 minutes.

3. Click the Submit Button.

(ii) Set the advanced control pages, system error monitor page, and status bar reload cycles.

In order to be refreshed, the advanced control pages, the system error page and the status bar communicate through http service 443.

1. Select Reload Cycle.

Reload Cycle : Select from 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, or 10 seconds

2. Click the Submit Button.

(7) Project Display Settings

Text displayed in Project Name Frame, names for each Map Window, and displays of Maps and Monitor & Control List can be setup.

on name System .	Administration > Project	Display Settings		
ionitoring & 	r		Submit	
in the second		Initial Page	⊙ Maps ○ M	Monitor & Control List
Administration <u>k Settings</u> <u>tication</u>	I	Project Name	Location name	
<u>C Settings</u> tings	Item no.		Name	Enable Display
load Settings	01	Map 1		
Error Monitor	02	Map 2		
er	03	Map 3		
<u>Aanager</u> nager	04	Map 4		
nd or	05	Map 5		
iger ttings	06	Map 6		
	07	Map 7		
	08	Map 8		
	09	Map 9		
	10	Map 10		
	11	Map 11		

1. Select the initial page.

Select either *Maps* or *Monitor & Control List* as the initial page to be shown to the user after login.

(i) When Maps Is Selected

- * The first item in the map list will be displayed to the user after login, regardless to its display status (enabled display checkbox). If the map data of the first item has not been transferred to the Web Server Unit, an empty background will be displayed to the user after login.
- * Please refer to $\rm II$. Creating and Administering Maps for details on map data.

(ii) When Monitor & Control List Is Selected

- The Monitor & Control List will be displayed to the user after login.
- * Please refer to III. Monitor & Control List for details on the Monitor & Control List.

2. Enter the Project Name and Map Names.

- Project Name
 : Text displayed in the Project Name Frame (Upper left corner of the window)
- Map Name
- : Names for maps 01 to 99.
- * Entries must be 32 alpha numerical characters long or less.
- * Invalid characters entry will cause an error message to be displayed after the Submit Button is clicked.
- * Long text strings, such as a 32 characters long, may be displayed with both ends truncated.

3. Select the maps to display.

The display of maps in the map list (pull-down menu in the Menu Frame) can be enabled by selecting (☑) the check boxes in the Enable Display column. Maps can be disabled by unselecting the check boxes. Maps can be disabled even if the corresponding map data has been transferred and remains on Web Server Unit.

Supplemental Information:

- * In order to complete enabling of map display, the web server unit must be rebooted after clicking the "Submit" button.
- * If none of the maps are enabled, maps pull-down list will not be displayed in the Menu Frame.
- * When map data has not been transferred to the web server unit but maps display are enabled, maps pull-down list will be displayed in the Menu Frame but will be empty.

4. Enable/Disable the Monitor & Control List display.

In order to enable display of the monitor & control lists to the Basic Monitoring & Control users, in the last row of the map table, select the "Monitor & Control List (Enabled only when logged in with Basic Monitoring and Basic Monitoring & Control rights)" check box.

* When logged in as the advanced control & setting user or as a system administrator, Monitor & Control List will be displayed regardless of selection of this item.

* Enable Display is selected in the factory settings for this item.

5. Click the Submit Button.

6. Enable the submitted settings.

Rebooting will enable the submitted settings.

Factory Settings:

- Initial Page : Maps
- Project Name : Location name
- Name : Map 1 to Map 99
- Enable Display : All unselected (display disabled)
- Monitor & Control List : Selected (display enabled)

(8) System Error Monitor

Errors related to the circuit status monitor and control, such as communications errors between the Web Server Unit and local lighting systems, can be checked.

Location name	System Administration > System Error Monitor
Banic Monitoring & Control Advanced Control & Settings System Administration Network Settings Authentication Date & Time Settings Page Reload Settings Project Displaye Settings System Euro Mentor Lag Stitugs Lag Stitugs Lag Stitugs Lag Stitugs Lag Stitugs Lag Stitugs Lag Stitugs Lag Stitugs Lag Stitugs Download Manager Uphoc Manager Date Monitor Map Manager Estimo Settings Estimo Settings	Web Server Unit NCU connection error Date & Time out of order. Local System Local bus error Full-2XWay signal error Pattern / Group configuration in process X: Error occurred.
	Connected

Errors Types

NCU connection errors : RS-232C communications error between the Web Server Unit and NCU (unmatched communications parameters broken/unmatched cable, NCU power interruption, etc.) Date & time out of order : Occurs when the clock has been re-initialize after a power interruption longer than the clock's battery maximum time range. Local bus error : Communications error between NCU and LIU (unmatched baud rate or addresses, connection problem, LIU power interruption, etc.) FULL-2WAY signal errors : Channel errors between LIU and Transmission Unit (connection problem, short circuit, Transmission Unit power interruption, etc.) Pattern / Group : Occurs when setting is in progress with the pattern/group configurator. Some configurators, such as Web Server Units, WRT9600 and configuration in progress. in process. WRT9103-series Units, employ configuration methods that do not affect monitoring and controls. These configurations do not trigger

Supplemental Information:

*"X" is displayed to indicate an error. If any error occurs, a message to that effect will be displayed in the Status Bar.

error indications.

- * Unknown address status of circuits (T/U) and patterns/groups (both red and green LEDs of wall switches are OFF) due to disconnected terminals, unregistered addresses, nonexistent P/G settings, etc. will not trigger errors because they can be defined either as normal or as errors depending on the operating methods.
- * If a local bus error, FULL-2WAY bus error, or pattern/group configuration in progress error occurs after an NCU connection error, the error will not be displayed in the System Error Monitor because local errors cannot be detected under those conditions.
- * NCU connection errors are displayed at the time of recovery.

(9) Log Settings

The history of status changes in response to local control can be recorded as a log for group, pattern, and zone addresses. The logs can be selected/deselected by address (point).

(a) Groups

(b) Patterns

<u>Monitoring & ol.,</u> nce <u>d Control &</u> gs	Groups				LIU Ne. 01 💌 Select
n Administration ork Settings entication & Time Settings		Ľ	Submit		
2C Settings	Address	Name	Select	Address	Name
Reload Settings	001	Group 001		065	Group 065
<u>n Error Monitor</u>	002	Group 002		066	Group 066
ettings uns	003	Group 003		067	Group 067
ins	004	Group 004		068	Group 068
is iewer	005	Group 005		069	Group 069
<u>load Manager</u> d Manager	006	Group 006		070	Group 070
Command	007	Group 007		071	Group 071
Manager	008	Group 008		072	Group 072
<u>v Settings</u> <u>i</u> t	009	Group 009		073	Group 073
	010	Group 010		074	Group 074
	011	Group 011		075	Group 075
	<	III	0.00		2
		Co	onnected		

ration name	System Administration	i > Log Settings			
n Monitoring & nol ranced Control & ings	Patens			1	LIUNe 01 💌 Select
um Advinistration Insek Section Ontitution In & Time Section			Submit		
233C Securp	Addma	Name	Select	Address	Name
e Relead Settings	61	Pattern 11		17	Pattern 37
perit Linguisty, Secondar treat Estimat, Monotor	12	Pattern 02		38	Pattens 30
Clettings	65	Pattern 03		39	Pattern 39
fatta.	64	Pattern 04		40	Pattern 40
III III	8	Patren 15		41	Pattern 41
nicad Manager ad Manager	06	Pattern 06		42	Pattern 42
irread	10	Pattern 07		43	Pattern 45
Manager	05	Pattern 01		44	Pattern 44
r <u>y bertanga</u> K	69	Pattern 09		45	Pattern 45
	50	Pattern 10		46	Pattem 46
	11	Pattern 11		47	Pattern C

(c) Zones

tion name	System Administration	a > Log Settings			
Monitoring & al	Zmes	(Submit		·
<u></u>	Address	Nata	Select	Address	Name
Administration_	01	Zone 01		. 49.0	Zone 49
Sticros	02	Zoese 02		50	Zone 50
C Integ	08	Zone 03		51	Zone 51
errege Mont lietungs	04	Zenr 94		52	Zene 32
Diploy Settegs	05	Zone 05		53	Zenn 53
tingt.	66	Zeese 06		54	Zene 54
1 11	87	Zone 87		55	Zone 35
1.Ter	08	Zone 08		56	Zern 56
d Manager	09	Zone 19		57	Zone 57
and i	10	Zome 10		58	Zenr SI
	11	Zone 11		59	Zene 59
inga i	12	Zeen 12		60	Zone 60
	IJ	Zone 13		61	Zene 61
	14	Zeese 14		62	Zone E
	¢				3
		0	onnerted		1.00

1. Select *LIU No*. (* Groups and Patterns Log Settings)

Select an LIU number from the pull-down menu and click the **Select** Button to display all corresponding items.

2. Select the addresses. (* Groups, Patterns and Zones Log Settings)

The addresses of the items to be logged can be selected by selecting its check box

- (a) Group address range : 001 to 127 (per LIU)
- (b) Pattern address range : 001 to 72 (per LIU)
- (c) Zone address range : 01 to 96.

3. Click the Submit Button. (* Groups, Patterns and Zones Log Settings)

Supplemental Information:

- * Logs can only be checked and recorded for group, pattern, and zone addresses.
- * DIP switches on both NCUs and LIUs must be set to enable the Web Server Unit to obtain logs. (Refer to Installtion Section I. Connection and Configuration (Installation) of Device (Unit) for details.)
- * Changes due to On-timer/Off-delay controls included in the Patterns and Groups settings may not result in group, pattern, or zone status changes, depending on whether the individual circuit address or dimmer address is a part or the entire address contained in the settings.
- * Undefined system errors (circuit status changes data being lost, undetected data, etc.), excluding date & time out of order errors, will not be recorded in the log

(10) Log Viewer

The history log of circuit controls can be viewed for up to seven days.

(a) Activity

The history log of group, pattern or zone status changes can be viewed in table format. The origin of the control action, WEB (control from web page) or schedule is also displayed

mitoning &					Select Date: 200	5-05-30 V Select		
d Control &	No.	Time	LIU No.	Type	Address	Name	Operation	Origin
	0018	14:00	01	I	00-1	Individual Circuit 00-1	OFF	WEB
dministration	0017	13:58	01	I	00-1	Individual Circuit 00-1	ON	WEB
Settings	0016	13:58	01	I	00-1	Individual Circuit 00-1	OFF	WEB
tation	0015	13:57	01	I	00-1	Individual Circuit 00-1	ON	WEB
Settings	0014	13:57	01	I	00-1	Individual Circuit 00-1	OFF	WEB
ngs	0013	13:56	01	I	00-1	Individual Circuit 00-1	ON	WEB
ad Settings	0012	13:56	01	I	00-1	Individual Circuit 00-1	OFF	WEB
rror Monitor	0011	13:56	01	I	00-1	Individual Circuit 00-1	ON	WEB
<u>1gs</u>	0010	13:34	01	I	00-1	Individual Circuit 00-1	OFF	WEB
<u>er</u>	0009	13:25	01	I	00-1	Individual Circuit 00-1	ON	WEB
Errors	0008	11:36		gb	2	Global Address 02	OFF	WEB
i Manager	0007	11:31		Z	2	Zone 02	OFF	WEB
lanager	0006	11:29	01	P	7	Pattern 07	Match	WEB
iitor	0005	11:29	01	P	6	Pattern 06	Match	WEB
lager	0004	11:29	01	P	4	Pattern 04	Match	WEB
ettings	0003	11:29	01	P	3	Pattern 03	Match	WEB
	0002	11:29	01	P	2	Pattern 02	Match	WEB
	0001	11:29	01	P	1	Pattern 01	Match	WEB

(b) System Errors

The history (log) of system errors can be viewed in table format.

No. Time Device Web Server Unit Local System Intraction	n / Group Settings
No. Index Date & Time Out of Order. NCU Connection Local Bus Full-2Way Signals Pattern 0009 15:15 Web Server Unit Reboot completed.	m / Group Setting:
0009 15:15 Web Server Unit Reboot completed. 0008 15:14 LIU01 Normal In 0007 15:13 LIU01 Error Indeterminate In 0006 15:12 LIU01 Normal In 0005 15:11 LIU01 Error Indeterminate In 0004 15:10 LIU01 Normal In 0003 15:09 LIU01 Normal In 0001 15:08 LIU01 Normal In 0001 15:07 LIU01 Normal In	
0008 15:14 LTU01 Normal 0007 15:13 LTU01 Error Indeterminate In 0006 15:12 LTU01 Normal Indeterminate In	
0007 15:13 LIU01 Error Indeterminate In 0006 15:12 LIU01 Normal Indeterminate In 0005 15:11 LIU01 Error Indeterminate In 0004 15:10 LIU01 Normal Indeterminate In 0003 15:09 LIU01 Normal Indeterminate In 0002 15:08 LIU01 Error Indeterminate In 0001 15:07 LIU01 Error Indeterminate In	
0006 IS-12 LIU01 Normal 0005 IS-11 LIU01 Error Indeterminate In 0004 IS-10 LIU01 Normal Indeterminate In 0003 IS-09 LIU01 Error Indeterminate In 0002 IS-08 LIU01 Normal In 0001 IS-07 LIU01 Error Indeterminate In	ndeterminate
0005 15.11 LIU01 Error Indeterminate In 0004 15.10 LIU01 Normal In 0003 15.09 LIU01 Error Indeterminate In 0001 15.07 LIU01 Normal In	
0004 15:10 LIU01 Normal 0003 15:09 LIU01 Error Indeterminate In 0001 15:08 LIU01 Normal In 0001 15:07 LIU01 Error Indeterminate In	ndeterminate
0003 15:09 LIU01 Error Indeterminate In 0002 15:08 LIU01 Normal In 0001 15:07 LIU01 Error Indeterminate In	
0002 15:08 LIU01 Normal 0001 15:07 LIU01 Error Indeterminate In	ndeterminate
0001 15:07 LIU01 Error Indeterminate In	
	ndeterminate
	AUCTERIMINALE

1. Select a date. (Activity log and System Error log)

After selecting a date, the log content corresponding to that date will be displayed.

2. Click the Select Button. (Activity log and System Error log)

- * The page is not automatically refreshed. In order to obtain the latest data, click the **Select** Button.
- * Also, If the date changes during this operation, the display will be disabled. In that case, click the Select button to refresh the window.

Items Displayed in the Activity Log Page

- : Serial number of the log entry (listed in decreasing order)
- Time
 Time at which the control activity occurred (listed in reversed chronological order)
- LIU No. : Local LIU number where control activity occurred.
- Type : Address type as described in the following table:

Туре	Designation
Individual Circuit	l
Dimmer	D
Group	G
Pattern	Р
Zone	Z
Global Address	gb

: Name of the corresponding address as set in Name Settings

Address

No

: Address number

: Status of control address.

- Name
- Operation
- * If the control command was not transmitted to the lower system and is invalid, *Invalid* will be displayed.
- * Also, if the control command was transmitted to the lower system but the result was the same as before the control, *Abnormal OFF/Abnormal ON* will be displayed.
- * Finally, global addresses control do not have *Abnormal ON/OFF* or *Invalid* statues.
- Origin : Origin of control command, as described in the following table:

	Designation	Description	
	WEB	Control command originated from a web page.	
	Schedule	Control command originated from a program.	
	Local	Control command originated locally. Local control command are logged as configured in the Log Settings. Status changes of individual circuit and dimmer addresses are not logged.	
ltems	Displayed in the Sy	stem Error Log	
•	No	: Serial number of the log entry (listed in decreasing order)	
•	Time	: Time at which the error occurred (listed in reversed chronological or	der
•	Device	: Device in which the error occurred (Including channels)	
•	Date & Time Out of	Order : <i>Error</i> is displayed if an error has occurred and <i>Normal</i> when it has recovered. <i>Reboot Completed</i> is displayed when the Web Server U has rebooted.	nit
•	NCU Connection	: <i>Error</i> is displayed if an error has occurred and <i>Normal</i> when it has recovered. <i>Indeterminate</i> is displayed for all items in the local system an error has occurred.	ı if
•	Local Bus	: Indeterminate is displayed for all items in the local system if an error has occurred and Normal when it has recovered.	
•	FULL-2WAY Signal	s : <i>Error</i> is displayed if an error has occurred and <i>Normal</i> when it has recovered.	
•	Pattern/Group Setti	ngs : <i>Error</i> is displayed when pattern/group settings have started on a loca system and <i>Normal</i> when settings have been completed.	al
* The	a types of errors that (can be recorded are identical to these that can be checked in the System Err	or

* The types of errors that can be recorded are identical to those that can be checked in the System Error Monitor (Refer to (8) System Error Monitor for details.).

- * *Indeterminate* is displayed for lower items whose data cannot be collected when an error has occurred in the higher part of the system.
- * When the Web Server Unit is started, errors are logged independently from logs before startup. Therefore, identical logs may be displayed.

Supplemental Information:

Maximum number of log entries: 1,000 entries/day × 7 days (including the current day)

- * Time 00:00 through 23:59 is counted as one day.
- * If there are more then 1,000 log entries for a single day, the oldest log entry will be replaced by the newest log entry as the 1,000th case. (bottom of the table)
- * If the log exceeds seven days, the oldest day's log data (all 1,000 records) will be deleted to make room for the current day's log.
- * If the date is changed in the Date & Time Setting Window, all seven days' logs (all 7,000 records) will be deleted.
- * The log dates may not be correct (arbitrary dates are logged) if a date & time out of order error has occurred.

(11) Download Manager

Download Manager is used when major settings, data, and history logs are to be back up on a client PCs.

Location name	System Administration > Download Manager		
Basic Monitoring & Control Advanced Control & Settings System Administration Network Settings Authentication Date & Time Settings B2-22C Settings HU Settings Project Display Settings Project Display Settings System Error Monitor Log Sitturs Log Virturs Devenload Manager Devenload Manager Project Monitor Map Manager Factory Settings Rebeat	Monitor & Control List Zones G Special Days Name Settings (Groups) Name (Name Settings (Global Addresses)	Groups obal Addresses Addresses > Settings (Patterns) Activity Log	Patterns Schedule Name Settings (Individual Circuits) Name Settings (Zones) System Error Log
		Connected	

location name	System Administration > Download Manage	ər	
lanic Monitoring & Control. Advanced Control & Internet. Automatical Network Jettings Automatical Date & Turnet Settings Date & Turnet Settings Past & Turnet Settings	Montor & Control List Zones Special Days Name Settings (Groups) Name Settings (Global Addresses)	Groups Global Addresses Addresses Name Settings (Patterns) Activity Log	Patens Schedule Name Settings (Individual Circuita) Name Settings (Zones) System Ener Log
LIU Seming Party Charles Seming Project Darboy Settings (South Entry Alamatic Leg Numm, Dennissi Alaman Parla Manager Parla Manager Parla Manager References Parla Manager References Refer	LUNA 01 M	Group No.	001 💌 🕸 001 💌
		Connected	



Downloadable Data File Types

Data in CSV (Comma Separated Value) format can be generated and downloaded from the web server unit. Microsoft® Excel is recommended to view and edit these files.

•	Monitor & Control List	: List data registered in Monitor & Control List Settings. * list.csv
•	Group	: Group control settings data registered in Group Settings.
		* group01.csv to group31.csv
•	Pattern	: Pattern control settings data registered in Pattern Settings.
		* pattern01.csv to pattern31.csv
•	Zone	: Zone control settings data registered in Zone Settings.
		* zone.csv
•	Global Addresses	: Global address control settings data registered in
		Global Address Settings.
		* global.csv
•	Schedule	: Programs settings data registered in Programs Settings.
		* schedule.csv
•	Special day	: Special days settings data registered in Special Days.
		* days of the week: Special _week.csv
		* days of the month: Special_day_every.csv
		* dates: Special_day_once.csv
•	Address	: Address settings data assigned to maps symbols in
		Address Settings.
		* address.csv
•	Name Settings (Individual Circuits)	: Individual circuit and dimmer name settings data registered in
		Individual Circuit Settings.
		* i_name01.csv to i_name31.csv
•	Name Settings (Groups)	: Groups data registered in Groups.
		* g_name01.csv to g_name31.csv
•	Name Settings (Patterns)	: Patterns data registered in Patterns.
		* p_name01.csv to p_name31.csv
•	Name Settings (Zones)	: Patterns data registered in Zones.
		* z_name.csv
•	Name Settings (Global Addresses)	: Global addresses data registered in Global Addresses.
		* gb_name.csv
•	Control log	: Activity data displayed in Activity
		* yymmddco.csv where "yy" denotes the year, "mm" denotes
		the month, and "dd" denotes the day
•	System error log	: System error data displayed in System Errors.
		* yymmddal.csv where "yy" denotes the year, "mm" denotes
		the month, and "dd" denotes the day

(i) How to download a file (Excluding Groups and Patterns)

1. Select the type of data file.

When a button for a file type is selected in the upper frame, the file names will be displayed in the lower frame.

2. Click on the file name.

The File Download Dialog Box will be displayed.

3. Click the Save Button in the File Download

Dialog Box.

The Save As Dialog Box will be displayed.

- 4. Enter the file destination and name in the Save in and File name fields, and click the Save Button.
 - * When Zones data is downloaded, data currently stored on the Web Server Unit is converted into a file. Therefore, downloaded data indicated by the message "Settings inconsistencies" is different from that on the NCU.

(ii) How to download a file (Groups and Patterns)

Data for groups and patterns is not stored on the Web Server Unit. Therefore, it must be retrieved from Transmission Units.

* When groups and patterns data is downloaded, communications with the Transmission Units occur during operation. Therefore, LIU connection settings must be enabled and Transmission Units must be connected.

1. Click the Group or Patterns Button.

2. Select a LIU number.

3. Select the address range (groups /patterns).

4. Click the Download Button.

Communications to transmit data from the selected

LIU system Transmission Unit to the Web Server Unit

will be initiated. When this transmission is in progress,

the "Data transfer in progress. Please wait..." message is displayed.

Wait until the message changes to "Connected" and the communications are completed.

- * Responses may be delayed or not occur during the operation.
- * When the Pause Button is clicked, communications with the Transmission Unit are interrupted, but data up to that point is obtained.
- * While data is downloading, downloading from other browsers is disabled.
- * System Errors cannot be detected while downloading is in progress.
- * Old CSV files are also displayed, so delete them under Temporary download files in Factory Settings

5. Click on the file name.

The File Download Dialog Box will be displayed.

6. Click the Save Button in the File Download

Dialog Box.

The Save As Dialog Box will be displayed.

7. Enter the file destination and name in the Save in and File name fields, and click the Save Button.





1

My Comput

-

Open Save Cancel More Info



(12) Upload Manager

The Upload Manager is used when settings data is transferred from PCs to the Web Server Unit.

Location name	System Administration > Upload Manage	er	
Basic Monitoring & Control Advanced Control & Settings System Administration Network Settings R5.232C Settings HU Settings HU Settings HU Settings Project Display Settings Project Display Settings Evident Chamber Log Settings Log Viewest Download Manager Upload Manager Pownload Manager Endor Monitor Map Manager Eactory Settings Reboot	Monitor & Control List Zones Special Days Name Settings (Groups) Name Settings (Global Addresses)	Groups Global Addresses Addresses Name Settings (Patterns)	Patterns Schedule Name Settings (Individual Circuits) Name Settings (Zones)
		Connected	

Uploadable Data File Types

The same file types can be uploaded as the downloadable files in Download Managerexcept *Activity* and *System Errors*.

* Uploading requires the same format as that used for downloading (Refer to Miscellaneous I. Appendix for details).

Operations

1. Select the type of data file.

When a button for a type is clicked in the upper frame, the file name input field will be displayed in the lower frame.

	Gioups	Paueins
Zones	Global Addresses	Schedule
Special Days	Addresses	Name Settings (Individual Circuits
Name Settings (Groups)	Name Settings (Patterns)	Name Settings (Zones)
e Settings (Global Addresses)		
te Settings (Global Äddresses)) Meniter & Centrel List		

2. Enter a file name.

When the Browse... Button is clicked, the Choose File Dialog Box will be displayed. Select a file name and click the **Open** Button. File names can also be entered manually.

3. Click the Upload Button.

For Groups and Patterns, communications to transmit data to the selected LIU's Transmission Unit will be initiated. During this transmission, the message

"Data transfer in progress. Please wait..." will be displayed, as the following: Wait until the message changes to "Connected" and communications are completed.

* Responses may be delayed or not occur during the operation.

* When the Pause Button is clicked, communications to the Transmission Unit are interrupted, but data up to that point is obtained.



General Precautions

- * Microsoft® Excel is recommended to view and edit uploaded files.
- * Uploaded files with the wrong format or values are invalid.
- * CSV files use the Iso-8859-1 character set. Other codes are invalid and will result in the message "File data acquisition from CGI parameter failed."
- * Blanks in data files will cause the actual data to be deleted(* This does not include Groups and Patterns.)
- * Any file name is valid as long as the extension is CSV.

Precautions Specific to Groups and Patterns

- * The Transmission Unit must be connected for uploads.
- * The connected Transmission Unit will be updated with CSV file contents at the time of the upload operation.
- * While data is uploading, uploads from other browsers are disabled.
- * System errors cannot be detected while uploading is in progress.
- * Addresses with descriptions will update data in the Transmission Unit, but those without descriptions will not.
- * One registration takes 20 to 30 seconds. The registration of all data on one Transmission Unit will take approximately 30 minutes.

Precautions Specific to Zones

- * Contents described when uploading will be transferred to the Web Server Unit and registered as "Data read from the Web Server Unit" in Zone Settings. At this point, however, this data is not registered in the NCU or LIU, so manual registration is required by clicking the Submit button in Zone Settings.
- * From upload to completion of registration in the Zones Window, the "Settings inconsistencies" message will be displayed.

Precautions Specific to Special Days

- * The files for the 3 types of special days (day of the week, day of the month and dates) are required at the same time for uploads.
- * The range for Special Days is January 1, 2000 to December 31, 2037, and the day must be within the month of upload plus the following 13 months. Consider these restrictions when changing the clock settings and past data.

Error messages when uploading data files that Contain disconnected LIU numbers

- Monitor & Control List : "Cannot specify unconnected LIU."
- Groups : "Cannot specify unconnected LIU."
- Patterns : "Cannot specify unconnected LIU."
- Zones : "Cannot specify unconnected LIU."
- Global Addresses : "Cannot specify unconnected LIU for global address control."
- Schedule : "Cannot specify unconnected LIU."
 - Address : "Cannot specify unconnected LIU."

(13) Run Command

* This function is for manufacturer maintenance, so descriptions is not provided.

Location name	System Administration > Run Command
Basic Monitoring & Control Advanced Control & Settings	Command:
System Administration Network Settings Authentication Date & Time Settings RS-332C Settings	Command Monitor: [WSU->NCU] [05/10/31 02:39:09]<\$d401>
LIU Settings Page Reload Settings Project Display Settings System Error Monitor Log Settings	[WSU<-NCU] [05/10/31 02:39:03]<4d3010JIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII
Log Viewer Download Manager Upload Manager Run Command	<pre><#d1010QIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII</pre>
Map Manager Factory Settings Reboot	<pre><#44010111111111111111111111111111111111</pre>
	Update
	Connected.

(14) Data Monitor

The remaining storage capacity for saving data in the Web Server Unit can be checked.

Location name	System Administration > Data Monitor
Basic Monitoring & Control Advanced Control & Settings System Administration Network Settings Authentication Date & Time Settings RS-320: Settings LUI Settings Project Display Settings Project Display Settings Project Display Settings System Error Monitor Log Viewer Download Manager Upload Manager Upload Manager Encommand Data Monitor Map Manager Factory Settings Reboot	Device: /dev/mtdblock/4 Directory: /mtt/ffb2 Used Space: 7340 KB (7.2 MB) Umused Space: 9044 KB (8.8 MB) Capacity: 16384 KB (16.0 MB) 45%
	Connected

Used Space

: Total memory space used by data and the system

Unused Space

: Total unused memory space that can be used for data

Supplemental Information

* Creation of map data requires separate special software. (Refer to II. Creation and Administration of Map Data for details.)

(15) Maps Manager

The Maps Manager is used to delete map data saved in the Web Server Unit.

Location name	System Administration > Map Ma	nager		
Basic Monitoring & Control		Delete		
Advanced Control &	Item No.	Name	Delete	
ettings	01	Map 1		
<u>vstem Administration</u> Network Settings	02	Map 2		
Authentication	16	Map 16		
RS-232C Settings	-	Clean up (delete all files that are not recognized as usable for maps)		
Flojk, Upper Settings Log Strings Log Virtwer Download Manager Upload Manager Run Command Data Monitor Map Manager Factory Settings Reboot				
		Connected		

- Item No. : Serial number of maps
- Name : Name of maps registered in *Project Display Settings*.

1. Select the item to delete.

Select (\mathbf{V}) the checkboxes of items to delete.

2. Click the Delete Button.

The data for all selected maps will be deleted.

Supplemental Information

- * Creation of map data requires separate special software. (Refer to II. Creation and Administration of Map Data for details.)
- * The name for the map data file transferred from the special software is fixed as *iiu_screenXX*.*. However, it is still possible that invalid files (file with an invalid file names) be saved in the Web Server Unit. In that case, select (☑) the *Delete* checkbox in the *Clean up* row at the bottom and click the **Delete** Button to delete those undesirable files.
- * Image files used in maps cannot be deleted because their use may be shared. As a result, these files can only be deleted in batch from the Factory Settings page. Therefore, consider the capacity management when using a large amount of image data.

(16) Factory Settings

Settings data can be initialized or deleted to reset it to factory default settings.

* Once this operation is done, the lost data cannot be recovered.

Location name	System Administration > Factory Settings		
Basic Monitoring & Control Advanced Control & Settings System Administration Network Settings	Submit To enable changes, please rebeat Go to Reboot Page)	
Authentication	Maps	Delete	
RS-232C Settings	Monitor & Control List Settings	Initialize 🗌	
LIU Settings Page Reload Settings	Address Setting	Delete	
Project Display Settings	Global Address Setting	Delete	
Log Settings	Schedule Settings	Delete	
Log Viewer Download Manager	Special Day Settings	Delete	
Upload Manager	Astronomical Clock Settings	Initialize 🗌	
Run Command Data Monitor	Name Settings	Initialize 🗌	
Map Manager	Network Settings	Initialize 🗌	
Reboot	Authentication	Initialize	
	RS-232C Settings	Initialize 🗌	
	LIU Settings	Initialize 🗌	
	Page Reload Settings	Initialize 🗌	
	Project Display Settings	Initialize 🗌	
	Log Settings	Initialize	
	Connected		

List of Items that can be initialized/deleted

•	Maps	: Map data transferred from The Screen Builder. All map data will be deleted in one batch operation. For details on deleting
		by window, refer to Maps Manager page.
•	Monitor & Control List Settings	: List setting data registered in Monitor & Control List Settings page. Data will be initialized.
•	Address Settings	: Address Settings data assigned to maps symbols in Address Settings page. Data will be deleted.
•	Global Address Settings : Global	address settings data registered in Global Address Settings page. Data will be deleted.
•	Schedule Settings	: Programs settings data registered in Programs Settings page. Data will be initialized.
•	Special Days	: Special days settings data registered in Special Days page. All Special Days Settings will be deleted in one batch operation.
•	Astronomical Clock Settings	: Location, longitude, latitude time zone and daylight savings settings data registered in Astronomical Clock page. Data will be initialized.
•	Names Settings	: Names Settings data registered in Names Settings page. All Names Settings data will be initialized in one batch operation.
•	Network Settings	: Network Settings data registered in Network Settings page. Date will be initialized.
Authentication : Authentication settings data registered in Authentication page. Data will be initialized and execution will transfer to the start (Login) Window. : NCU connection Settings data registered in RS-232C RS-232C Connection Settings Settings page. Data will be initialized. LIU Settings : LIU connection and zone settings registered in LIU Settings page and Zone Settings page. Data will be initialized. (also covers zone settings) (LIU Settings disabled and Zone Settings unregistered) Page Reload Settings : Page Reload Settings data registered in Page Reload Settings page. Data will be initialized. **Project Display Settings** : Project Display Settings data registered in Project Display Settings page. Data will be initialized. Log Settings : Logs Settings data registered in Logs Settings... page. Data will be initialized. Activity Log (Today) :Current day activity log enteries (Activity Log). Data will be deleted. Activity Log (Past) : All activity Log entries except current day ones (Activity Log). Data will be deleted. System Error Log (Today) : Current day system error log entries (System Error Log). Data will be deleted. System Error Log (Past) : All system error log entries except current day ones (System Error Log). Data will be deleted. Temporary download files : Remaining temporary files created when downloading (pattern and group settings) patterns and group settings data DownloadManager page. The original data for pattern and group settings is stored in the Transmission Units. Therefore, temporary files is generated each time the data is downloaded. Those temporary files are not deleted automatically and remain in the Web Server Unit. Data will be deleted.

How to initialized/deleted items

- **1. Select data to be initialized/deleted.** Select the checkbox (☑) for the data.
- 2. Click the Submit Button.
- 3. Move to the Reboot Page and click the Reboot Button.

Click the Go to Reboot Page Button or select Reboot from the menu bar.

* If you continue operations without rebooting, unexpected operations may occur, so be sure to reboot.

(17) Reboot

Reboot is used to restart the Web Server Unit from the browser.

* Some settings pages require rebooting to enable the submited parameters.



Settings that Require Rebooting

- Network Settings
- Project Display Settings
- RS-232C Connection Settings
- Factory Settings

1. Click the Reboot Button.

2. Select OK or Cancel.

Click the **OK** Button in the Okay to Reboot? Dialog Box to execute. Click the **Cancel** Button to cancel.

3. Wait for rebooting to complete.

The Web Server Unit will start to reboot. During this process, messages such as "Please wait for a moment..." and "Initializing" will be displayed in the status bar. Wait until the process is completed and the message in the status bar changes to "Connected."

Supplemental Information

- * The display within the Main Frame remains the same even when rebooting is completed.
- * If the unit is rebooted while "*Performing setup*" status being activated (Status Bar Manager), "*Performing setup*" status will be deactivated after rebooting.
- * If another PC attempts connection during rebooting, the Status Bar may not display anything because Java applets cannot be loaded. In that case, wait for a moment and then try to reconnect.



Location name	System Administration > Reboot
Danic Manitoring & Central	
Map 1	Rebooting System
Select	
Advanced Control & Tethigt	When the status for shows the message "Computed," plane go to the data with the second to the second of " plane go to the data and some.
Epsten Administration	

II. Creation and Management of Maps

Lighting circuit status can be monitored and controlled visually on a map screen. For example, display and operation are possible on a window displaying a map depicting the physical layout of the facilities. In this manual, a window specially drawn for a facility is called a map.



Maps are accessible from Basic Monitoring & Control..., but original map data must be registered first, and configured, or the maps drop down menu itself will not be displayed. Map data is created with special drawing software and transferred to the Web Server Unit.

(1) Drawing Software (Sold Separately)

Users must purchase the following product separately to create and manage map data for lighting control. "WR3339-801 FULL-2WAY Screen Builder for Web Server Unit"

- * Refer to the specifications and the user's manual for operating environment and other information.
- (2) Map Data File
 - Format

: Proprietary format

- Number of maps that can be managed : 99 max.
- * Window data created in excess of the maximum number of maps cannot be transferred to the Web Server Unit.
- Map data volume

: Approximately 8 MB (* Web Server Unit available storage space)

- * Map data files to be transferred to the Web Server Unit have the following extensions:
- *.html, *.ezs,*.hsl,*.hpf (iiu_screenXX; where "XX" is the map number, from 01 to 99),*.jpg,*.gif
- * The number of maps that can be stored (transferred) will decrease as the data per map increases. It is recommended to verify the web server unit unused memory capacity in Data Monitor before adding map data to the Web Server Unit.
- * Data in Web Server Unit memory can be deleted in: Data Manager or Factory Settings.

(3) Monitoring and Control Symbols

Buttons (symbols) that have special functions to process lighting circuits specific to the FULL-2WAY Remote Control system are used on the windows.

If these symbols are placed on the maps, they may be assigned addresses of FULL-2WAY Remote Controls from Address Settings on the Web browser, providing functionality equivalent to switches.

(4) Transferring Data Files

Data files are transferred between the PC on which the map drawing software is running and the Web Server Unit via Ethernet. The PC for drawing maps must therefore be connected to the Ethernet, meaning that if network configuration of the map-drawing PC is necessary, it must be completed beforehand.

Transmission of map data to the Web Server Unit is initiated from the map drawing software, but the following preparations must be followed on the Web Server Unit before the transmission.

Refer to II. Network Connection and Configuration (Installation) in Installation Section for changes to user defined parameters and use with default values.

1. Set pin 4 of the DIP switch on the Web Server Unit to 1.

* In normal operation, this pin is set to 0.

2. Click the Reboot Button.

When rebooting has been completed, the Web Server Unit will be ready to receive data.

3. Start the map drawing software and open the map data file already edited (compiled).

4. Transfer to the Web Server Unit in the Transmit to Server Menu.

- * Refer to the user's manual of the drawing software for operating details.
- * Data files transferred to the Web Server Unit are not editable, and the Web Server Unit does not have a function to transfer them to PCs. Therefore, original data that can be edited with drawing software (*.had and accessed image files) should be backed up by the user.

5. Return pin 4 of the DIP switch on the Web Server Unit to 0.

When the map data has been transferred, set the switch to the normal position.

* If it is not returned to the normal position, the communications security level will be lower.

6. Click the Reboot Button.

Wait for the Web Server Unit to reboot.

- 7. Open the Web browser and log in with the system administration rights.
- 8. Enable maps display in Project Display Settings under System Administration...

Enable the display of transferred map data in the window.

This step will enable display of the maps pull-down menu in the Menu Frame.

- * If network settings have been changed for connection to the map drawing software, reset the parameters.
- (5) Deleting Data Files

Map data can be deleted in the Web browser on the Web Server Unit.

(Refer to Maps Manager or Factory Settings for details.)

This section provides information on the system advanced control and settings features.

I. Advanced Controls & Settings

(P. 71)

I. Advanced Controls & Settings

The following functions can be used when logged in as the advanced control & settings user or administrator.

- (1) Monitor & Control List Settings.
- (2) Address Settings
- (3) Advanced Control
 - (a) Groups
 - (b) Patterns
 - (c) Zones
 - (d) Global Addresses
- (4) Schedule Settings
 - (a) Programs
 - (b) Program Monitor
 - (c) Special Days
 - (d) Special Day Calendar
 - (e) Astronomical Clock
- (5) Name Settings
 - (a) Individual Circuits
 - (b) Groups
 - (c) Patterns
 - (d) Zones
 - (e) Global Addresses
- (6) Dimmer Settings
 - (a) Individual Circuits
 - (b) Groups
- (7) Status Bar Manager

(1) Monitor & Control List Settings

The light circuit addresses that are used frequently in monitoring and control can be selected and displayed in a List.

* List under Basic Monitoring & Control can be used to register addresses to be displayed in a list if the user is logged in as the advanced user or administrator (address registration cannot be performed if the user is logged in as a basic monitoring user or basic monitoring & control user).

Refer to II. Operations on Monitor & Control List PageT in Monitoring & Control Section for details.

Location name	Basic Monitoring & Control > List								
Basic Monitoring & Control Map 2 💌	001-016	017-032 033-048 049-064 065-080 081-09 145-160 161-176 177-192 193-208 209-22					096 097-1 224 225-2]	
Select	No 001		Name Individual Circuit 00-1					Action Edit	
Advanced Control & Settings	002		Individua Individua	l Circuit 00- l Circuit 00-	2 3		ON	Edit	
System Administration	004	Individual Circuit 00-4					OFF	Edit	
	005	Group 001 Group 002				ON OFF	Edit		
	007	Group 003				OFF	Edit		
	008	Group 004				ON	Edit		
	009		Pat	tern 01			Mismatch	Edit	
	010		Pat	tern 02			Mismatch	Edit	
	011							Add New	
	012							Add New	
	Connected								

Specifications

- Address types that can be registered
- Number of addresses displayable in a page

Display

- No
- Name

- : Individual circuits, Dimmers, Groups, Patterns, Zones, Global Addresses
- Number of addresses that can be registered : 256 max. (Address types can be mixed.)
 - : 16 max. (16 pages)
 - : Serial number (001 to 256)
 - : Names registered in Name Settings

(i) Registering a New List

1. Click the Add New... Button of the item to applicable list number.

The Address Setting Dialog Box will be displayed.

2. Select an address.

Select the address type in the Type field, LIU number in the LIU field, and address number in the Address field of the Address Setting Dialog Box.

3. Click the Submit Button.

The address will be added to the table under List.

	Address setting	
No.:	7	
Type:	Individual Circuit	-
LIU:	01 💌	
Address:	00 - 1	•
Submit	Modify Name	Cance

(ii) Changing the List Contents

- **1. Click the Edit... Button for the applicable item in the List.** An address setting dialog Box will be displayed.
- 2. Select another address.

Enter the information in the Type, LIU, and Address fields again.

3. Change the name of the circuit.

If the Modify Name Button is clicked, the Name Setting Dialog Box will be displayed.

- * Enter the name in the *Name* field. The name must be 32 characters long or less.
- * Non Iso-8859-1 (CP932) characters will be corrupted.

4. Click the Submit Button.

The change will be reflected in the list.

* Names can also be modified under Name Settings... menu in Advanced Control & Setting.

(iii) Deleting an Item in the List

1. Click the Edit... Button for the item in the list to delete.

The Address Setting Dialog Box will be displayed.

2. Click the Delete Button.

The item will be deleted from the list.

	Address sett	ing	
No.	1		
Type	Individual Circuit		•
LIU	01 💌		
Address	00 - 1		•
Submit	Modify Name	Delete	Cancel

	Name s	etting
Type:	Individual Circuit	
LIU:	01	
lress:	00 - 1	
ame:	Individua100-1	
	Submit	Cancel

(2) Address Settings

A symbol for lighting circuit monitoring on a page that was created with map drawing software will not function unless it is assigned an address. This setting page is used to assign an address to each symbol on the map.

(Refer to II. Creation and Management of map data) and Monitoring & Control Section III. Operation on Maps.)



Selecting the Map Number

Select a map number under *Address Settings* in Advanced Control & Settings and click the **Select** Button.

* The menu will be displayed if the checkbox for the map number in Project Display Settings in Systems Administration is selected (🗹) after the map data has been transferred to the Web Server Unit.

Applicable Symbols (Icons)

Addresses can be set for the following symbols:

- Normal Circuit Symbols
 : 256 max. (total of individual circuits, dimmers, groups,
- Zone Symbols

patterns, and global addresses) : 40 max.

- * Addresses are not directly assigned to name symbols (generic and zone) and dimmer level symbols.
- * Name symbols use the settings for normal circuit symbols or zone circuit symbols defined with the drawing software using symbol numbers. These definitions cannot be changed on a browser page.
- * Dimmer level symbols (level gauge) use the settings for normal circuit symbols defined with the drawing software using symbol numbers. These definitions cannot be changed on a browser page.
- * Dimmer level symbols apply to individual circuits, dimmer, and groups.
- * Dimmer level symbols, with their assigned normal circuit symbol addresses set to patterns or global addresses, are not equipped with level monitoring function.
- * A symbol with multiple symbol numbers can be assigned the same address.
- * Name symbols and dimmer level symbols can be set to share symbol numbers with monitor & control symbols on the drawing software. If so, their circuit address values will change in sync with those set for monitor & control symbols. Symbol numbers, however, cannot be changed on a Web browser



(b) Zone Status Symbols



(i) Registering a New Address

1. Select a symbol (icon).

Address setting dialog Box will be displayed.

* Symbols without symbol numbers assigned (icon numbers) cannot be selected. Symbol numbers must be assigned using the drawing software before map data is transmitted to the Web Server Unit.

2. Select the address type (generic circuit symbols).

- * Zone circuit symbols are always set to Zone.
- 3. Select the LIU number for the system (excluding global addresses and zones).
- 4. Select an address number.

5. Click the Submit Button.

The changes will be applied to the map.

(ii) Change the address parameters.

1. Select a symbol (icon).

A dialog box will be displayed showing the current values.

2. Click the Modify Button.

The Address Setting Dialog Box will be displayed (* The remaining procedure is the same as for registering a new address).

- 3. Select the address type (generic circuit symbols).
 - * Zone circuit symbols are always set to Zone.
- 4. Select LIU number for the system (excluding global addresses and zones).
- 5. Select an address number.
- 6. Click the Submit Button.

The changes will be applied to the map.



Submit Cancel



Submit Cancel

(3) Advanced Control

Advanced Control can be used to monitor and control the circuit status of all addresses in a table (list). This menu is available to a user logged in as the advanced user or administrator only. There are no parameters to set on this page.

Refer to Monitor & Control Section IV. Advanced Control Operations for details on window operations for monitoring and controlling.

(4) Group Settings

Group Settings is used to configure group control settings for Transmission Units of each system.

Location name	Advanced Control & Settings > Group S	Settings	
Basic Monitoring & Control			LIU No. 01 💙 Select
Advanced Control & Settings	Address	Name	Action
Map 1	001	Group 001	Edit
Select	002	Group 002	Edit
Advanced Control	003	Group 003	Edit
Pattern Settings Zona Sattings	004	Group 004	Edit
Global Address Settings Schedule Settings	005	Group 005	Edit
Name Settings Dimmer Settings	006	Group 006	Edit
Status Bar Manager	007	Group 007	Edit
System Administration	008	Group 008	Edit
	009	Group 009	Edit
	010	Group 010	Edit
	011	Group 011	Edit
	012	Group 012	Edit
		Connected	

1. Select the system LIU number.

- * Select a **LIU No.** and click the **Select** Button. The registration status of the Transmission Unit will be shown. Only LIU numbers that have been registered in LIU connection settings can be selected.
- * Settings are saved in the Transmission Unit. Therefore LIUs and NCUs must be connected when these parameters are written. (Those parameters are not stored on the Web Server Unit.)
- * When the Web Server Unit has booted with local devices and channels in error status, registered parameters cannot be obtained, and they all will be shown as **Add new**. If the system errors are then corrected, the **Add new** indications will not be refreshed. The menu command must be selected to refresh the page after the system becomes normal.

Location name	Advanced Control & Setting	s > Group Settings		
Basic Monitoring & Control Advanced Control & Settings		LIU No. : 01 / Group : 001 / Name : Group 001	Submit	
Address Settings Map 1	Individual Circuit Address	Name	Status	Timer
Select	00-1	Individual Circuit 00-1	Unselect 💌	
Advanced Control	00-2	Individual Circuit 00-2	Unselect 💌	
Pattern Settings Zana Sattings	00-3	Individual Circuit 00-3	Unselect 💌	
<u>Clobal Address Settings</u> Sahadula Sattings	00-4	Individual Circuit 00-4	Unselect 💌	
Name Settings Dimmer Settings	01-1	Individual Circuit 01-1	Select 💌	
Status Bar Manager	01-2	Individual Circuit 01-2	Unselect 💌	 On-timer for 30 s
System Administration	01-3	Individual Circuit 01-3	Unselect 💌	On-timer for 1 min On-timer for 5 min
	01-4	Individual Circuit 01-4	Unselect 💌	On-timer for 60 min On-timer for 120 min
	02-1	Individual Circuit 02-1	Unselect 💌	Off-delay by 30 s Off-delay by 1 min
	02-2	Individual Circuit 02-2	Unselect 💌	Off-delay by 5 min
	02-3	Individual Circuit 02-3	Unselect 💌	
	02-4	Individual Circuit 02-4	I Inselect 🗸	
		Connected		

2. Select an address number.

Click the **Add new...** or **Edit...** Button for the address to register. The communications for the Web Server Unit to obtain registered data from Transmission Units will start and the window will switch to an editable page when communications have been completed.

- * "Data transfer in progress. Please wait..." will be displayed in the status bar until the editable window opens (less than a minute).
- * Confirmation and registration from another browser will be disabled while the Transmission Unit is communicating with the Web Server Unit.

3. Select addresses (circuits) to control.

Select the row number for individual circuit and dimmer address (circuit) for which to perform group control (batch ON/OFF control).

 Content
 : Exclude or Include for group control

 Timer
 : Timer control is enabled when included is selected. The following values can be applied up to 8 circuits per group.:

 On-timer for 30 s, 1 min, 5 min, 60 min, or 120 min

 Off-delay by 30 s, 1 min, 5 min, or – (circuits without timers)

 * On-timer
 : Turns OFF when specified time elapsed after ON control.

* Off-delay : Stays ON for specified time after OFF control and then turns OFF.

* If **Include All** or **Exclude All** Button is clicked, all individual circuit and dimmer addresses can be selected with identical parameters.

* Select Group Settings from the Menu Frame to return to address selection page.

4. Click the Submit Button.

Communications to transfer settings data from Web Server Unit to Transmission Units will start and switch to address selection page when communications have been completed.

- * "Data transfer in progress. Please wait..." will be displayed in the status bar until the editor window opens (less than a minute).
- * Confirmation and registration from another browser will be disabled while the Transmission Unit is communicating with the Web Server Unit.
- * System errors cannot be detected while transmission is in progress.
- * If registration (setting) fails due to system errors, an error warning will be displayed. The user must repeat the data submission after the system returns to normal condition.

(5) Pattern Settings

Pattern Settings is used to configure pattern control settings for Transmission Units of each system.

Location name	Advanced Control & Settings > Pattern	Settings	
Basic Monitoring & Control			LIU Ne. 01 🗸 Select
Advanced Control & Settings	Address	Name	Action
Map 1	01	Pattern 01	Edit
Select	02	Pattern 02	Edit
Advanced Control	03	Pattern 03	Edit
Pattern Settings Zone Settings	04	Pattern 04	Edit
Global Address Settings Schedule Settings	05	Pattern 05	Edit
Name Settings Dimmer Settings	06	Pattern 06	Edit
Status Bar Manager	07	Pattern 07	Edit
System Administration	08	Pattern 08	Edit
	09	Pattern 09	Edit
	10	Pattern 10	Edit
	11	Pattern 11	Edit
	12	Pattern 12	Edit
		Connected	

1. Select system LIU number.

Select a **LIU No.** and click the Select Button. The registration status of the Transmission Unit will be shown.

- * Only LIU numbers that have been registered in LIU Settings can be selected. Settings are saved in the Transmission Unit.
- * LIUs and NCUs must be connected when these parameters are written. (These parameters are not stored in the Web Server Unit.)
- * When the Web Server Unit has booted with local devices and channels in error status, registered parameters cannot be obtained, and they all will be shown as **Add new**. If the system errors are then corrected, the **Add new** indications will not be refreshed. The menu command must to be selected to refresh the page after the system becomes normal.

Location name	Advanced Control & Settings > Pattern Settings								
Basic Monitoring & Control Advanced Control & Settings		LIU No.: 01 / Pattern : 01 / Name : Pattern 01 All ON All ON All C	Submit	Fade Time: No Fade 💌					
Address Settings Map 1	Individual Circuit Address	Name	Status	Timer	Dimmer level (1 to 128)				
Select	00-1	Individual Circuit 00-1	OFF 💌						
Advanced Control Group Settings	00-2	Individual Circuit 00-2	OFF 💌						
Pattern Settings Zone Settings	00-3	Individual Circuit 00-3	ON 💌	- 🖌	128				
Global Address Settings Schedule Settings	00-4	Individual Circuit 00-4	ON 💌	- 🗸	128				
Name Settings Dimmer Settings Status Pas Manager	01-1	Individual Circuit 01-1	ON 💌	On-timer for 30 s	128				
System Administration	01-2	Individual Circuit 01-2	ON 💌	On-timer for 5 min	128				
	01-3	Individual Circuit 01-3	ON 💌	On-timer for 120 min	128				
	01-4	Individual Circuit 01-4	ON 💌	Off-delay by 5 min	128				
	02-1	Individual Circuit 02-1	ON 💌		128				
	02-2	Individual Circuit 02-2	ON 💌	•	128				
	02-3	Individual Circuit 02-3	ON 💌	•	128				
		Conn	ected						

2. Select an address number.

Click the **Add new...** or **Edit...** button for the address to register. Communications for the Web Server Unit to obtain registered data from Transmission Units will start and the window will switch to an editor page when communications have been completed.

- * "Data transfer in progress. Please wait..." will be displayed in the status bar until the editor window opens (less than a minute).
- * Confirmation and registration from another browser will be disabled while the Transmission Unit is communicating with the Web Server Unit.

3. Select addresses (circuits) to control.

Select the row number for individual circuit and dimmer address (circuit) for which to perform pattern control (control to replay the registration scene).

Content	: Exclude from pattern control or Circuit ON/OFF					
Timer	: Timer control is enabled when ON. The following values can beapplied up to					
	8 circuits per pattern.					
	On-timer for 30 s, 1 min, 5 min, 60 min, or 120 min					
	Off-delay by 30 s, 1 min, 5 min, or (circuits without timers)					
	* On-timer : Turns OFF when specified time elapses after turning ON.					
	* Off-delay : When patterns match, lighting turns ON first and then OFF					
	control is performed, turning OFF after the timer has timed out. This behavior					
	appears exactly the same as the On-timer. Off-delay control is selected with					
	timer value as ON .					
	* Dimmer level: Enter the dimmer level for ON status.					
Range of values	: 1 to 128 for individual circuits addresses) and 1 to 7 for dimmer addresses.					
	The smaller the number the brighter the light will be					

(Refer to Miscellaneous I. Appendix for specifications of dimmers.)

Devices not used as dimmers but as relay controls should be set to 128.

* Clicking All ON, All OFF, or All Ignore Button set all individual circuit and dimmer addresses to the same content.

* By selecting Patterns Settings in the menu frame, it is possible to return to Address selection page.

4. Select the fade.

Fade

: Time it takes to converge from point of control to the specified dimmer level specified in 3. Instant (no fade), 3 s, 6 s, 1 min

5. Click the Submit Button.

Communication to transfer settings data from Web Server Unit to Transmission Units will start and switch to address selection page when it is complete.

- * "Data transfer in progress. Please wait..." will be displayed until the editor window opens (less than a minute).
- * Confirmation and registration from another browser will disabled while the Transmission Unit is communicating with the Web Server Unit.

* System errors cannot be detected while transmission is in progress. If registration fails due to system errors, an error warning will be displayed.

* The user must repeat the registration after the system returns to normal condition.

(6) Zone Settings

Zone Settings is used to configure zone control settings. (Refer to Zone for details on zone settings.)

Location name	Advanced Control & Settings > Zone Settings												
Basic Monitoring & Control Advanced Control & Settings Address Settings	/	Perform verifica	Web Serv tion of zone :	er Uni setting Subi	t 💌 (s at i mit	bo	Select ot time:	⊙ Yes (⊃ No				^
Select	No.	Name	LIU No.		Mode	в	Pattern A	Pattern B	Pattern C	Pattern D	Pattern E	Pattern F	
Advanced Control	1	Zone 01	1	~	1	~	1	2	3	4			
Group Settings Pattern Settings	2	Zone 02	1	~ 2	2	~	12	6					
Zone Settings Global Address Settings	3	Zone 03	1	• 6	i	~	10	15	20	21	22	23	
Schedule Settings Name Settings	4	Zone 04	Select LIU	~									
Status Bar Manager	5	Zone 05	Select LIU	~									
System Administration	6	Zone 06	Select LIU	~									
	7	Zone 07	Select LIU	~									
	8	Zone 08	Select LIU	~									
	9	Zone 09	Select LIU	~									
	10	Zone 10	Select LIU	~									
	11	Zone 11	Select LIU	~									
	12	Zone 12	Select LIU	~									
	13	Zone 13	Select LIU	~									
	14	Zone 14	Select LIU	~									
	15	Zone 15	Select LIU	~									~
			(Conne	cted								

1. Select the Unit.

Retrieve the original data to edit on the browser by selecting **Web Server Unit / NCU**. Click the **Select** button to start retrieval.

- * When this page is selected from the menu, data on the Web Server Unit will be automatically read and displayed.
- * Registered data will be saved in the Web Server Unit, NCU, and LIU. Therefore, when this process is in progress, LIU and NCU must be physically connected.

2. Select the LIU number.

Select the LIU No. of the zone addresses (up to 96) to work on.

- * Only LIU numbers that have been registered in LIU connection settings can be selected.
- * Select *Select LIU* for zone addresses not to work on.

3. Select the mode.

Select the number of states mode to assign patterns to one zone. Six is the maximum number of states.

Mode : 2...ON/OFF

- 3...ON/OFF/Pattern 1
- 4...ON/OFF/Pattern 1/Pattern 2
- 6...ON/OFF/Pattern 1/Pattern 2/Pattern 3/Pattern 4

4. Enter the pattern address number to assign to each zone status.

The pattern number selected for the LIU system (Transmission Unit) in **2** is set to the same zone number (line).

- Range of number : 1 to 72
- The same pattern number cannot be set more than once in the same LIU system regardless of zone numbers.

5. Repeat 2. to 4. for other addresses.

6. Click the Submit Button.

The contents shown on the page will be registered in the Web Server Unit, NCU, and LIU.

- * If registration is performed during successive control operations or system errors, such as an NCU interconnection errors, occur, processing will be interrupted due to timeouts and: "System error occurred or communications with FULL-2WAY system congested with other controls" will be displayed in the status bar.
- * If the Web Server Unit is shut down while registration communications are in progress, rebooting will still result in unsuccessful registration. Reboot NCU and LIU.

Zone Setting Data Integrity

- Zone settings are stored in the Web Server Unit, NCU, and LIU. If they are not identical, monitoring and control will not function properly.
- When connecting to a NCU and LIU that underwent zone setting separately, their settings must be checked for integrity.
- When **NCU** is selected for the unit and the **Select** Button clicked, the Web Server Unit will obtain data from the NCU and compare the data with its own. If they do not match, an error message, "Settings inconsistencies," will be displayed in the status bar.

Edit the settings and click the **Submit** Button. The same data will be registered in both devices, correcting the integrity problem.

 Also, editing LIU Settings will delete zone settings on the Web Server Unit and NCU. Settings on the LIU, however, are not deleted at this stage. Therefore, if data is manually read from the NCU, data on the NCU will be read through the LIU resulting in setting inconsistencies.

Zone settings stored in LIUs disabled in LIU Settings are not compared.

- * If LIUs are enabled in LIU Settings but not physically connected, a local bus error (system error) will occur.
- * If this occurs, zone settings will be registered in connected LIUs but disconnected LIUs that are enabled will result in errors.

Either connect the relevant LIUs or modify the LIU connection settings.

Perform zones configuration verification at boot time: Yes/No will determine whether comparison is automatically performed or not when booting. "Boot time" includes turning ON the power, rebooting, and recovery from NCU connection errors. No function is provided to perform periodical comparison. Therefore, if No is selected, no mismatch will be detected until reading from the NCU is manually performed from the menu, because even if setting data does not match, the system keeps on functioning using the setting data on the Web Server Unit.

Comparison of zone settings takes about a minute and a half at most, so it is recommended to select **Yes**. Under normal operating conditions, comparison need not be performed once the zone settings are registered.

When zone settings are uploaded to the Web Server Unit in Upload Manager page, the data is
registered as the settings for the Web Server Unit but not for NCU and LIU yet. It will thus be
necessary to register them manually by moving to the zone setting page and clicking the Submit
Button.

Whenever zone settings are uploaded, error message "Setting data inconsistencies" will be displayed in the status bar.

Requirements for Zone Operations (Conditions on the Contents of Patterns)

In zones, multiple conditions in one zone (within address range of the circuit) are assigned as patterns, but in principle, patterns contained in one zone should have the following characteristics, otherwise

monitoring and control may produce unexpected results:

- * Control areas for the patterns must be the same. (That is, the areas **excluded** from pattern settings must be the same.)
- * The contents for patterns must all be distinct. (Additionally, ON and OFF must be suitably set in the pattern.)

Factory Settings

- Zones configuration verification at boot time
- LIU No.

: No

: Select LIU (for all zone addresses)

Zone Controls

(i) Concept of Zones

Zones are a method of monitoring and control in terms of preset lighting patterns which considers the state a certain zone (area) must be in respect to the state it currently is in.

The states defined here correspond to pattern controls, i.e., zones are controlled areas to which associated patterns are applied.

If only one state is defined, it is identical to pattern control, but zone control is characterized where one address can define multiple states. That is, it functions analogous to pattern control switching integrated into one pattern.



Lighting Status of Lighting Control Area

(ii) Requirements for Patterns (Principles)

The areas of all associated patterns must be the same as the areas of the zone.

One zone must consist of pattern addresses for the same Transmission Unit system.

Each pattern address must have a unique pattern setting.

The pattern settings must match the name indicating the zone (ON or OFF).

(iii) Modes and States

The number of states defined for a zone can be selected from 2, 3, 4, and 6 and is called a mode. A different mode can be selected for each zone address.

Number of zone addresses : 96

Mode

- : 2...Pattern A/ Pattern B/ (Pattern C *only for monitoring)
- 3...Pattern A/ Pattern B/ Pattern C
- 4...Pattern A/ Pattern B/ Pattern C/ Pattern D
- 6...Pattern A/ Pattern B/ Pattern C/ Pattern D/ Pattern E/ Pattern F

* There also is indeterminate state. While the status of a pattern has not been checked, the status for the zone is not determined. This also can be defined as a state.

(iv) Definitions of Status and Comparison

The LIU verifies zone status according to the status of the corresponding pattern (called "pattern A" through "pattern F" in this description).

Pattern A	: Corresponding pattern A matches (ON)
Pattern B	: Corresponding pattern B matches (ON)
Pattern C	: Corresponding pattern C matches (ON) or none of corresponding
	patterns A through F matches (OFF) (Other status).
	* If zone status does not match any registered pattern, the output will
	be the same as for pattern C, so be careful of interpretation in
	modes 3 through 6.
	* In mode 2, pattern C is used only for Other status.
Pattern D	: Corresponding pattern D matches (ON)
Pattern E	: Corresponding pattern E matches (ON)
Pattern F	: Corresponding pattern F matches (ON)
Indeterminate	: More than one of corresponding patterns A through F is indeterminate.
	* Indeterminate status occurs when operational status has not been
	checked after the status of addresses has just been destroyed, such
	as after booting.
	* Blank status of pattern settings results from checking addresses and
	is different from indeterminate status.
	* If a zone operation results in matches (ON) for more than one
	pattern (such as redundant pattern contents, one pattern including part
	of another, or indicating other area) zone matching will return various
	statuses (including indeterminate). Therefore, take extra care when
	setting pattern controls associated with zone status as the basis for
	operation.

* Comparisons of zones that include blank pattern numbers will be compared excluding blank patterns or set to pattern C.

* Zone comparison is performed by comparing pattern status, so if all pattern status included in the zone change in sync with local controls, pattern C may be returned while the pattern statuses are being checked one by one.

(7) Global Address Settings

Global Address Settings is used to configure global controls. (Refer to Global Address Settings for details on global address settings.)

Location name	Advanced Control & Settings > Global	Address Settings	
Basic Monitoring & Control	No.	Name	Action
Advanced Control & Settings	01	Global Address 01	Edit
Address Settings	02	Global Address 02	Edit
Select	03	Global Address 03	Edit
Advanced Control	04	Global Address 04	Edit
Group Settings Pattern Settings	05	Global Address 05	Edit
Zone Settings Global Address Settings	06	Global Address 06	Edit
Schedule Settings	07	Global Address 07	Add New
Status Bar Manager	08	Global Address 08	Add New
System Administration	09	Global Address 09	Add New
	10	Global Address 10	Add New
	11	Global Address 11	Add New
	12	Global Address 12	Add New
	13	Global Address 13	Add New
		Connected	

1. Select an address.

Click the **Add new...** or **Edit...** Button for the global address (32 maximum). The page will move to the Global Address Setting Page.

Location name	Advance	dranced Control & Settings > Global Addresses Settings															
Basic Monitoring & Control	1	No.				Nam	0				T;	уре		Adda	ess		ON Status Display Rule
Concord Imapo I		01				evex	<i>i</i>				Individual	Circuit	~	00-1	~		AND 💌
List			LIU No.														
Advanced Control & Settings		1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	13	14	15	16
Address Settings																	
Select Map3 V		17	18	19	20	21	22	23	24	25	26	27	28	29	30	31	
Advanced Control Group Settings Pattern Settings Zone Settings								Cance	1) (Si	Jbmit	delete						

2. Select the addresses to control.

Select the *type* and *address* of the addresses to control (monitor) as a group.

3. Select the LIU numbers.

Select the (☑) checkboxes of the corresponding LIU.

- * Only LIU numbers selected and registered in LIU Settings can be selected.
- * If LIU numbers are unselected in LIU Settings after being selected here, settings will remain and the control commands will be sent.

4. Select the ON status display rule.

For ON Status Display Rule (Logical AND or Logical OR), select the logic to use to determine the status for the global address based on multiple system statuses.

5. Click the Submit Button.

Settings in the window will be registered in the Web Server Unit.

- * If the **Cancel** Button is clicked, registration will be aborted and you'll return to the Address Setting Page.
- * If the **Delete** Button is clicked, the contents of the global addresses will be reset to *blank*.

Cautions on Setting Schedules

- * If operations for global addresses in scheduling Programs include **OFF** controls, such as **ON-OFF**, patterns cannot be selected for global address setting. Pattern control will be restricted to **ON (match)**. Scheduling in Programs must be changed first to enable using patterns.
- * Program numbers with registered global addresses are displayed as "Registered Programs number XX" in the editor page. This display will be always shown regardless of the Enable/Disable settings of schedule controls.

Factory Settings

Action : Add New... (For all global addresses)

Global Controls

(i) Concept of "Global"

Global controls are a method of monitoring and control where multiple local systems exist, and specified multiple systems are managed using the same address. Addresses controlled here can be individual circuits, dimmer, group, and patterns.

(Zones are not independent in terms of systems and therefore not applicable.)

Control points (addresses) will be restricted to **one address of one type**. Global control is characterized by the ability to define control points for multiple systems using the same address. That is, it functions analogous to control switches for integrated into one address for multiple systems.

(a) Global Control on a Web Browser Page (Two-system Example)



(b) Monitoring on Circuit Status Controlled by Wall Switches of Multiple Local Systems (Two-system Example)



(ii) Status and Processing Definitions

The status of global addresses is determined using logical ANDs and ORs of the statuses of the addresses. "1" and "0" are used in logical operations and correspond to the status of the address as follows:

- 1 : ON, match, and timing
- 0 : OFF, mismatch, no T/U, No setup (Unregistered),

Control failure/Error response (invalid, Abnormal ON, and Abnormal OFF), Response of unknown status (indeterminate)

If the result of AND and OR operations is 1, ON is applied, if 0, OFF is applied.

- * AND operation: Logical product is 0 if one or more statuses are 0. (Logical product is 1 only if all statuses are 1.)
- * OR operation: Logical sum is 1 if one or more statuses are 1. (Logical sum is 0 if all statuses are 0.)

* Global status can be only either ON or OFF.

Example:

The following example is for a global control registered for individual circuit 00-1 of systems LIU 1 to L 4. By normal monitoring after global control, the following data was obtained:

- LIU 1 Individual circuit $00-1 \rightarrow ON \rightarrow 1$
- LIU 2 Individual circuit $00-1 \rightarrow OFF \rightarrow 0$
- LIU 3 Individual circuit 00-1 \rightarrow Indeterminate (assumed OFF) \rightarrow 0
- LIU 4 Individual circuit 00-1 \rightarrow Timing (assumed ON) \rightarrow 1

The result will be:

- If AND is selected: (1 * 0 * 0 * 1 =) 0 (OFF) (*At least one system contains OFF or equivalent).
- If OR is selected: (1+0+0+1=)1 (ON) (*At least one system contains ON or equivalent).

(8) Schedule Settings

Schedule Settings is used to configure schedule control programs. Date and time, addresses, statuses, and other settings to control automatically from the Web Server Unit are configured using the following menu commands.

- (a) Programs
- : Configures time schedule.
- (b) Programs Monitor
- : Monitors schedule settings for events to occur on specified days.

: Monitors special day settings and duplications of special days.

- (c) Special Days
- (d) Special Day Calendar (e) Astronomical Clock
- : Configures sunrise/sunset functions and daylight savings time functions.

: Configures dates requiring special functions such as national holidays.

(a) Programs

Programs are used to configure time schedules.



(i) Viewing the Status of Programs

Registered Programs are shown in a table.

- No. : Number of the program (930 max)
- Name : Name of program
- LIU No. : LIU number
- Type : Type of address
- Address : Address
- Operation : Time controls, sunrise/sunset controls, inter-day control, and repetitive control
- Schedule : Start and end times
- Days of the Week : Days of the week for weekly control
- Special Day : Matrix displays of the special days to which the program is applicable
 - *1 Included : Denotes that the program will execute on that special day.
 - * 0 Not Included : Denotes the special day is excluded from program execution
 - * N/A : Special day is not applicable for the program

The matrix display (10 × 3) correspond to special day numbers as follows: Line 1 : Special Day 01, Special Day 02, Special Day 03, ... Special Day 10

Line 2 : Special Day 11, Special Day 12, Special Day 13, ... Special Day 20

Line 3 : Special Day 21, Special Day 22, Special Day 23, ... Special Day 30

(ii) Enabling/Disabling Programs

1. Select Enable/Disable.

Programs can be disabled.

- Disable: Preset controls of programs will not be performed. However, the program will not be deleted.
- Enable: Preset controls of programs will be performed. When newly registered, programs are enabled by default.
- * If Select All Button is clicked, all programs (930 in all) will be enabled or disabled.
- * When the day changes, enabled/disabled status will be preserved.

2. Click the Submit Button.

The entered data will be submitted and registered.

(iii) Registering and Deleting Programs

Programs cannot be set if the date and time have not been set. Set the correct date and time in Date & Time Settings.

1. Select the programs.

Click the **Add new...** or **Edit...** Button for the line number (up to 930). The page will switch to the Address Selection Page.





2. Enter the program name.

- * The program name must be 16 characters or less.
- * Characters that are not iso-8859-1(CP932) will be corrupted.

3. Select the LIU No. for the system (excluding zones and global addresses).

Select an individual circuit, dimmer, group, or pattern.

- * LIU numbers selected and registered in LIU Connection Settings can be selected.
- * If LIU numbers are deselected in LIU Connection Settings, program settings will remain, so programs must be set again if LIU numbers selected for a program are deleted.

4. Select the type.

5. Select the address.

Unregistered (not set) addresses can also be selected and control request will be submitted.

6. Select the status (for zones only).

With a zone, status is selected from ON, OFF, Pattern 1, Pattern 2, Pattern 3, and Pattern 4.

7. Select the operating method.

Select the method and controlled status for timed control, sunrise/sunset control, inter-day control, or repetitive control. There are two methods that can be selected depending on address type to control.

(A) Individual Circuits, Dimmers, Groups, and Global Addresses (Patterns are excluded from Global Addresses.)

- Sunset (ON)-Sunrise (OFF)
- Sunset (ON)-OFF
- ON-Sunrise (OFF)
- ON-OFF
- OFF-ON
- ON-ON
- OFF-OFF
- ON
 - N : ON operation at Start Time
- OFF : OFF operation at Start Time

(B) Patterns, Zones, and Global Addresses (Patterns Only for Global Addresses)

- ON (run)
- Sunset (Execute)
- Sunrise (Execute)
- Repetition (Execute)
- : Execute operation at Sunset

: Execute operation at Start Time

- : Execute operation at Sunrise
- : Execute operation periodically from Start to End Times (Repetitive Control)

: ON operation at Sunset and OFF operation at Sunrise

: ON operation at Sunset and OFF operation at End Time : ON operation at Start Time and OFF operation at Sunrise

: ON operation at Start Time and OFF operation at End Time

: OFF operation at Start Time and ON operation at End Time

: ON operation at Start Time and ON operation at End Time

: OFF operation at Start Time and OFF operation at End Time

8. Click the Next Button.

The window will switch to the Date & Time Setting Page. If the **Cancel** Button is clicked, the process will end without registration and switch to the Programs Selection Page.

(A) Group Sunset (ON)-Sunrise (OFF) Example

No.	Name	LIU No.	Type	Address	Operation	
001	Program 001	01	Group	001	Sunset(ON) - Sunsie(OFF)	
	Start Time		End Tr	ime		Cancel Submit Delete
From	Sunset (16:29) ±00 💌	until	Sunrise (07:10)	±00 💌		
			Day			
	Su Ma	o Tu	We Th	Fr Sa		
01	Special Day 01	11	Special Day 11	21	Special Day 21	
02	Special Day 02	12	Special Day 12	22	Special Day 22	
03	Special Day 03	13	Special Day 13	23	Special Day 23	
04	Special Day 04	14	Special Day 14	24	Special Day 24	
05	Special Day 05	15	Special Day 15	25	Special Day 25	
06	Special Day 06	16	Special Day 16	26	Special Day 26	
07	Special Day 07	17	Special Day 17	27	Special Day 27	
08	Special Day 08	18	Special Day 18	28	Special Day 28	
09	Special Day 09	19	Special Day 19	29	Special Day 29	
10	Special Day 10	20	Special Day 20	30	Special Day 30	

(C) Pattern Repetition Execution Example

No.	Name	LIU No.	Туре	Address	Operation	
001	Program 001	01	Pattern	01	Repeat Execution	
	Start Time		End Time		Repeat Interval	Cancel Submit Delete
PIOM	00 💌 00 💌	untii	00 💌 00	×	00 🖌 05 🖌	
			Day			
	Su Mo	Tu	We Th	Fr S	a	
01	Special Day 01	11	Special Day 11	21	Special Day 21	
02	Special Day 02	12	Special Day 12	22	Special Day 22	
03	Special Day 03	13	Special Day 13	23	Special Day 23	
04	Special Day 04	14	Special Day 14	24	Special Day 24	
05	Special Day 05	15	Special Day 15	25	Special Day 25	
06	Special Day 06	16	Special Day 16	26	Special Day 26	
07	Special Day 07	17	Special Day 17	27	Special Day 27	
08	Special Day 08	18	Special Day 18	28	Special Day 28	
09	Special Day 09	19	Special Day 19	29	Special Day 29	
10	Special Day 10	20	Special Day 20	30	Special Day 30	

(B) Global Address OFF-ON Example

No.	Name	LIU No.	Type	Address	Operation	
001	Program 001		Global Addresses	01	OFF - ON	
From	Start Time	until	End Ti	me 10 💌		Cancel Submit Delete
			Day			
	Su Mo	Tu	We Th	Fr Sa		
01	Special Day 01	11	Special Day 11	21	Special Day 21	
02	Special Day 02	12	Special Day 12	22	Special Day 22	
03	Special Day 03	13	Special Day 13	23	Special Day 23	
04	Special Day 04	14	Special Day 14	24	Special Day 24	
05	Special Day 05	15	Special Day 15	25	Special Day 25	
06	Special Day 06	16	Special Day 16	26	Special Day 26	
07	Special Day 07	17	Special Day 17	27	Special Day 27	
08	Special Day 08	18	Special Day 18	28	Special Day 28	
09	Special Day 09	19	Special Day 19	29	Special Day 29	
10	Special Day 10	20	Special Day 20	30	Special Day 30	

(D) Zone Execute (Sunset) Example

No.	Name	LIU No.	Туре	Address	Status	Operation	
001	Program 001		Zone	01	Pattern A	Execute(Sunset)	
	Start Time					Cancel Subr	nit Dele
At	Sunset (16:29) ±00 💌						
			Day				
	Su Mo	Tu	We Th	Fr Sa			
01	Special Day 01	11	Special Day 11	21	Special Da	y 21	
02	Special Day 02	12	Special Day 12	22	Special Da	y 22	
03	Special Day 03	13	Special Day 13	23	Special Da	y 23	
04	Special Day 04	14	Special Day 14	24	Special Da	y 24	
05	Special Day 05	15	Special Day 15	25	Special Da	y 25	
06	Special Day 06	16	Special Day 16	26	Special Da	y 26	
07	Special Day 07	17	Special Day 17	27	Special Da	y 27	
08	Special Day 08	18	Special Day 18	28	Special Da	y 28	
09	Special Day 09	19	Special Day 19	29	Special Da	y 29	
10	Special Day 10	20	Special Day 20	30	Special Da	y 30	

9. Select the times.

Select the start time, end time, and/or repeat interval.

- * All of these may not be displayed for all operations.
- * If sunrise or sunset is selected for the operation, the sunrise and sunset times will be automatically displayed as control times for the district. (Refer to Astronomical Clock for setting districts.)
- * Although sunrise/sunset times are displayed for the day the program is registered, controls are based on the actual sunrise/sunset times for the day the controls are performed. (Refer to Miscellaneous Information I. Appendix Sunrise/Sunset Timetable for sunrise and sunset times.)
- * Minimum configurable control time unit is 1 minute.
- * The range of adjustments to sunrise/sunset times is ±90 minutes (Minimum adjustable unit: 1 minute).
- * The range of adjustments to repeat interval is 1 minute to 1 hour 30 minutes (Minimum adjustable unit: 1 minute).
- * An error will occur if the same fixed time is set for both ON and OFF.
- * If sunset or sunrise time is included, the same start and end times for the day can be registered, but if they are still the same on the day the control is scheduled for execution, no control will be executed.
- * For inter-day control, the OFF time will be for the day after the ON time. (Refer to Schedule Control Program Specifications for details.)
- * Repetitive controls will revert back to the originally set times even if the control on the start time was delayed for some reason.

10. Select program execution days.

Day of execution of a program can be specified by selecting or clearing check marks (\square).

- Execution Day of Week
 Canceled Special Day of Week
 Execution Special Day
 If the day of week is selected ☑, control will be executed on that day every week.
 If the day of week is cleared □, control will be canceled on that day every week.
 If the special day is selected ☑, control will be executed on the special day. If the day falls on a Canceled Special day of week, Execution Special Day will take priority and the control will be executed.
 Canceled Special Day
 If the special day is cleared □, control will be canceled on the special day. If the special day is cleared □, control will be canceled on the special day. If the special day is cleared □, control will be canceled on the special day. If the special day is cleared □, control will be canceled on the special day. If the special day is cleared □, control will be canceled on the special day. If the special day is cleared □, control will be canceled on the special day. If the special day is cleared □, control will be canceled on the special day. If the special day is cleared □, control will be canceled on the special day. If the special day is cleared □, control will be canceled on the special day. If the special day is cleared □, control will be canceled on the special day. If the special day is cleared □, control will be canceled on the special day. If the special day is cleared □, control will be canceled on the special day. If the special day is cleared □, control will be canceled on the special day. If the special day.
 - override and it is canceled.
- * Special days are used to execute or cancel an operation as an exception, such as for holidays or anniversaries, for operations otherwise set to be executed on a day of week every week. Special days can be specified as day of the month, day of the week of as specific dates. (Refer to Special Day Settings for details.)
- * Special days can be registered without execution days, but no controls will be performed.

11. Click the Submit Button.

The settings will be enabled.

- * If the **Cancel** Button is clicked, registration will be aborted and you'll be switched to the programs select page.
- * If the **Delete** Button is clicked, the content of the corresponding program number will be reset to unselected status.
- * The settings will be saved in the Web Server Unit.
- * Registration from another browser is disabled during registration.
- * Even while editing data for registration, schedule controls will be performed except for the program being edited.

(b) Programs Monitor

Programs Monitor is used to confirm scheduled controls to be executed on specified days. Times and values are displayed for only controls actually executed based on the combinations of the day of week, special day, sunrise/sunset times, disabled operations, and other parameters.

Control &		May	v	Select Date: 30th 2005	Se To	lect day	No.	Name
• •	Program	ms						
Control ings tings	No.	Name	LIU No.	Туре	Address	Control Value	Operation	Details
gs ress Settings	001	Program 001	01	Individual Circuit	00-1	-	Sunset (ON) - Sunnise (OFF)	05:27 OFF
ttings	002	Program 002	01	Group	001	-	Sunset (ON) - OFF	20:20 ON 22:00 OFF
<u>fonitor</u> 25	006	Program 006	01	Individual Circuit	01-1	-	OFF - ON	07:00 OFF 18:00 ON
ral Clock	007	Program 007	01	Pattern	02	-	Repeat Execution	-: 17:00 Start (30 min)
ings lanager	008	Program 008	01	Individual Circuit	01-3	-	OFF - OFF	06:00 OFF 08:00 OFF

1. Select the date.

Select the month/day/year and click the **Select** Button.

- * Clicking the << or >> Button will move the selected date back and forward.
- * Clicking the Today Button will reset the date to the current day.

Programs

Programs displays all the programs executed on the specified day in a table.

- No. : Number of program to be executed
- Name : Name of program to be executed
- LIU No. : LIU number
- Type : Type of address
- Address : Address
- Control Value : Status in zone controls
- Time : Control start time to end time
- Operation : Time control, sunrise/sunset control, inter-day control, or repetitive control

Special Days

Special Days display a list of special days.

- No. : Number of the special day
- Name : Name of the special day

- * If ON and OFF operations are specified for the same address at the same time, both program contents are displayed but only the OFF operation will be executed.
- * If the same day is registered as a special day more than once (duplicated special day) for a program and set as a Special Day (i.e., set for execution) and a Canceled Special Day in the other, the Special Day registration will take priority and the control will be performed.
- * When special days are deleted, they will no longer be displayed as a special day but if ON control has been executed, the corresponding OFF control will be executed and the relevant program will remain in the list.

(c) Special Days

Special Days is used to configure holidays and days on which to execute special activities.

cation name	Advanced Control &	Settings > Schedule Settings > Spe	ecial Days		
<u>sic Monitoring &</u> mtrol	No.	Name	Action	Next Day	Delete
vanced Control &	01	Special Day 01	Edit	Disable	Delete
fress Settings	02	Special Day 02	Edit	Enable	Delete
Select	03	Special Day 03	Edit	Enable	Delete
fvanced Control	04	Special Day 04	Add New		
oup Settings ttern Settings	05	Special Day 05	Add New		
<u>ne Settings</u> obal Address Settings	06	Special Day 06	Add New		
rograms	07	Special Day 07	Add New		
rograms Monutor pecial Days pecial Days Calendar	08	Special Day 08	Add New		
stronomical Clock me Settings	09	Special Day 09	Add New		
nmer Settings tus Bar Manager	10	Special Day 10	Add New		
tem Administration	11	Special Day 11	Add New		
	12	Special Day 12	Add New		
	13	Special Day 13	Add New		
			Connected		

(i) Registering and Changing Special Days

* Special days cannot be set if the clock is not set. Set the clock to the correct date and time in Date & Time Settings.

1. Select the special day.

Click the **Add New...** or **Edit...** Button of the line (up to 30). The page will switch to the Special Day Setting Page.

* Programs including the day as an execution special day will be displayed in the lower pane. (Disabled programs are also displayed.)

Location name	Advanced C	control d	& Settings	> Schee	lule Settings > Special Days	
insis Menitoring &	Special Day Settings			No.	Name	
dvanced Control & ritiogra- ddress Sertings				01	Special Day 01	Cancel
tap 1 💌 Select	Programs					
dvanced Control		Nø. 001	Program 001	LIU01 Sunni	/Individual Circuit00-2 Suntise(ON) - Sunse sex00 Enabled	et(OFF) Sumsets00 >>
httern Settings Jone Settings Sobal Address Settings Chedule Settings		Ne. 002	Program 002	LIUM	Occup1 Sumset(ON) - OFF Sumset=00 >> 2	2.00 Triabled
Programa Programa Menitor Igoccial Disca General Disca		Ne. 003	Program 003	LICOI	Individual Circuit00-3 ON - Sumise(OFF) 1	11:00 >> Sumises 00 Enabled
Astronomical Clock and Settings		Ne. 004	Program 004	LIUM	Individual Circuit01-1 ON - OFF/19:00 >> 2	13:00 Enabled
oten Administration		Ne. 005	Program 005	LIU01	Geoup2 OFF - ON 07:00 >> 18:00 Enabled	
		Ne. 006	Program 005	LEUOI	/Individual Circuit01-2 OFF - ON 07:00 >> 1	8:00 Enabled
					Connected	

2. Enter the name of the special day.

Enter Text in Name field.

* In 16 characters or less. (Characters that are not iso-8859-1 will be corrupted).

3. Click the Next Button.

The page will switch to Special Day Setting Method Selection Page.

* If the Cancel Button is clicked, the registration will be aborted, and the page will be switched to Special Day Number Selection Page.

4. Select the special day setting method.

Select the following in the special day settings.

Days of the Week	: Specify as Month X Week Y
	Day of week Z.
Days of the Month	: Specify as Month X Day Y.
Dates	: Specify as Month Y Day Z
	Year X.
Summary	: Will display special day
	settings in a table.

nic Monitoring & ntrol_	Special Day Settings	Name		election	
canced Control & inga iess Settings	01 Spe	cial Day 01	Summary	Select	Cancel Submit
ip 1 viect	Days of the Week:	January Jeo April Jeo	1	Su, Sa We	
ogi seneraja ne Bertinga bal Addensa Sertinga edole Sertinga ogranu ogranu	Days of the Month:	Apel 19 July 10	ь		
opping account social Days social Days Calendar intresensical Clock mt Intings some Settings	Dates:	October 10 December 24	th, 2005 th, 2005		
ten Administration					

Three methods can be mixed for one special day setting.

5. Click the Select Button.

The page will switch to setting window for the selected method.

(A) Days of the Week (Every Year/Month/Week/Day of Week)

6. Select the month and day.

Select (☑) the days to be set in the special day setting.

7. Click the Add Button.

Added days will be displayed in the lower pane.

* Selected days can be deleted by selecting them and clicking the **Delete** Button.

8. Repeat 6 through 7..

* Data has not yet been registered in the Web Server Unit.

9. Return to 4 for other setting methods.

(B) Days of the Month

6. Select a month and a day.

7. Click the Add Button.

Added days will be displayed in the lower pane.

- * Selected days can be deleted by selecting them and clicking the **Delete** Button.
- 8. Repeat 6 through 7.
 - * Data has not yet been registered in the Web Server Unit.

9. Return to 4 for other setting methods.

(C) Dates

6. Select the month and year.

Selectable range for special days is January 1, 2000 through December 31, 2037 and it must be within 13 months of the current month.

* If it were 2037 now, 2038 could not be selected.

7. Click the Select Button.

The calendar for the selected month will be displayed.

8. Select (\boxtimes) the desired days.

9. Click the Add Button.

* Switching calendar pages without clicking the Add Button will clear the check marks (IZ).

10. Repeat 6 through 9.

* Data has not yet been registered in the Web Server Unit.

11. Return to 4 for other setting methods.

12. Click the Submit Button.

Special days selected in all three methods will be registered.



Delete

January 3rd
 April 3rd

Su, S We

Delete

Special Day Settings	No.		Na	n#				Туре		
	02		Special I	Day 02		Dates		~	Select	Cancel Subr
Dates		0	ctober	~	2006	~	Select			
				00	tobezí 2	006				
		Su	Mo	Tu	We	Th	Fr	Sa		
		1	2	3	4	5	6	7		
		8	9	10	11	12	13	14		
		15	16	17	18	19	20	21		
		22	23	24 I	25	26	27	28		
		29	30	31 V						
					Add					

- * If the Cancel Button is clicked, the registration will be aborted, and the page will be switched to the Special Day Number Selection Page.
- * If no special days are selected after the name is entered, the name will be initialized when the special day is registered.
- * If a past date is selected for a special day for a date setting, it will be retained until the date is set again.

(ii) Deleting Special Days

1. Click the Delete Button.

The selected lined (up to 30) will be reset to Blank.

* Schedule control by programs specifying execution special days will not be performed after special days have been deleted, but if the control start time has passed when the special day is deleted, the control will be performed if the clock is set back.

(iii) Adding the Next Day as a Special Day for One Day Only

The next day can temporally be added to a special day setting that does not originally include the next day. Special day settings that do not include the next day in the original settings (including overriding execution and cancellations) can be added to the program.

1. Click the Submit Button for the next day.

The Next Day cell in the line will turn red.

- * "Next Day" indicates the day following the day when the next day setting operation is performed. This operation can thus be performed only the day before the special day.
- * Next day settings will not persist and will not be saved as special day data.
- * This operation does not register special days to be repeated every year.

(iv) Disabling Special Day Setting for Next Day for One Day Only

The next day can temporally be deleted from a special day setting. Special days set for the next day in the original program settings (including overriding execution and cancellations) can be disabled.

1. Click the Next Day Disable Button (red background).

The Next Day cell in the line will turn gray.

- * "Next Day" indicates the day following the day when the next day setting operation is performed. This operation can thus be performed only the day before the special day.
- * Next day settings will not persist and will not be saved as special day data.
- * This operation does not disable special days repeated every year.

(d) Special Days Calendar

The Special Days Calendar is used to confirm special day settings and duplication of special days.

				_	_	_	_	_		_	_	_	_	_	_	_	_					_			_	_	_	_	_	_
<u>Monitoring &</u> ol	-: No Special Day, X:	Special	Day		Nex	t Da	iy		Ja	anu	ary		~	20	05	• (Se	ect												
nced Control &	Special Day																													
gs ss Settings			01	02	03	04	05	06	07	08	09	10	11	12	13	14	15	16	17 1	8 1	20	21	22	23	24	25	26	27	28	29 3
1 💌	2005-1-1	Sa													-												-			
ect	2005-1-2	Su				х																							-	
	2005-1-3	Мо					-		-		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-			-	-	1	-	-	1	-	-	-	
nced Control	2005-1-4	Tu		-	-						-					-		-			-		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	
n Settings	2005-1-5	We	-	-					-			-	-	-	-		-				-		-	-	-	-	-			
Settings 1 Address Settings	2005-1-6	Th						-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-							-		-	-	-		-	
ule Settings	2005-1-7	Fr	-										-												-		-	-	-	
<u>rams</u> rams Monitor	2005-1-8	Sa	-							-	-	-	-	-	-	-		-			-	-	-	-		-			-	
ial Days	2005-1-9	Su								-			-			-	-							-					-	
cial Days Calendar ronomical Clock	2005-1-10	Мо	-		-		-		-		-		-	-	-	-	-		-			-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	
Settings	2005-1-11	Tu	-	-		-	-	-	-	-	1	1	1	-	-	-	-	-			-	-	-	-	-	1	1	-	-	
Bar Manager	2005-1-12	We								-													-		-				-	
	2005-1-13	Th																			-		-		-		-			
n Administration	2005-1-14	Fr								-											-				-		-			
	2005-1-15	Sa	Х	-				-		-		-	-	-		-					-		-		-		-		-	
	2005-1-16	Su	х								-		-			-		-			-									

1. Select the month and year and click the Select Button.

One month of special days 1 through 30 set in Special Days Settings will be displayed in a table. The current day is highlighted.

- (Gray) : Special of
 - : Special day set
- -- (Gray)
- : No special day set
- •(Orange)
- : Day set as next day execution.
- Corange)
- : Day set as next day cancellation.

(e) Astronomical Clock

The *Astronomical Clock* is used to calibrate sunrise, sunset and daylight savings time calculations. In order to calculate the sunrise and sunset times, it is necessary to specify the longitude and latitude.

Location name	Advanced Control & Settings > Schedule Settings > Astronomical Clock
Basic Monitoring & Control Advanced Control & Settings Address Settings Select Advanced Control Group Settings Pattern Settings Global Address Settings Schedule Settings Programs Programs Monitor Special Days Calendar Artonomical Clock Name Settings Status Bar Manager System Administration	Location NEW YORK • New York Latitude N040 • • 47 • • Longitude W 073 • • 58 • • Time Zone [GMT-05:00] Eastern Standard Time (United States and Canada) • Automatically adjust clock for daylight saving changes Current time status : Daylight saving Submit Reset A complete restart of the system is necessary for any changes to become effective. Go to reboot page
	Connected

(i) Specifying the longitude, latitude, time zone and daylight saving rule from preset location

1. Select a location.

Select a preset location from the "Location" drop down menu.

* Upon selection, longitude, latitude, time zone and daylight saving rule corresponding to the selected location will be automatically selected. There may be some differences between the preset values and the actual location, time zone and applicable daylight saving rule of the system. In order to increase the accuracy of the calculations, longitude, latitude, time zone and daylight saving rule can be adjusted after selecting the location.

2. Click the submit button.

If the input values for longitude, latitude, time zone and daylight saving rules are different then the preset values for the selected location, a confirmation window showing those differences will be displayed. If the specified values are correct, click the "OK" button in order to submit the new settings. Clicking the "Cancel" button will close the confirmation window without any information being submitted.

3. Go to the reboot page.

* After submission of the new settings, a Reboot of the Web Server Unit is necessary to enable changes to astronomical clock settings. Click the "Go to reboot page" button and proceed to rebooting the Web Server Unit.

(ii) Specifying the longitude, latitude, time zone and daylight saving rule manually

1. Specify longitude and latitude.

From the "Location" drop down menu, select "Specify Longitude and Latitude" option. Proceed to the input of longitude and latitude.

2. Select a time zone.

Select a time zone. If a daylight saving rule exist for the selected time zone, a checkbox labeled "Automatically adjust clock for daylight saving changes" will be displayed. It is possible to ignore the daylight saving rule by unselecting the "Automatically adjust clock for daylight saving changes" option. Note that if a daylight saving rule does not exist for the selected time zone, the checkbox will not be displayed.

3. Click the submit button.

A confirmation window showing the specified values will be displayed. If the specified values are correct, click the "OK" button in order to submit the new settings. Clicking the "Cancel" button will close the confirmation window without any information being submitted.

4. Go to the reboot page.

After submission of the new settings, a Reboot of the Web Server Unit is necessary to enable changes to astronomical clock settings. Click the "Go to reboot page" button and proceed to rebooting the Web Server Unit.

(iii) Specifying a custom time zone and daylight saving rule.

It is possible to specify a custom time zone and daylight saving rule.

1. Select custom time zone.

From the "Time Zone" drop down menu, select "Custom time zone" option. This will make visible the time zone editor controls, just below the "Time Zone" drop down menu.

2. Select GMT.

Select the difference in hours with the Greenwich Mean Time (GMT), also refered as Universal Time Coordinated (UTC) in the "GMT" drop down box.

The following chart maybe used to be determined the standard time zone.

3. Specify the Daylight saving start and end rules.

From the "Daylight saving start" and "Daylight saving end" drop down menus, specify the rules for daylight saving start and end. e.g., for the following rules to be enabled, selections should be made as the shown in the following picture:

- Daylight saving start rule : April's first Sunday at 02:00 a.m.
 - Daylight saving end rule : October's last Sunday at 03:00 a.m.

Daylight saving start	April	*	First	*	Sunday	~	02 💌	:	00 🛩
Daylight saving end	October	~	Last	~	Sunday	~	03 🛩	:	00 🛩

4. Click the submit button.

A confirmation window showing the specified values will be displayed. If the specified values are correct, click the "OK" button in order to submit the new settings. Clicking the "Cancel" button will close the confirmation window without any information being submitted.

5. Go to the reboot page.

After submission of the new settings, a Reboot of the Web Server Unit is necessary to enable changes to astronomical clock settings. Click the "Go to reboot page" button and proceed to rebooting the Web Server Unit.



Functional Specifications for Schedule Controls

(i) Basic Functions

* The clock for programs sets the time to perform control commands from the Web Server Unit, so circuits on the local system start functions several seconds behind the set time.

(1) Start and End Time Pairs (Start time < End time)

* Even if the start control was not performed for some reason, the end control will still be performed. Sunset (ON)-Sunrise (OFF), Sunset (ON)-OFF, ON-Sunrise (OFF), and ON-OFF



(3) Repetitions

* Controls are repeated from the start time to end time (inclusive of end time) at a fixed interval.

* In repetition execution, even if the start control was delayed for some reason, the end control will be still be performed at the time originally set.


(4) Start Time = End Time

- * For Sunset (ON)-OFF and ON-Sunrise (OFF), start and end times may be set to the same time, but no control will be performed if they are. Furthermore, the times may be different when settings are configured, but they may become the same time as the sunrise/sunset time shifts.
- * In this case, controls will not be performed either. For fixed-time ON and OFF, the start and end times must be different when the settings are configured.



(5) End Time \leq Start Time (Inter-day Control)

* End control will be performed the next day.



(6) 12:00 < OFF Time \leq Sunset (ON) Time in Sunset (ON)-OFF (*Item (5) is a special case.) * Neither the start nor the end control will be performed.



(7) Sunrise (OFF) Time \leq ON Time \leq 12:00 in ON-Sunrise (OFF) (*Item (5) is a special case.) * Neither the start nor the end control will be performed.



(8) Multiple Programs Controlling Different Addresses Simultaneously

* Program will be executed in order of their serial numbers.

Current Day	
Program 1 (Address B)	First
0:00 0	Ν
Program 2 (Address A)	After
0:00 C	FF

(9) Multiple Programs Controlling the Same Addresses Simultaneously with Different Statuses

* Only OFF controls will be executed for the address and not the ON controls.

Current day	I
Program 1 (Address A)	Not executed
0:00 C	N
Program 2 (Address A)	Executed
0:00 c	¢FF

(ii) Complex Operations

If the start time for a program has already passed when a new schedule is set, changes are made to special day/normal day settings, or the clock is adjusted, the program will ignore the start control but will execute the end control. When controls are in progress from a Web page at the scheduled control time, the scheduled control may be delayed by a small margin.

(1) Interday Controls before or after Special Days

1. Normal Day Crossing to Special Day

* An end time control falling on a special day will be executed.

Current day (normal day)	Next day (special day)
↑	↓ ↓
Start	0:00 End

2. Special Day Crossing to Normal Day

* The end time control falling on a normal day will be executed.

-	-
Current day (special day)	Next day (normal day)
↑	\downarrow
Start	0:00 End

(2) Changes to Special/Normal Days

- 1. Programming Beginning on a Special Day Changed to a Normal Day on that Day (Cleared Special Day)
 - * If the controls had already started when the change was made, the end control will be performed



2. Programming Beginning on a Normal Day Changed to a Special Day on that Day

* Even if the program had started before change was made, the end control will not be performed after the change.



(3) Changes to Daylight Savings Time Setting

* When Automatically adjust clock for daylight saving changes is selected, all scheduled controls for the hour that is advanced will be executed. Programs will be executed in order of program number, and only OFF controls will be executed and none of the ON controls if there are multiple programs for the same address with different status controls.

(9) Circuit Name Settings

Circuit Name Settings is used to configure names for circuit (addresses). Configure from the following menus by address type.

- (a) Individual Circuit Names
- : All addresses for Individual Circuits and Dimmers : All Groups
- (b) Groups (c) Patterns
- : All Patterns
- (d) Zones
- : All Zones
- (e) Global Addresses
- : All Global Addresses

(a) Individual Circuits (Including Dimmers)

Individual Circuits is used to set names for all individual circuits and dimmers by LIU system.

Location name	Advanced Con	trol & Settings > Name Settings >	Individual Circuit	5
lasic Monitoring & Control Advanced Control & Iettings Iddress Sertings Map 1 💉			Submit	LIUN9. OI V S
Select	Address	Name	Address	Name
Idvanced Control	00-1	Individual Circuit 00-1	32-1	Individual Circuit 32-1
attern Settings	00-2	Individual Circuit 00-2	32-2	Individual Circuit 32-2
one settings Jobal Address Settings	00-3	Individual Circuit 00-3	32-3	Individual Circuit 32-3
ame Settings	00-4	Individual Circuit 00-4	32-4	Individual Circuit 32-4
ndrendsan Concurts Textupa	01-1	Individual Circuit 01-1	33-1	Individual Circuit 33-1
lones	01-2	Individual Circuit 01-2	33-2	Individual Circuit 33-2
amer Settings	01-3	Individual Circuit 01-3	33-3	Individual Circuit 33-3
etus Bie Manager	01-4	Individual Circuit 01-4	33-4	Individual Circuit 33-4
ten Acconsistation	02-1	Individual Circuit 02-1	34-1	Individual Circuit 34-1
	02-2	Individual Circuit 02-2	34-2	Individual Circuit 34-2
	02-3	Individual Circuit 02-3	34-3	Individual Circuit 34-3
			Connected	

Monitoring &	30-2	Individual Circuit 30-2	62-2	Individual Circuit 62-2
<u>ol_</u>	30-3	Individual Circuit 30-3	62-3	Individual Circuit 62-3
iced Control &	30-4	Individual Circuit 30-4	62-4	Individual Circuit 62-4
15 s Settings	31-1	Individual Circuit 31-1	63-1	Individual Circuit 63-1
1 ¥	31-2	Individual Circuit 31-2	63-2	Individual Circuit 63-2
ect	31-3	Individual Circuit 31-3	63-3	Individual Circuit 63-3
anced Control	31-4	Individual Circuit 31-4	63-4	Individual Circuit 63-4
en Settings				
LAdress Settings	Address	Nine Discuss 01	ADDRESS	Name Discussion
de Settings	01	Dimmerui	09	Dimmer 09
idual Circuits	02	Dimmer 02	10.	Dimmer 10
<u>51</u>	03	Dimmer 03	11	Dimmer 11
ti ul Addresses	04	Dimmer 04	12	Dimmer 12
ier Settings Bar Manager	05	Dimmer 05	13	Dimmer 13
m Administration	06	Dimmer 06	14	Dimmer 14
	07	Dimmer 07	15	Dimmer 15
		Dimmer 02	16	Dimmer 16

1. Select the LIU No. for the system and click the Select Button.

The currently registered data will be displayed.

* All 31 systems can be set regardless of the status of the LIU connections.

2. Enter the names.

Number of characters: 32 characters or less

- * Characters not included in iso-8859-1 (CP932) will be corrupted.
- * If a comma "," is entered, an error message will be displayed after the **Submit** Button is clicked.
- * Some names, such as 32 characters long ones, may be displayed with both ends truncated.

3. Click the Submit Button.

The settings will be applied to the page.

Factory Settings

Name

: "Individual Circuit XX-X" (XX-X = 00-1 to 63-4)

and "Dimmer XX" (XX = 01 to 16)

(b) Groups

Groups is used to set names for all groups by LIU system.

Location name	Advanced Con	trol & Settings > Name Settings >	Groups		
Basic Monitoring & Control_ Advanced Control & Settings Address Settings Map 1 V Select			Submit	LIUNo	01 V Select
Select	Address	Name	Address	Name	
Advanced Control	001	Group 001	065	Group 065	
Pattern Settings	002	Group 002	066	Group 066	
Global Address Settings	003	Group 003	067	Group 067	
Name Settings	004	Group 004	068	Group 068	
Groups	005	Group 005	069	Group 069	
Zones	006	Group 006	070	Group 070	
Dinmer Settings	007	Group 007	071	Group 071	
Status Bar Manager	008	Group 008	072	Group 072	
System Administration	009	Group 009	073	Group 073	
	010	Group 010	074	Group 074	
	011	Group 011	075	Group 075	
			Connected		

1. Select the LIU No. for the system and click the Select Button.

The currently registered data will be displayed.

* All 31 systems can be set regardless of the status of the LIU connections.

2. Enter the names.

Number of characters

- : 32 characters or less
- * Characters not included in iso-8859-1 (CP932) will be corrupted.
- * If a comma "," is entered, an error message will be displayed after the **Submit** Button is clicked.
- * Some names, such as 32 characters long ones, may be displayed with both ends truncated.

3. Click the Submit Button.

The settings will be applied to the page.

Factory Settings

Name

: Group XXX (* XXX = 00 1 to 127)

(c) Patterns

Patterns is used to set names for all patterns by LIU system.

Location name	Advanced Control & Settings > Name Settings > Patterns					
Basic Monitoring & Control Advanced Control & Settings Address Settings Map 1 ~			Submit	LIUNo. 01 🗸	Select	
Select	Address	Name	Address	Name	1	
Advanced Control	01	Pattern 01	37	Pattern 37		
Pattern Settings	02	Pattern 02	38	Pattern 38	1	
Global Address Settings	03	Pattern 03	39	Pattern 39	1	
Schedule Settings Name Settings	04	Pattern 04	40	Pattern 40		
Groups	05	Pattern 05	41	Pattern 41		
Zones Zones	06	Pattern 06	42	Pattern 42	1	
Global Addresses Dimmer Settings	07	Pattern 07	43	Pattern 43		
Status Bar Manager	08	Pattern 08	44	Pattern 44		
System Administration	09	Pattern 09	45	Pattern 45		
	10	Pattern 10	46	Pattern 46		
	11	Pattern 11	47	Pattern 47		
			Connected			

1. Select the LIU No. for the system and click the Select Button.

* The currently registered data will be displayed. All 31 systems can be set regardless of the status of the LIU connections.

2. Enter the names.

Number of characters

- : 32 characters or less
- * Characters not included in iso-8859-1 (CP932) will be corrupted.
- * If a comma "," is entered, an error message will be displayed after the Submit Button is clicked.
- * Some names, such as 32 characters long ones, may be displayed with both ends truncated.

3. Click the Submit Button.

The settings will be applied to the page.

Factory Settings

Name

: Pattern XX (* XX = 01 to 72)

(d) Zones

Zones is used to set names for all zones by LIU system.

Location name	Advanced Con	trol & Settings > Name Settings >	Zones		
Basic Monitoring & Control Advanced Control & Settings			Submit		
Address Settings	Address	Name	Address	Name	
Map 1 💌	01	Zone 01	49	Zone 49	
Select	02	Zone 02	50	Zone 50	
Advanced Control	03	Zone 03	51	Zone 51	
Pattern Settings	04	Zone 04	52	Zone 52	
Global Address Settings Schedule Settings	05	Zone 05	53	Zone 53	
Name Settings Individual Circuits	06	Zone 06	54	Zone 54	
Groups Patterns	07	Zone 07	55	Zone 55	
Zones Global Addresses	08	Zone 08	56	Zone 56	
Dimmer Settings Status Bar Manager	09	Zone 09	57	Zone 57	
System Administration	10	Zone 10	58	Zone 58	
S. S. C. C. S.	11	Zone 11	59	Zone 59	
	12	Zone 12	60	Zone 60	
	13	Zone 13	61	Zone 61	
			Connected		

The currently registered data will be displayed.

1. Enter the names.

Number of characters

: 32 characters or less

- * Characters not included in iso-8859-1 (CP932) will be corrupted.
- * If a comma "," is entered, an error message will be displayed after the Submit Button is clicked.
- * Some names, such as 32 characters long ones, may be displayed with both ends truncated.

2. Click the Submit Button.

The settings will be applied to the page.

Factory Settings

Name

: Zone XX (* XX = 01 to 96)

(e) Global Addresses

Global Addresses is used to set names for all global addresses by LIU system.

Location name	Advanced Control & Settings > Name Settings > Global Addresses				
Basic Monitoring & Control	Submit				
Advanced Control &	Address Name				
Settings Address Settings	01 Global Address 01				
Map 1 💌	02 Global Address 02				
Select	03 Global Address 03				
Advanced Control	04 Global Address 04				
Group Settings Pattern Settings	05 Global Address 05				
Zone Settings Global Address Settings	06 Global Address 06				
Schedule Settings Name Settings	07 Global Address 07				
Individual Circuits Groups	08 Global Address 08				
Patterns Zones	09 Global Address 09				
Global Addresses Dimmer Settings	10 Global Address 10				
<u>Status Bar Manager</u>	11 Global Address 11				
System Administration	12 Global Address 12				
	13 Global Address 13				
	14 Global Address 14				
	Connected				

The currently registered data will be displayed.

1. Enter names

Number of characters

- : 32 characters or less
- * Characters not included in iso-8859-1 (CP932) will be corrupted.
- * If a comma "," is entered, an error message will be displayed after the Submit Button is clicked.
- * Some names, such as 32 characters long ones, may be displayed with both ends truncated.

2. Click the Submit Button.

The settings will be applied to the page.

Factory Settings

Name

: Global XX (* XX = 01 to 32)

(10) Dimming Level Display Settings

Dimming Level Display Settings is used to set parameters to obtain dimming levels for individual circuits and for individual circuit addresses that are dimming devices in group settings. For dimmer addresses (dimmer 1 through 16), data is always obtained.

(a) Individual Circuits

Location name	Advanced Control & Settings > Individual Circuits					
Basic Monitoring & Control Advanced Control & Settings Address Settings Map 1 V			Su	bmit]	LIU N	, 01 V Select
Select	Address	Name	Level Display	Address	Name	Level Display
Advanced Control	00-1	Individual Circuit 00-1	Enabled 💌	32-1	Individual Circuit 32-1	Disabled 💌
Group Settings Pattern Settings	00-2	Individual Circuit 00-2	Disabled 💌	32-2	Individual Circuit 32-2	Disabled 💌
Zone Settings Global Address Settings	00-3	Individual Circuit 00-3	Disabled 💌	32-3	Individual Circuit 32-3	Disabled 💌
Schedule Settings Name Settings	00-4	Individual Circuit 00-4	Disabled 💌	32-4	Individual Circuit 32-4	Disabled 💌
Dimmer Settings	01-1	Individual Circuit 01-1	Disabled 💌	33-1	Individual Circuit 33-1	Disabled 💌
Groups Status Bar Manazar	01-2	Individual Circuit 01-2	Disabled 💌	33-2	Individual Circuit 33-2	Disabled 💌
Status Dat Ivialiaget	01-3	Individual Circuit 01-3	Disabled 💌	33-3	Individual Circuit 33-3	Disabled 💌
System Administration	01-4	Individual Circuit 01-4	Disabled 💌	33-4	Individual Circuit 33-4	Disabled 💌
	02-1	Individual Circuit 02-1	Disabled 💌	34-1	Individual Circuit 34-1	Disabled 💌
	02-2	Individual Circuit 02-2	Disabled 💌	34-2	Individual Circuit 34-2	Disabled 💌
	02-3	Individual Circuit 02-3	Disabled 💌	34-3	Individual Circuit 34-3	Disabled 💌
	02-4	Individual Circuit 02-4	Disabled V	34-4	Individual Circuit 34-4	Disabled V

1. Select the LIU No. for the system and click the Select Button.

The currently registered data will be displayed.

* Only numbers enabled in LIU Connection Settings can be selected.

2. Select Enabled/Disabled for the level display.

If enabled, the **Get Level** Button will be displayed on the following pages:

- Control dialog boxes for symbols on maps and individual circuits in Monitor & Control List.
- Dimmer level pane in Advanced Contol (Individual Circuit)

3. Click the Submit Button.

The settings will be applied to the page.

- * Dimming levels for individual circuits will be displayed between 000 to 128. To obtain and display dimming levels, dimmer T/Us must be installed at the addresses.
- * If the address happens to be a relay control T/U, the level will be displayed at the fixed level of 000.

Factory Settings

Level Display: Disabled (for all addresses)

(b) Groups

Location name	Advanced Control & Settings > Dimmer Settings > Groups					
Basic Monitoring & Control. Advanced Control & Settings Address Settings Map 1 💌			5	ıbmit	LR	UNo. 01 🗸 Selec
Select	Address	Name	Level Display	Address	Name	Level Display
Advanced Control	001	Group 001	Enabled 💌	065	Group 065	Disabled 💌
Pattern Settings	002	Group 002	Enabled 💌	066	Group 066	Disabled ⊻
Zone Settings Global Address Settings	003	Group 003	Disabled 💌	067	Group 067	Disabled 🛩
Schedule Settings Name Settings	004	Group 004	Enabled 💌	068	Group 068	Disabled 🛩
Dimmer Settings Individual Circuits	005	Group 005	Enabled 💌	069	Group 069	Disabled 🛩
Groups Status Bar Managar	006	Group 006	Enabled 💌	070	Group 070	Disabled 💌
unter Administration	007	Group 007	Enabled 💌	071	Group 071	Disabled 💌
ystem Administration	008	Group 008	Disabled 💌	072	Group 072	Disabled 🛩
	009	Group 009	Disabled 💌	073	Group 073	Disabled 💌
	010	Group 010	Disabled 💌	074	Group 074	Disabled 💌
	011	Group 011	Disabled 💌	075	Group 075	Disabled 💌
	012	Group 012	Disabled X	076	Group 076	Disabled V

1. Select the LIU No. for the system and click the Select Button.

The currently registered data will be displayed.

* Only numbers enabled in LIU Connection Settings can be selected.

2. Select enabled/disabled for the level display.

If enabled, the Get Level Button will be displayed on the following pages:

- Control dialog boxes for symbols on maps and individual circuits in Monitor & Control List.
- Dimmer level pane in Advanced Control (Individual Circuit)

3. Click the Submit Button.

* The settings will be applied to the page. Dimming levels for groups will be displayed from 0 to 7.

* To obtain and display dimming levels, dimmer T/Us must be installed at the addresses included in the groups. If the address included in the group happens to be a relay control T/U, the level will be displayed as 1 for ON and 0 for OFF.

Factory Settings

Level Display: Disabled (for all addresses)

(11) Status Bar Manager

Some of setting functions for control and setting menus will affect other functions and therefore other users connected at the same time should be notified.

The Status Bar Manager is used when the status bar, which is a common interface among browsers, is used to display a "Performing setup" message in the status bar.

Location name	Advanced Control & Settings > Status Bar Manager
Basic Monitoring & Control Advanced Control & Settings Address Settings Gelect Advanced Control Group Settings Pattern Settings Global Address Settings Schedule Settings Dinner Settings Dinner Settings Status Bar Manager System Administration	 Activate status: "Performing setup" Over a period of: 30 min ♥ Deactivate status: "Performing setup" Execute
	Connected

(i) Activating the "Performing setup" Display

1. Select "Activate status 'Performing setup'."

2. Select the maximum period of display.

Set the maximum period of display after which the display will be deactivated.

Over a period of: 30 min, 1 hour, 2 hours, or 3 hours.

3. Click the Execute Button.

The following message will be displayed in the status bar.

Performing setup.

- * Although the message will be displayed, it cannot restrict operations on other connected windows due to the characteristics of Web connections.
- * To prevent unexpected settings from taking place, configurations should be performed from one place.

(ii) Deactivating the "Performing setup" Display

1. Select "Deactivate status 'Performing setup'."

2. Click the Execute Button.

The setting will be applied in the status bar.

Operations on windows to monitor and control are described in this section.

I. Basic Operations for Connection (Login)	(P.114)
II. List Window Operations	(P.116)
III. Map Window Operations	(P.119)
IV. Advanced Control	(P.121)
V. Error Status Displays	(P.132)

change with this on the Web OK More Info

View Certificate

EMIT

92.168.0.1

<u>N</u>o

I. Basic Operations for Connection (Login)	
Follow the steps below to access the Web site through the browser (Inter	net Explorer).
1. Enter the address (URL) of the Server Unit.	Security Alert
As follows:	You are about t Any information viewed by anyo
https://***.****.***/	🗌 In the future
(*) denotes the IP address digits of the Server Unit. (e.g. if the IP addres	S İS
192.168.0.1, enter https://192.168.0.1/as the URL).	Information you exchange changed by others. How security certificate.
* "https" is used at the beginning of the URL.	The security centric pour want to function The centric function
2. Proceed to the Security Alert Window.	The security centre The name on the s match the name of
• Two Security Alert Windows will be displayed because the data	ata is
encrypted (SSL).	
Click the OK Button in the first window	
Click the Yes Button in the second window	
• The Start Window (Web page) will be displayed if connection is es	stablished.
3. Login (start operation).	R
Click the image in the Start Window to display the Login Window.	1.00A User name: Passwordt
Log in as a registered user. Enter a user name and password that have	ve been set
by the administrator in the Authentication page:	Warning - Security
• User name (U) : Enter user ID	Publisher authenticity verificate w
Password (P) : Enter password	The security certificate ha
The Main Frame will be displayed if connection is established.	contact, contacting supply as accept this conterer (nou husi')
4. Proceed to the Java Warning Window.	
 Two warning windows and a login window will be displayed before 	e the Password Needed - N
Main Frame is completely displayed. This is related to the use of	Java Scheme:
(Sun).	Password:
Click the Yes Button in the Warning – Security Window.	<u>Y</u> e
Enter the user name and password exactly the same as those	Warning - HT IP5
entered in the Login Window in step 3 in the in the corresponding	The hostname in the server security i server. Hostname of the URL: 192,168,0.1 Hostname from the certificate Union
fields of the Password Needed – Networking Window, and then c	lick Do you want to proceed?
the Yes Button.	Landon water Magn
* Do not enter a user name or password (authentication right)	Ban Manimud A Smanl. Even Banglin Bat Attornet Oranda Smanl. Imma Antonet Oranda Smanl.
different from those entered in the Login Window.	

Click the Yes Button in the Warning -- HTTPS Window.

• The Main Frame will be displayed normally if the connection has been established.

5. Logout (operation complete).

Logout by closing the browser window.

* To login with a different authentication right, close the browser window first. The authentication right at login is retained, even after returning to the Start Window, until the browser is closed.

Java Authentication Problems.

- * It may take a while before the Java Warning (Authentication) Dialog Box is displayed. If you ignore the Warning (Authentication) Dialog Box and minimize the browser before the dialog box is displayed, the Warning (Authentication) Dialog Box will remain hidden even after maximizing the browser again, preventing the user from operating the browser. In this situation, press the ALT-Tab keys simultaneously to display the Windows task switcher view. Select the Java icon in the tag switcher view by pressing the ALT-Tab keys. This will bring back the Java warning (authentication) dialog box. From there, proceed as described above.
- * If the user name or password that had been entered at login is not entered correctly three times in succession, or if the Cancel Button is clicked, the Authentication Required Window will be displayed. In this situation, the browser must be closed and then reopened.
- * Java applets and the browser run on the client computer, so if the computer does not have sufficient resources, they may not function properly.



II. List Window Operations

In this section, monitoring, control and setting operations in the List Window are described. The List Window provides access to frequently monitored and controlled lighting circuit addresses, which are displayed conveniently in a list as a table. The *List* window, accessed by clicking the List item in the side menu frame, allows monitoring, control and setting of addresses, as described in the following table:

Basic Monitoring Rights	Monitoring only	
Basic Monitoring and Control Rights	Monitoring and control	
Advanced Control & Settings Rights	Monitoring, control and settings	
Administration Rights	Monitoring, control and settings	

If logged in with a monitoring rights only, the window title is "Basic Monitoring > List."

Location name	Basic Moni	toring & Con	itrol > List								
Pasia Monitoring &						004.0		007.0			
Control	001-016	017-032	033-048	049-064	065-080	081-0	196	097-	12	113-128	
	129-144	145-160	161-1/6	1//-192	193-208	209-2	224	225-2	240	241-256	I
Select	No		Г	Name			Sta	itus	A	Action	
	001		Individua	l Circuit 00-	1		C	N	E	dit	
List	002		Individua	l Circuit 00-	2				E	dit	
Settings	003		Individua	I Circuit 00-	3		OI	FF (E	dit	
System Administration	004		Individua	l Circuit 00-	4		O	=F	E	dit	
	005		Gra	oup 001					E	dit	
	006		Gra	up 002			O	=F	E	dit	
	007		Gra	oup 003			O	FF	E	dit	
	008		Gra	oup 004					E	dit	
	009		Pat	tern 01			Mism	natch	E	dit	
	010		Pat	tern 02			Mism	natch	E	dit	
	011								Add	i New	
	012								Add	i New	
	012								Arie	Nhow	
					Connect	ed					

- * The *List* menu item will not be displayed unless the Monitor and Control List (for users with basic monitor and control right only) option of Project Display Settings is selected. The *List* menu is always displayed regardless of this setting if a user with Advanced Control & Settings rights or System Administration rights is logged in.
- * For details, refer to System Administration and Setting and Setting List.

(i) Monitoring

1. Click one of the buttons from 001-016 to 241-256.

The statuses of the selected addresses range are displayed in a table format

As shown in the figure below, ON is indicated in red, OFF in green, indeterminate (No T/U or unregistered) in gray. Other statuses are displayed as text.

(a) Example of Status



* The status display uses port 6001.

If this port is closed, the status display will not be changed until the display is refreshed. To enable refreshing, select *Enable Automatic Reload of Basic* Monitoring & Control Pages in the Page Reload Settings.

- * If the connection from the Web Server Unit to the NCU to the LIU to the Transmission Unit is cut, all address statuses will be displayed as "indeterminate".
- * Statuses of addresses disabled in the LIU Connection Settings will be displayed as "indeterminate".

(ii) Controls

1. Click the red/green button in the Status Field.

A dialog box, as the ones displayed below, will open.

* Symbols in indeterminate state cannot be selected. Symbols cannot be used if a user with monitor rights only is logged in.

🗿 Individual00-2	🔄 Dimmer01 🛛	🗟 Pattern01 🛛 🔯	🗟 Group001 🛛 🔀
Individual00-2 LUC1 Individual Circuit No.00 - 2 ON OFF Cancel Java Applet Window	Dimmer01 LIU:1 Dimmer No.01 Dimmer Level: 001 ON OFF Cancel Jeva Applet Window	Pattern01 LIU1 Pattern No.01 Execute Cancel Java Applet Window	Group001 LU:1 Group No.001 ON OFF Cancel Java Applet Window
a Zone 02	Zone 03		×
Zone 02		Zone 03	
Zone No:02		Zone No:03	
Pattern A Pattern B Cance	Java Applet Window	Pattern C Pattern D	Pattern E Pattern F Cancel
	🗟 Global Address 01 🛛 🕅	A Clobal Address 02	
	Global Address 01	Global Address 02	
	Global Address No:01	Global Address No.02	
	ON OFF Cancel	Execute Cancel Java Applet Window	

2. Click the button for the status to control.

The dialog box will close, and the status will change. The status display uses port 6001.

* If the port is closed, the status display will not be changed until the display is refreshed.

(iii) Display the Dimmer Level.

The dimmer level can be displayed manually for each address.

Only individual and group addresses whose level display has been enabled in the Dimmer Settings... can be displayed.

1. Click the red/green button in the Status Field.

A dialog box, as the ones displayed below, will open.



* The first operation after connecting to the Web Server Unit takes more time than usual.

* The dimmer address can be confirmed at this stage.

2. Click the Get Level Button.

The dialog box will close.

3. Wait for a while.

4. Click the status button.

A dialog box will open with the dimmer level being displayed.

Dimmer Level Value Table

Control Type	ON / Brightest	Least Bright	OFF
Individual Circuit	128	001	000
Dimmer	128	001	000
Group	7	1	0

* Displaying the dimmer level for individual addresses requires the dimmer T/U for the address. If the address is to a relay control T/U, the level is displayed as 000.

* Displaying the dimmer level for group addresses requires the dimmer T/U for the address. If the addresses included in the group are to relay control T/Us, the level will be displayed as 1 for ON and 0 for OFF.

* If the dialog box is closed by clicking the **Cancel** Button while the dimmer level is being retrieved, start again from step **3**.

5. Click the Cancel Button.

The dialog box will close.

* If any button is clicked after the level has been displayed, the value will be discarded.

* The value will be retained if the dialog box is closed by clicking the Close Button in the upper right corner.

III. Map Window Operations

Lighting circuit status can be monitored and controlled visually on a map screen.

For example, display and operation are possible on a window displaying a map depicting the physical layout of the facilities.

In this manual, a window specially drawn for a facility is called a map. Monitoring and control operations using maps are described here.



- * Maps must have been prepared with special software and transmitted to the Web Server Unit. For details, refer to Administration and Setting under II. Creation and Administration of Maps.
- * The selection menu for map numbers in the Administration and Setting Window will be displayed if the corresponding map number checkbox is selected in the *Project Display Settings* under *System Administration*....

Monitoring and Control Symbols

Status buttons (symbols) on the window provide functions equivalent to switches in order to control and monitor lighting circuits specific to FULL-2WAY Remote Control Systems. If these symbols are placed on the maps, they may be assigned addresses for FULL-2WAY Remote Controls from the Address Settings in the Web browser.

(i) Monitoring

1. Select the map name in the menu frame and click the Select Button.

The map will be displayed in the Main Frame.

* The status of corresponding addresses will indicated by the status symbols. In general, the ON state is displayed in red, OFF state in green, timer state in red with a clock, and indeterminate (no T/U or unregistered) state in gray, as shown in the figures below. As for zone addresses, there can be up to seven different status symbols.

* Hyperlinks to other maps can be defined in the map drawing software.



(b) Zone Status Symbols



- * The status display uses port 6001. If this port is closed, the status display will not be changed until the display is refreshed. To enable refreshing, select *Enable Automatic Reload of Basic* Monitoring & Control Pages in the Page Reload Settings.
- * If the connection from the Web Server Unit to the NCU to the LIU to the Transmission Unit is cut, all address statuses will be displayed as "indeterminate".
- * Statuses of addresses disabled in the LIU Connection Settings will be displayed as "indeterminate".

(ii) Controls

Please refer to previous section II. List Window Operations, (ii Controls) for further details on how to use control windows.

(iii) Dimmer level monitoring and control

The dimmer level at each address can manually controlled and monitored with the gauge display format, such as described in the following figure:

The dimmer level can be easily retrieved and displayed, as described in (II. List Window Operations, (ii Controls), step 3.)

- * This status display uses port 6001. If this port is closed, the display of status will not be changed until the window is refreshed.
- * The dimming level cannot be monitored for a global address even if the global address is defined individually or in a group.

		Lighting Number	Individual Circuit Level	Dimmer Level	Group Level
	Level 7	6	128 - 121	128	7
	Level 6	5	120 - 97	115	6
	Level 5	4	96 — 73	90	5
	Level 4	3	72 - 49	65	4
	Level 3	4	<mark>4</mark> 8 – 25	40	3
	Level 2	1	24 - 2	15	2
	Level 1 (OFF)	0	1 – 0 (OFF)	1 – 0 (OFF)	1 – 0 (OFF)
?	Indeterminate		-		

IV. Advanced Control...

When logged in with Settings or System Administration right, advanced control functions can be used to monitor and control the lighting patterns of all the addresses of circuits in a table. This function can be used if logged in with Advanced Control and Settings or System Administration rights.

Windows display each address type (function) as follows:

(1) Individuals Circuits & Dimmers:	Displays all 256 individual circuits and 16 dimmers addresses per LIU unit 64 individual circuits addresses x 4 windows (16 addresses per window) 16 dimmers addresses x 1 window
(2) Groups:	Displays all 127 group addresses per LIU unit 64 addresses x 2 windows
(3) Patterns:	Displays all 72 pattern addresses per LIU unit 36 addresses x 2 windows
(4) Zones:	Displays all 96 zone point addresses 96 addresses x 1 window
(5) Global Addresses:	Displays all 32 global point addresses 32 addresses x 1 window

(1) Advanced Control... Individual Circuits and Dimmers

(a) Individual Addresses (00-1 to 63-4)

ocation name	Advanced Co	ntrol & Settings > Advanced Contr	ol			
asic Monitoring & ontrol dvanced Control & ettings ddress Settings	00-1 to	15-4 16-1 to 31-4 32-1 to 4	7-4 48-1 to 63-	4 Dim	nmers 01 to 16	LIUNe 01 V Select
Map 1 💌	Address	Name	Dimmer Level	Status	Address	Name
Select	00-1	Individual Circuit 00-1	Retrieve	OFF	08-1	Individual Circuit 08-1
	00-2	Individual Circuit 00-2		OFF	08-2	Individual Circuit 08-2
dvanced Control	00-3	Individual Circuit 00-3		OFF	08-3	Individual Circuit 08-3
iroups	00-4	Individual Circuit 00-4		OFF	08-4	Individual Circuit 08-4
atterns ones	01-1	Individual Circuit 01-1		OFF	09-1	Individual Circuit 09-1
ilobal Addresses	01-2	Individual Circuit 01-2		OFF	09-2	Individual Circuit 09-2
oup Settings	01-3	Individual Circuit 01-3		OFF	09-3	Individual Circuit 09-3
ne Settings	01-4	Individual Circuit 01-4		OFF	09-4	Individual Circuit 09-4
abal Address Settings	02-1	Individual Circuit 02-1		OFF	10-1	Individual Circuit 10-1
me Settings	02-2	Individual Circuit 02-2		OFF	10-2	Individual Circuit 10-2
mmer Settings	02-3	Individual Circuit 02-3		OFF	10-3	Individual Circuit 10-3
itus par Manager	02-4	Individual Circuit 02-4		OFF	10-4	Individual Circuit 10-4
tem Administration	03-1	Individual Circuit 03-1		OFF	11-1	Individual Circuit 11-1
	03-2	Individual Circuit 03-2		OFF	11-2	Individual Circuit 11-2
	03-3	Individual Circuit 03-3		OFF	11-3	Individual Circuit 11-3
		Tedenidural Provide AD 1		-		**************************************
				_		

(i) Monitoring

- 1. Select the LIU number and click the Select Button.
- **2.** Click one of the individual circuits address range buttons (00-1 to 15-4 ... 48-1 to 63-4). The display of addresses is split into 4 windows of 64 addresses each.

The statuses of the selected addresses are displayed in the Status Fields.



As shown in the figure, ON is indicated in red, OFF in green, indeterminate (No T/U or unregistered) in gray, and details are given in text (e.g TIMER).

- * If the connection from the Web Server Unit to the NCU to the LIU to the Transmission Unit is cut, all address statuses will be displayed as "indeterminate".
- * Statuses of addresses disabled in the LIU Connection Settings will be displayed as "indeterminate".

(ii) Controls

1. Click the red/green button in the Status column.

A dialog box, as the one displayed below, will open.

- * Symbols in indeterminate state cannot be selected.
- * Symbols cannot be used if a user with monitor rights only is logged in.
- * Does not apply to On-timer and Off-delay timer controls.
- * Does not apply to dimmer level controls.

2. Click the button for the status to control.

The dialog box will close, and the status will change.

(iii) Viewing the dimmer level.

The dimmer level can be verified manually for each address. Only addresses whose level display has been enabled in the Dimmer Settings... can be verified.

1. Click the Get Level Button in the Dimmer Level Dialog Box.

A dialog box, as the one displayed below, will open



2. Click the Get Level Button.

The dialog box will close.

3. Wait for a while.

4. Click the Get Level Button in the Dimmer Level Dialog Box.

A dialog box will open with the dimmer level being displayed.

Dimmer Level Value Table

Control Type	ON / Brightest	Least Bright	OFF
Individual Circuit	128	001	000

* Displaying the dimmer level for individual addresses requires the dimmer T/U for the address.

If the address is to a relay control T/U, the level is displayed as 000.

* If the dialog box is closed by clicking the **Cancel** Button while the dimmer level is being retrieved, start again from step 3.

5. Click the Cancel Button.

The dialog box will close.

- * If any button is clicked after the level has been displayed, the value will be discarded.
- * The value will be retained if the dialog box is closed by clicking the Close Button in the upper right corner.

Dimmer Level	X
Individual Cir	cuit 00-1
Individual Circ	uit 00-1
Retrieving dimm	ner level
Get Level	Cancel
Java Applet Window	
Dimmer Level	X
Dimmer Level	cuit 00-1
Dimmer Level Individual Circ Individual Circ	cuit 00-1
Dimmer Level Individual Cir Individual Circ Dimmer Lev	cuit 00-1 :uit 00-1 ei: 001
Dimmer Level Individual Circ Individual Circ Dimmer Lev Get Level	Cancel

(b) Dimmer Addresses (01 to 16)

<u>rol</u> <u>anced Control &</u> nes	00-1 to 15-4	16-1 to 31-4 32-1 t	o 47-4 4	8-1 to 63-4	Dimmers 01 to 16 LIU Ne 01	Select
p 1 🗸	Dimmers				No.	
lect	Address	Name	Status	Address	Name	Status
	01	Dimmer 01	ON	09	Dimmer 09	OFF
anced Control	02	Dimmer 02	OFF	10	Dimmer 10	OFF
lividual Circuits	03	Dimmer 03	OFF	11	Dimmer 11	OFF
<u>oups</u> terns	04	Dimmer 04	OFF	12	Dimmer 12	OFF
nes	05	Dimmer 05	OFF	13	Dimmer 13	OFF
bal Addresses	06	Dimmer 06	ON	14	Dimmer 14	OFF
em Settings	07	Dimmer 07	OFF	15	Dimmer 15	OFF
Settings	80	Dimmer 08	OFF	16	Dimmer 16	OFF
tule Settings e Settings mer Settings s Bar Manager m Administration						

(i) Monitoring

1. Select the LIU number and click the Select Button.

2. Click the "Dimmers 01 to 16" button .

This opens the display of the 16 dimmer addresses The statuses of the selected addresses are displayed in the Status Fields.

ON	OFF	TIMER	
----	-----	-------	--

As shown in the figure, ON is indicated in red, OFF in green, indeterminate (No T/U or unregistered) in gray, and details are given in text (e.g TIMER).

- * If the connection from the Web Server Unit to the NCU to the LIU to the Transmission Unit is cut, all address statuses will be displayed as "indeterminate".
- * Statuses of addresses disabled in the LIU Connection Settings will be displayed as "indeterminate".

(ii) Controls

1. Click the red/green button in the Status column.

A dialog box, as the ones displayed below, will open.

- * Symbols in indeterminate state cannot be selected.
- * Does not apply to On-timer and Off-delay timer controls.
- * Does not apply to dimmer level controls.
- 2. Click the button for the status to control.

The dialog box will close, and the status will change.



(iii) Viewing the Dimmer Level

1. Click the red/green button in the Status column.

A dialog box will open with the dimmer level displayed if the status is ON.

* The level may not be obtained and displayed immediately after the circuit is turned ON.

Dimmer Level Value Table

Control Type	ON / Brightest	Least Bright	OFF
Dimmer	ner 128		000

(2) Advanced Control... Groups (Group Addresses 001 to 127)

cation name	Auvanceu Contro	a & Settings > Auvanceu C	ontroi			
ic Monitoring & trol vanced Control & ings		001 to 064	065 to 127 LIU N	01 💌	Select	
ap 1 💌	Groups	Nama	Dimar Laval	Cratua	Iddress	Name
elect	001	Group 001	Retrieve	ON	033	Group 033
	002	Group 002	Retrieve	OFF	034	Group 034
ivanced Control	003	Group 003		OFF	035	Group 035
roups	004	Group 004	Retrieve	ON	036	Group 036
<u>atterns</u> ones	005	Group 005	Retrieve	OFF	037	Group 037
lobal Addresses	006	Group 006	Retrieve	OFF	038	Group 038
oup Settings tem Settings	007	Group 007	Retrieve	OFF	039	Group 039
ne Settings	008	Group 008		OFF	040	Group 040
bal Address Settings	009	Group 009		OFF	041	Group 041
ne Settings	010	Group 010		OFF	042	Group 042
nmer Settings	011	Group 011		OFF	043	Group 043
tus par ivianagel	012	Group 012		OFF	044	Group 044
tem Administration	013	Group 013		OFF	045	Group 045
	014	Group 014		OFF	046	Group 046
	015	Group 015		OFF	047	Group 047
	<	C 01 C	1	A65	040	Cu

(i) Monitoring

1. Select the LIU number and click the Select Button.

2. Click the "001 to 064" or "065 to 127" button

The display of group addresses is split into 2 windows of 64 addresses each.

The statuses of the selected addresses are displayed in the Status Fields.

ON	OFF	TIMER	
----	-----	-------	--

As shown in the figure, ON is indicated in red, OFF in green, indeterminate (No T/U or unregistered) in gray, and details are given in text (e.g TIMER).

- * If the connection from the Web Server Unit to the NCU to the LIU to the Transmission Unit is cut, all address statuses will be displayed as "indeterminate".
- * Statuses of addresses disabled in the LIU Connection Settings will be displayed as "indeterminate".

(ii) Controls

1. Click the red/green button in the Status column.

A dialog box, as the one displayed below, will open.

- * Symbols in indeterminate state cannot be selected.
- * Does not apply to On-timer and Off-delay timer controls.
- * Does not apply to dimmer level controls.

2. Click the button for the status to control.

The dialog box will close, and the status will change.

(iii) Viewing the Dimmer Level

The dimmer level can be verified manually for each address.

Only addresses whose level display has been enabled in the Dimmer Settings... can be viewed.

1. Click the Get Level Button in the Dimmer Level Dialog Box.

A dialog box will open, such as the one below.



2. Click the Get Level Button.

The dialog box will close.

3. Wait for a while.

4. Click the Get Level Button in the Dimmer Level Dialog Box.

A dialog box will open with the dimmer level being displayed. Dimmer Level Value Table

Control Type	ON / Brightest	Least Bright	OFF
Group	7	1	0

* Displaying the dimmer level for group addresses requires the dimmer T/U for the address.

If the addresses included in the group are to relay control T/Us, the level will be displayed as 1 for ON and 0 for OFF.

* If the dialog box is closed by clicking the **Cancel** Button while the dimmer level is being retrieved, start again from step 3.

5. Click the Cancel Button.

The dialog box will close.

* If any button is clicked after the level has been displayed, the value will be discarded.

* The value will be retained if the dialog box is closed by clicking the Close Button in the upper right corner.

🖆 Dimmer Level 🛛 🔀			
Group 001			
Group 001			
Retrieving dimmer level			
Get Level Cancel			
Java Applet Window			
🖻 Dimmer Level 🛛 🛛			
Group 001			
Group 001			
Group 001 Dimmer Level: 1			

Java Applet Window

(3) Advanced Control... Patterns (Pattern Addresses 01 to 72)

ic Monitoring &						
trol		01 to 3	6 37 to 72 I	LIU No 01 🛩 🤇	Select	
anced Control &		015 				
ings ress Settings	Patterns					
ар 1 💌	Address	Name	Status	Address	Name	Statu
elect	01	Pattern 01	Match	19	Pattern 19	Mismat
10 11	02	Pattern 02	Match	20	Pattern 20	Mismat
dividual Circuits	03	Pattern 03	Match	21	Pattern 21	Mismat
roups	04	Pattern 04	Match	22	Pattern 22	Mismat
<u>itterns</u> mes	05	Pattern 05	Mismatch	23	Pattern 23	Misma
lobal Addresses	06	Pattern 06	Match	24	Pattern 24	Mismat
oup Settings tern Settings	07	Pattern 07	Match	25	Pattern 25	Mismal
e Settings	08	Pattern 08	Mismatch	26	Pattern 26	Misma
<u>bal Address Settings</u> adula Sattings	09	Pattern 09	Mismatch	27	Pattern 27	Mismat
ne Settings	10	Pattern 10	Mismatch	28	Pattern 28	Mismat
mer Settings	11	Pattern 11	Mismatch	29	Pattern 29	Mismat
as Dat Ivialiaget	12	Pattern 12	Mismatch	30	Pattern 30	Mismat
m Administration	13	Pattern 13	Mismatch	31	Pattern 31	Mismat
	14	Pattern 14	Mismatch	32	Pattern 32	Mismat
	15	Pattern 15	Mismatch	33	Pattern 33	Mismat
	16	Pattern 16	Mismatch	34	Pattern 34	Mismat

(i) Monitoring

1. Select the LIU number and click the Select Button.

2. Click "01 to 36" or "37 to 72" button.

The display of pattern addresses is split into 2 windows of 36 addresses each.

The statuses of the selected addresses are displayed in the Status Fields.

Match

As shown in the figure, a pattern MATCH is indicated in red, MISMATCH in green, and indeterminate (No T/U or unregistered) in gray.

* If the connection from the Web Server Unit to the NCU to the LIU to the Transmission Unit is cut, all address statuses will be displayed as "indeterminate".

* Statuses of addresses disabled in the LIU Connection Settings will be displayed as "indeterminate".

(ii) Controls

1. Click the red/green button in the Status column.

A dialog box, as the one displayed below, will open.

* Symbols in indeterminate state cannot be selected.

2. Click the Execute Button.

The dialog box will close, and the status will change.



(4) Advanced Control Zones	(Zone Addresses	(Points) (11 to 96
			JT 10 30)

cation name	Advanced Conti	ol & Settings > Adva	nced Control			
sic Monitoring & ntrol	Zones					
	Address	Name	Status	Address	Name	Status
ranced Control &	01	Zone 01	Pattern A	49	Zone 49	
ngs	02	Zone 02	Pattern C	50	Zone 50	
n 1 v	03	Zone 03	Pattern F	51	Zone 51	
	04	Zone 04		52	Zone 52	
lect	05	Zone 05		53	Zone 53	
ranced Control	06	Zone 06		54	Zone 54	
dividual Circuits	07	Zone 07		55	Zone 55	
oups tteme	08	Zone 08		56	Zone 56	
mes	09	Zone 09		57	Zone 57	
obal Addresses	10	Zone 10		58	Zone 58	
em Settings	11	Zone 11		59	Zone 59	
e Settings	12	Zone 12		60	Zone 60	
edule Settings	13	Zone 13		61	Zone 61	
e Settings	14	Zone 14		62	Zone 62	
mer Settings lividual Circuits	15	Zone 15		63	Zone 63	
oups	16	Zone 16		64	Zone 64	
<u>us Bar Manager</u>	17	Zone 17		65	Zone 65	
em Administration	18	Zone 18		66	Zone 66	
	19	Zone 19		67	Zone 67	
	20	Zone 20		68	Zone 68	
	21	Zone 21		69	Zone 69	
	22	Zone 22		70	Zone 70	
	23	Zone 23		71	Zone 71	
	24	Zone 24		72	Zone 72	
	25	Zone 25		73	Zone 73	
	26	Zone 26		74	Zone 74	
	27	Zone 27		75	Zone 75	

(i) Monitoring

All 96 zone addresses are displayed in one window.

The statuses of the selected addresses are displayed in the Status Fields.

atternA	PatternB	PatternC	PatternD	PatternE	PatternF	I
---------	----------	----------	----------	----------	----------	---

As shown in the figure, ON is indicated in red, OFF in green, indeterminate (No T/U or unregistered) in gray, and details are given in text (e.g TIMER). The possible statuses of zone modes are explained in the following table:

Mode 2	Pattern A, Pattern B and Pattern C
	(in this case, Pattern C is used to denote other conditions.)
Mode 3	Pattern A, Pattern B and Pattern C
Mode 4	Pattern A, Pattern B, Pattern C and Pattern D
Mode 6	Pattern A, Pattern B, Pattern C, Pattern D, Pattern E and Pattern F

* If the connection from the Web Server Unit to the NCU to the LIU to the Transmission Unit is cut, all address statuses will be displayed as "indeterminate".

* Statuses of addresses disabled in the LIU Connection Settings will be displayed as "indeterminate".

(ii) Controls

1. Click the red/green button in the Status column.

A dialog box, as the one displayed below, will open.

* Symbols in indeterminate state cannot be selected.

Zone control	Tone control
Zone 02	Zone 03
Zone 02	Zone 03
Pattern A Pattern B Cancel	Pattern A Pattern B Pattern C Pattern D Pattern E Pattern F Cance

2. Click the button for the status to control.

The dialog box will close, and the status will change.

- * In mode 2, Pattern 1 can be monitored but cannot be controlled.
- * For details on zone control, refer to Zone Control under Administration and Settings.

(5) Advanced Control... Global Addresses (Global Addresses (Points) 01 to 32)

tion name	Advanced Control & Setti	ings > Advanced Control		
Monitoring & al	Global Addresses			
and Control &	No	Name	Status	
s	01	Global Address 01	OFF	
Settings	02	Global Address 02	Mismatch	
~	03	Global Address 03		
ct	04	Global Address 04		
	05	Global Address 05		Č.
ced Control	06	Global Address 06		
<u>s</u>	07	Global Address 07		
<u>ns</u>	08	Global Address 08		
I Addresses	09	Global Address 09		Č.
ettings	10	Global Address 10		
<u>Settings</u> ittings	11	Global Address 11		
Address Settings	12	Global Address 12		
Settings	13	Global Address 13		Č.
Settings	14	Global Address 14		
lar Manager	15	Global Address 15		
Administration	16	Global Address 16		
	17	Global Address 17		ļ.
	18	Global Address 18		
	19	Global Address 19		
	20	Clobel Iddress 20		

(i) Monitoring

All 32 global addresses are displayed in one window.

The statuses of the selected addresses are displayed in the Status Fields

Individual / Dimmer / Group:					
ON	OFF	TIMER			

Patterns:

As shown in the figure, ON is indicated in red, OFF in green, indeterminate (No T/U or unregistered) in gray, and details are given in text (e.g. TIMER).

* If the connection from the Web Server Unit to the NCU to the LIU to the Transmission Unit is cut, all address statuses will be displayed as "indeterminate".

(ii) Controls

1. Click the red/green button in the Status column.

A dialog box, as the one displayed below, will open.

* Symbols in indeterminate state cannot be selected.

2. Click the button for the status to control.

The dialog box will close, and the status will change.

- * Displaying control buttons varies in response to the addresses for global settings.
- * The dimming level cannot be monitored for a global address even if the global address is defined individually or in a group.
- * For details on global control, refer to Global Control under Administration and Settings.



V. Error Status Displays

(1) Status Bar

Statuses 1 to 8 shown as follows are displayed in the Status Bar. If more than one state exists at the same time, the lower numbered state has higher priority for display.

1. Please wait for a moment... (Red)

Indicates the network connection to the Web Server Unit has been temporarily disconnected (e.g. broken wire, a device that has stopped, etc.).

When this error occurs, it is suggested to verify the following settings.

- Network status (channels, power supply for devices, device settings, etc.)
- Power to the Web Server Unit
- Connection status with the NCUs (channels, NCU power supply, communications settings such as the NCU DIP switches and the RS-232C Settings of the Web Server Unit)

* When this error occurs, nothing will be displayed after connecting (reconnecting) from the Web browser.

2. Date & Time out of order. (Red)

Indicates that the date and time could not be kept (e.g. after a power supply interruption longer than the clock's battery maximum time range).

Date & Time out of order.

When this error occurs, it is suggested to verify and reset the date and time settings in the Date & Time Settings.

- 3. System error occurred. (Red)
 - Indicates errors in the Web Server Unit or local system.
 - * This error includes situations when the local system is being set using the patterns/groups setting switches.
 - Details on the error can be checked in the System Errors Monitor.

System error occurred.

When this error occurs, it is suggested to verify the following items:

- FULL-2WAY signal error
- Pattern/Group configuration in process

4. Settings inconsistencies. (Red)

Indicates normal monitoring and control has been disabled because the LIU Settings or Zone Settings are inconsistent with those of the NCU. Consistency of the zone settings is checked on the following occasions:

Settings inconsistencies.

- When data is read from the NCU for Zone Settings
- When zone settings are uploaded in Upload Manager
- When the data is being uploaded, this message is displayed regardless of the data on the NCU side.
- When booting with the "zone settings verification" option enabled in the Zone Settings, make sure the settings on the Web Server Unit match those on NCU. This can be done in the LIU Connection Settings view or Zone Settings view.
- 5. Initializing (Red)

Indicates that the Web Server Unit is being initialized. It is recommended that you wait until the initialization process has been completed before performing any operation.

6. Data transfer in progress. Please wait ... " (Red)

Indicates communications with the NCU, such as group settings, pattern settings, zone settings, and LIU Settings are in progress. It is recommended that you wait until the initialization process has been completed before performing any operation. If connection become disabled, this message might be displayed for approximately 5 minutes.

Data transfer in progress. Please wait

7. Performing setup. (Red)

Indicates that the "Performing setup" status has been enabled. The display of this status message is not a result of any setting operations, but is enabled intentionally by a user with Advanced Control & Settings righs System Administration rights. It is presumable that the display of this message is done concurrently with some setting operation.

8. Connected (Green)

Indicates that normal operations can be performed. This status is not displayed until all errors and warnings have been cleared.

Performing setup.

Connected

- (2) System Error Monitor Displays
- 1. NCU connection error

NCU communication error include NCU power interruptions, a broken RS-232C cable, incorrect wiring and/or a communication setting error in the NCU (DIP switches).

2. Date & Time out of order.

The clock became in out of order status and has to be reset in the Date & Time settings.

3. Local bus error

Local bus error include broken connections between the NCU and LIU, incorrect communications settings between the NCU and LIU (mismatch), power interruptions of the LIU, and incorrect LIU number settings (local network address).

4. FULL-2WAY signal error

FULL-2WAY signal error include disconnected channels, short-circuited signals, Transmission Unit power interruptions, and amplifier power interruptions.

5. Pattern/Group configuration in process.

The local system are being set into the setting mode. Can also indicate errors in the FULL-2WAY remote terminal following a power interruption, failure, wiring problems or duplicated addresses setting.

- (3) Integrated LED Indications (Web Server Unit)
- 1. Power (Red)
 - ON : Power is being supplied.
 - OFF : Power is not being supplied.
- 2. Ethernet LINK (Green)
 - ON : Ethernet is connected normally.
 - OFF : Ethernet is not connected normally.
- 3. Ethernet ACT (Orange)
 - ON : Data is being transferred via Ethernet.
 - OFF : Data is not being transferred via Ethernet.
- 4. NCU Connection Error/Date & Time Out of Order Indicator (Red)
 - ON : NCU connection is abnormal. (No relations with the clock status)
 - Flashing : NCU connection is normal, but the date and time are out of order. "Date & Time Out of Order" status indicates that the date and time could not be kept (e.g. after a power supply interruption longer than the lock's battery maximum time range).
 - OFF : NCU connection is normal, and the date and time on the Web Server Unit are properly set.
- (4) Integrated LED Indications (NCU and LIU)
- 1. The following communications errors can be detected:

Network error : Communications error between the LIU and Transmission Unit.

Host computer post error : Communications error between the Web Server Unit and NCU.

FULL-2WAY error : Signal error between the LIU and Transmission Unit.

Specifications & Important Information

I. Hardware Specifications	(P.136)		
II. Software Specifications	(P.140)		
III. Warranty	(P.148)		
IV. Prohibited Matters for Safety Reasons	(P.149)		
V. Precautions and Disclaimers	(P.150)		

Specifications & Important Information

I. Hardware Specifications

Ratings

- : 24 VAC Rated voltage
- Rated frequency
- Rated current consumption

: 50 Hz/60 Hz

: 300 mA

* Use the WR2301-811, WR2311-821 series Transformer for the power supply.

Applicable Unit Numbers

- : WR3387-8 series Network Control Units
- Local Interface Units
- **Transmission Units**

- : WR3388-8 series
- : WRT2050-80, WRT2040-82, WRT2040-81, WRT2040-894 (For USA) series

Capabilities

- NCU (WR3387-8) connections
- LIU (WR3388-8) connections (controls)
- Individual Control Circuits

- : 1 Unit * One unit per Web Server Unit
- : 1 to 31 Units * One Unit per Transmission Unit
- - : 8,432 circuits max. (31 Transmission Units) [{256 (individual)+16 (dimmer)} circuits× 31 systems]

- Simultaneous accesses
 - * This is the maximum number of CGIs concurrently executed and not the maximum number of connected PCs. Accesses exceeding this limit will wait in a queue and displays will be delayed.

: 5 max.

- * Simultaneous operations from multiple browsers on one CGI may suffer from display problems and operational delays due to applet specifications and client PC performances.
- Time required for booting
- Network error detection time
- Network recovery detection time
- NCU connection error detection time
- NCU connection recovery detection time
- Local bus error detection time
- Local bus recovery detection time
- FULL-2WAY signal error detection time
- FULL-2WAY signal recovery detection time
- Pattern/group setting detection time
- Pattern/group recovery detection time
- Web window reload time

- : Approx. 2 to 7 minutes : 1 minute max.
- : 1 minute max.
- : 1 minute max.
- : 30 seconds max.
 - : 1 minute max.
 - : 3 seconds max.
 - : 3 seconds max.
- : 3 seconds max.
- : 3 seconds max.
- : 3 seconds max.
- : 5 seconds or more when using PORT443 and 6001 30 seconds or more when NOT using PORT6001
- * Depends on the connection status of user network environment.

Specifications & Important Information

Communications Interface

- (1) Ethernet Communications Interface
- Port number
- Connection
- Connection speed
- Communications standards (media access)
- Protocol
- Encryption
- Connector

(2) NCU (RS-232C) Communications Interface

- Port number
- Hardware standard
- Connection
- Transmission
- Baud rate
- Transmission code
- Synchronization
- Protocol
- Polling/selecting ratio
- Polling cycle
- Error correction
- Connector
- Pin connections

<u>Web Server Unit</u>

- : 1 (MDI type) (* MDI-X is not supported.)
- : 10Base-T (half/full-duplex)/100Base-TX (half/full-duplex). Auto-negotiation
- : 10/100 Mbps
- : IEEE 802.3/IEEE 802.3u (CSMA/CD)
- : TCP/IP, HTTPS (443), Proprietary (6001)
- : SSL 3.0 (RSA 128-bit)
- : RJ-45type 8-pin connector
- :1
- : CCITT V24 (JIS X 5101)
- : Direct connection
- : Half-duplex
- : 19,200 (or 9,600) bps
- : JIS 7 bit + 1 parity
- : Asynchronous with 1 start bit and 1 stop bit
- : Polling/selecting (JIS X 5002 equivalent)
- :2
- : 0.4 second
- : Vertical parity (even parity), horizontal parity (LRC algorithm), transmission time monitoring timer
- : D-Sub, 9-pin male connector (inch screws)
- : Shown below

<u>Network Control Unit (NCU)</u>



Wat Ca
Indicators

•	Power (ON)		: Red			(×1)
•	Ethernet LINK		: Greer	1		(×1)
•	Ethernet ACT.		: Orang	e		(×1)
•	NCU Connection Error/Date & Time	e Out of Order	: Red			(×1)
Tern	ninals and Connectors					
•	24-VAC power terminal		: M3.5 s	screw		(×2)
•	Grounding terminal		: M3.5 s	screw		(×1)
•	Ethernet connector		: RJ45	modular jack		(×1)
•	NCU connector		: D-sub	9-pin male (i	nch screw)	(×1)
•	Setting Unit connector (*for main	ntenance)	: D-sub	9-pin male (i	nch screw)	(×1)
Appl	icable Cables					
•	24-VAC power cable		: Solid (Strand Maxin : Solid	0.9-mm to 1.6 led 0.75 mm ² num extensic 1.6-mm dia	6-mm dia., 2 to 2.0 mm², n 50 m	
			Strand	led 2.0 mm^2		
•	Ethernet cable		: Modul Straigl conne Maxin	ar cable for L nt connection cting PCs dir num extensio	AN category 5((Use cross con ectly.), n 100 m	E)/6 twisted-pair, inection when
•	RS-232C cable		: D-sub male Maxir	, 9-pin female (metric screw num extensio	e (inch screw) to /) cross connect on 15 m) D-sub 25-pin tion,
•	Applicable crimp terminals		: As sho	own below.		
	¢ 7.6MAX	φ 7.6MAX	\$ 3.7MIN		units [mm]	
Strue	cture				•	
•	Outer dimensions (W×H×D): 10 (JI: Installation method : Mo (W for	0×124.8×60 r S approved d ounting Strap /R9910-8) • Panel use	mm im. (5))		•••• <u> 124.8</u>	

- Weight
- Material
- : Approx. 325 g : ABS plastic (chassis)





Quality Assurance

Tests were conducted at room temperature (0 to 35°C) and room humidity (45% to 85%).

- Operating voltage : 18 to 30 VAC
- Current consumption : 300 mA
- Temperature rise
- Insulation resistance : $100 \text{ M}\Omega$ between charged metal and non-charged metal

: 30°C max. at exterior

- Withstand voltage : 500 V for 1 minute between charged metal to non-charged metal
- Terminal strength : 1.2 N·m {12.2 kgf·cm} min.
- Power backup time : 24 hours
 - Clock precision: ±30 seconds per month (25°C ±1°C)* Values in { } use conventional units as opposed to international (SI)
 - units.

Operating Environment

- (1) Operating temperature range :-10°C to 50°C (inside panel)
- (2) Grounding

Connect a ground of 100Ω or less (class-D grounding based on Internal Wiring Regulations) to the grounding terminal on the chassis.

- (3) Operating Location
 - Use indoors.
 - Do not install in high-temperature or high-humidity environments.
 - Maintain a distance of 10 cm min. from wires carrying a 15 A or higher current.

II. Software Specifications

PC (Client) Requirements

•	Applicable OS	: Microsoft® Windows® XP Operating System required.
		(SP1 or SP1a recommended.)
•	Applicable Web browser	: Microsoft® Internet Explorer® version 5.5 or later required.
		(Version 6.0 recommended.)
•	Applicable Java applet	: Sun Microsystems® Java™ 2 Platform, Standard Edition,
		version 1.4.2 (J2SE) required.
•	LAN port	: Modular socket for Ethernet connection required.
•	Input devices	: Mouse and keyboard required.
•	Memory	: 128 MB min. recommended.
•	Graphic display	: 1024 × 768 dots (XGA) 256 colors min. recommended.

Monitoring and Control of Lighting Circuits

(1) Number of Control Points

•	Individual Circuits	: 7,936 circuits max. in total (256 circuits max. per Transmission Unit)
•	Dimmers	: 496 circuits max. in total (16 circuits max. per Transmission Unit)
•	Groups	: 3,937 circuits max. in total (127 circuits max. per Transmission Unit)
•	Patterns	: 2,232 circuits max. in total (72 circuits max. per Transmission Unit)
•	Zones	: 96 zones max. in total (36 max. (with mode 2), 24 max. (with mode 3),
		18 max. (with mode 4), and 12 max. (with mode 6) per Transmission

Global Addresses

(2) Monitored Status

• Individual Circuits : ON, OFF, Timed, No T/U, and Dimmer level

Unit)

: 32 max.

- Dimmers : ON, OFF, Timed, No T/U, and Dimmer level
- Groups : ON, OFF, Not set, and Dimmer level
- Patterns : ON (match), OFF(no match), and Not set
- Zones : Pattern A, Pattern B, Pattern C, Pattern D, Pattern E and Pattern F
- Global Addresses : ON and OFF
- * Timed denotes a status controlled by the timer function of a Transmission Unit, and not by the schedule (program timer) control function of the Web Server Unit.
- * Dimmer levels for individual circuits, dimmers, and groups can be monitored only if they are defined with points.
- * Dimmer levels are 128 gradations for individual circuits and dimmers, and 7 gradations for groups.

- * If the status of a zone does not match the status defined in each mode (other status), it is assumed to be pattern C.
- * When zones are used in mode 2, other zone statuses are monitored with pattern C.
- * Refer to the product specifications of NCU (WR3387-8) for details on zones.
- * Only individual circuits, dimmers, groups, and patterns (but not zones) can be set as points to be monitored with global addresses.
- * Statuses of global addresses are logical AND or logical OR of the points. For these logical operations, timed status is treated as ON (match), and No T/U (Not set) is treated as OFF (no match).
- * Dimmer levels of global addresses cannot be monitored.

(3) Control Status

- Individual Circuits
 : ON and OFF
- Dimmers : ON and OFF
- Groups : ON and OFF
- Patterns : ON (execution)
- Zones
 : Pattern A, Pattern B, Pattern C, Pattern D, Pattern E
 and Pattern F
- Global Addresses
 : ON and OFF
- * The dimmer levels for individual circuits, dimmers, and groups cannot be increased or decreased from a browser.
- * Timers for individual circuits, dimmers, and groups cannot be controlled from a browser.
- * Pattern addresses are subject to only ON controls. (The same is true for global control of patterns.)
- * Only individual circuits, dimmers, patterns and groups (but not zones) can be points of global controls.
- * The control method of global controls conforms to the control method of the point.

(4) Schedule (Program Timer) Controls

Points (addresses) subject to controls : Individual circuits, dimmers, groups, patterns, zones

and global addresses

• Number of control programs : 930 max. (930 max. per Transmission Unit)

(5) Monitoring and Control by Symbols

• Number of Symbols for Monitoring and Control

 Normal circuits 	: 256 max. per map (total of individual circuits, dimmers,
	groups, patterns, and global addresses)
– Zones	: 40 max. per map

- Number of Symbols Names:
 - Normal circuits
 : 256 max. per map (total of individual circuits, dimmers,
 - groups, patterns, and global addresses) — Zones : 40 max. per map
- Number of Symbols for Dimmer Level
 - Normal circuits
 : 256 max. per map (total of individual circuits, dimmers and groups)

- * Normal circuit symbols apply to individual circuits, dimmers, groups, patterns, and global addresses.
- * Circuit name symbols conform to the settings for associated normal circuit symbols or zone symbols. These associations must have been set with the Screen Builder for Web Server Unit and cannot be changed on the Web page.
- * Dimmer level symbols conform to associated normal circuit symbols. These associations must have been set on the map drawing software and cannot be changed on the Web page.
- * Dimmer level symbols apply to individual circuits, dimmers, and groups.
- * Levels cannot be monitored for dimmer level symbols if the symbols are associated with patterns and global addresses.
- * Addresses are not directly assigned to dimmer levels and circuit symbols (normal symbols and zones).
- (6) Monitoring and Control by ListsNumber of Symbols for Monitoring and Control : 256 points max. (= 16 points × 16 windows)

Configuration of Lighting Circuits

(1) Address Assignment to Symbols

- Applicable symbols
- Addresses for control
- : Circuits symbol (for normal symbols or zones)
- : Individual circuits, dimmers, groups, patterns, global addresses, and zones of connected LIUs
- * LIU connection configuration must have been completed before assigning addresses.
- * One address can be assigned to multiple symbols.
- * Global addresses and zones can be configured regardless of status of LIU connection configuration.
- * Assignments of addresses to symbols will be retained even if the LIU is disconnected in the LIU connection settings.
- * Addresses cannot be assigned to actual circuits (T/U) in a browser page.
- * Layout of symbols for lighting circuit controls must be performed using the separately available the Screen Builder for Web Server Unit (WR3339-801).
- * If the symbol number of the circuit symbol is assigned to a circuit name symbol and dimmer level symbol and they share the same circuit, the circuit addresses will be interlocked.

(2) Group Settings

- Applicable circuit address
 : Number of connected LIU + Dimmers
 ((256 circuits + 16 circuits) max. per Transmission Unit)
 - : Out of area, ON, and timer
- Value for the circuit timer

Value to set for the circuit

- : On-timer for 30 s, 1 min, 5 min, 60 min, or
- 120 min, Off-delay 30 s/1 min/5 min
- * LIU connection configuration must have been completed before group settings are made.
- * NCUs, LIUs, and Transmission Units must be connected for configuration.
- * Up to eight timers total can be used per group for On-timers and Off-delays combined.

(3) Pattern Settings

- Applicable circuit address
- Value of status for the circuit
- Value for the circuit timer
- Dimmer level of the circuits
- Fading (dimmer) time

((256 circuits + 16 circuits) max. per Transmission Unit)

: Number of connected LIU + Dimmers

- : Out of area, OFF, ON, and timer
- : On-timer for 30 s, 1 min, 5 min, 60 min, or 120 min. Off-delay 30 s/1 min/5 min
- : 1 (Dark) to 128 (Bright)
- : Immediate (No fading), 2 s, 6 s, and 1 min

* LIU connection configuration must have been completed before setting patterns.

- * NCUs, LIUs, and Transmission Units must be connected for configuration.
- * Up to eight timers total can be used per pattern for On-timers and Off-delays combined.

(4) Zone Settings

•

- Number of registrations
 - : 96 max. Applicable points : Patterns of connected LIUs (72 max. per Transmission Unit)
- Modes : 2, 3, 4, and 6
- * LIU connection configuration must have been completed before setting zones.
- * NCUs and LIUs must be connected for configuration.
- * Modes can be arbitrarily selected for each zone number.
- * Zone settings will be retained even if the LIU is disconnected in LIU connection settings.

(5) Global Address Settings

- Number of registrations : 32 max. • Applicable points : Individual circuits, dimmers, groups, and patterns of
 - connected LIUs
 - Operations on statuses : Logical AND and logical OR

* LIU numbers can be configured regardless of LIU connection setting status.

* Controls do not apply to zones.

(6) Schedule Settings

- Number of programs : 930 max. (No limit per Transmission Unit) : 16 characters max. (iso-8859-1 (CP932)) Program names
- Applicable points : Individual circuits, dimmers, groups, patterns, global addresses, and zones of connected LIUs
- Operations

Individual circuits, dimmers, groups, and global addresses (patterns excluded): sunset (ON)-sunrise (OFF), sunset (ON)-OFF, ON-sunrise (OFF), ON-OFF, OFF-ON, ON-ON, OFF-OFF, and ON/OFF

Patterns, zones, and global addresses (patterns only)

: ON, sunset, sunrise, and repetition

Smallest increment to set clock : 1 minute

• Input method of districts for Astronomical Clock: Latitude, Longitude and time zone

•	Sunrise/sunset time adjustment range	: ±90 minutes (by increment of 1 minute)
•	Repetition interval adjustment range	: 1 minute to 1 hour and 30 minutes
		(increments of 1 minute)
•	Units of programs that can be enabled	: 1 program or all programs
•	Number of special day settings	: 30 max.
•	Special day name	: 16 characters max. (iso-8859-1 (CP932))
•	Special day setting format	: Yth Z day of the week, Month X Day Y Every year,
		and Month X Day Y Year Z
•	Special day input method	: Using calendar
•	Range of special days to be set	: January 1, 2000 to December 31, 2037
		and13 months from current month
•	Enabled special day display unit	: 1 month
•	Setting/clearing next day in special day range	: 30 max.
•	Daylight saving time adjustment	: +1 hour (when enabled)

- * LIU connection configuration must have been completed before setting schedules.
- * Programs will be retained even if the LIU is disconnected in the LIU connection settings.

* Programs and special days cannot be set if the date and time are out of order.

(7) Monitor & Control List Settings

- Number of selected points
- Applicable points

- : 256 max. (type and order are arbitrary)
- : Individual circuits, dimmers, groups, patterns,
- zones,and global addresses of connected LIUs
- * LIU connection configuration must have been completed before monitoring and controls are set.
- * NCUs, LIUs, and Transmission Units must be connected for configuration.

* Contents of the list will be retained even if the LIU is disconnected in the LIU connection settings.

(8) Dimmer Level Display Settings

 Applicable points 	: Individual circuits, dimmers, and groups of
	connected LIUs
Monitoring method	: Manually obtained by selecting points
(9) Name Settings	

- Applicable points
- Name settings

global addresses, and zones : 16 characters max. (iso-8859-1 (CP932))

: Individual circuits, dimmers, groups, patterns,

System

(1) Clock (Day & time) Settings

- Timekeeping range : 00:00:00 January 1, 2000 to 23:59:59 December 31,
 - 2037 (*)
- Range for settings : 00:00:00 January 1, 2000 to 23:59:59 December 31, 2037 •
- Smallest unit that can be set: : 1 second
- * The clock will revert to January 1, 2000 after December 31, 2037.
- * Booting when status is "Date & time out of order" will reset the date and time to 00:00:00 January 1, 1980.
- * The indicator on the chassis will keep on flashing and message on the page remains until the date & time will be set within the above range.

: 5 max. (at least 1)

: 5 max. (at least 1)

(default)

Advanced Control & Settings, and System Administration

- (2) Rights and User Setting
 - Types of rights (level) : Basic Monitoring, Basic Monitoring & Control,

: Only 1

- Number of registered user **Basic Monitoring Right** Basic Monitoring & Control Right Advanced Control & Settings Right : Only 1 System Administration Right
- User name and password : 4 to 8 characters
- (3) Network Connection Settings
 - Host name : 32 alphanumerics max.
- IP address : User defined (for user defined) or 192.168.0.1 (default) Subnet mask : User defined (for user defined) or 255.255.0.0
- Default gateway : User defined (for user defined) or None (default)
- MAC (physical) address : 00:C0:8F:XX.XX.XX
- * The Web Server Unit does not have PPPoE connection capability.
- (4) NCU Connection (RS-232C) Settings

* Settings on the NCU must be set with DIP switches on the main body.

- Bits per second : 19200 [bps] (*recommended)
 - Data bits : 7 [bits] (*recommended)
- Parity : Even (*recommended)
- Polling ratio : 2 (*recommended)
- Polling cycle : 0.4 [second] (*recommended)

(5) N	ame Settings	
٠	Project name	: 32 characters max. (iso-8859-1 (CP932))
•	Maps	: 32 characters max. (iso-8859-1 (CP932))
(6) F	Page Displays	
٠	Page Reload Cycle	
	Maps and Lists	: 30 s, 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 10, 15, 20, 25, and 30 minutes
	Lighting, System Errors, Status Bar	: 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, and 10 s
(7) N	lessage Display Control	
•	Performing setup Message display duration	: 30 min, 1 hour, 2 hours, and 3 hours
(8) N	Ionitoring and Warning of System Status	
•	System errors monitored	: NCU connection error, Date & time out of control, local bus error, FULL-2WAY signal error, and Pattern/group configuration in progress
(9) C	Control History (LOG)	
•	Number of Control history records	: Most recent 1,000 records per day for most recent seven days
٠	Control History Subjects	: Web Window control, schedule control, status
		change of local controls, and control errors
•	Applicable Points for Status Changes History	: Selected points from groups, patterns, and zones for the connected LIU
* T f	he original information on status change will not or status change notification is set to "No" (0) on	be transmitted to the higher layer if the DIP switch pin the NCU and LIU.
•	Number of System Error History Records	: Most recent 1,000 records per day for most recent seven days
•	System Error History	: NCU connection error, date & time out of order, local bus error, FULL-2WAY signal error, pattern/group being set
•	Recorded files	: 1 file per day (*00:00 through 23:59 is counted as a day.)
(10)	Managed Data Files	
•	Data File Format	: CSV
•	Type of Data Files	: Monitor & Control list settings, group settings, pattern settings,zone settings, global settings, schedule control programs, special day settings, address settings (symbol), circuit name settings (individual circuit, dimmer, groups, patterns, zones, global addresses), control log, and system errors
•	File Transfers	: Downloads and uploads (*)

• Control log and system error log can be saved only on the PC (downloaded).

Maps

(1) Map Data Management

- Number of managed mapsMap data area capacity
- : 99 pages
- : Approx 8 MB (*area of memory in the Web Server Unit)
- Map drawing software

Map data deletion

Data transfers

- : WR3339-801 FULL-2WAY Screen Builder for Web Server
- Unit
- : From the Screen Builder to Web Server Unit only
- Maps display enable/disable
- : Per page (from Web page) : One page/all pages (from Web page)
- * As the size of each map increases, the number of maps that can be stored (transmitted) decreases.
- * If maps have been created exceeding the maximum number, they cannot be transmitted to the Web Server Unit.
- * Data transmitted to the Web Server Unit is not in an editable format. To enable subsequent editing, original files for drawing software must be saved.

(2) Map Data

•	File format	: Proprietary
•	Number of symbols	
	 Normal circuit symbols 	: 256 max. per map (total for individual circuits, dimmers, groups, patterns, and global addresses)
•	 Zone symbols Number of symbols names 	: 40 max. per map
	 Normal circuit symbols 	: 256 max. per map (total for individual circuits, dimmers, groups, patterns, and global addresses)
	 Zone symbols 	: 40 max.

* Normal circuits include individual circuits, dimmers, groups, patterns, and global addresses

* Circuit name symbols conform to the settings for normal circuit symbols or zone symbols associated beforehand.

* This association can be set only using the Screen Builder and cannot be changed in the Web browser.

- * Dimmer level symbols conform to the settings for normal circuit symbols associated beforehand.
- * This association can be set only using the Screen Builder and cannot be changed in the Web browser.
- * Dimmer level symbols are for individual circuits, dimmers, and groups only.
- * Addresses are not directly assigned to dimmer level and circuit name (normal and zone) symbols.

III. Warranty

Warranty Period

The product has a warranty for the period of one year from the data of purchase (delivery date).

Scope of Warranty

If the product fails to function properly under applications described in the user's manual and labels attached to the product within the warranty period, it will be repaired free of charge.

Disclaimer on the Warranty

In principle, repairs for the following failures will be charged for even if they occur within the warranty period.

- (1) Failure or damage resulting from misuse or improper repair and modification
- (2) Failure or damage resulting from relocation, transportation, or dropping after the purchase
- (3) Failure or damage resulting from fire, earthquake, lightning, or other acts of God, or environmental pollution, salt erosion, or gas erosion (such as hydrosulfuric gas)
- (4) Failure or damage resulting from voltage and frequency of the power supply different from those specified.
- (5) Failure or damage resulting from installation on a vehicle or ship
- (6) Failure or damage resulting from improper installation
- (7) Failure or damage resulting from negligence in the routine maintenance check required by regulations and user's manual
- (8) Failure or damage resulting from application exceeding the conditions and environments specified in product specifications, catalogs, and other documents
- (9) Failure or damage resulting from special applications in combination with other manufacturers' products not specified by us
- (10) Failure or damage resulting from application outside of Japan

IV. Prohibited Matters for Safety Reasons

We will not be responsible for problems resulting from applications not satisfying the following conditions.

Prohibited Applications

Observe the following prohibition when using the product.

The product and related products have been developed mainly for lighting control applications. Therefore, do not use the product for security applications, such as crime prevention, protection from disasters, or other applications involving protection of human lives.

Requirements for applications other than general lighting control that require safety:

- · Implementation of redundancy in the system so that a single failure will not make it unsafe.
- Installation of protective devices, protective circuits, or other means to ensure the safety of the system.
- * Switchboards or other systems incorporating the product must be clearly labeled indicating the above instructions to secure safety.

Installation Requirements

- (1) Screws for terminals must be tightened firmly to a torque of 0.5 to 1.0 N·m. Otherwise, malfunction, failure, excessive heat, or ignition may occur.
- (2) Do not install outdoors or anywhere subject to splashes of water. Doing so may result in malfunction, failure, excessive heat, or ignition.
- (3) Use applicable power sources only. Do not mix different cables, such as combination of solid and strand wires, on the same terminal or combine wires of different radii.

Incorrect use may cause overheating or bad connections.

(4) Use only the rated voltage.

Excessive voltage may cause overheating and ignition.

V. Precautions and Disclaimers

Precautions and Disclaimers before Purchase

(1) Refer to specifications for the following products in addition to this manual for information on system configuration and communications.

WR3387-8 FULL-2WAY Remote Control Network Control Unit (NCU)

WR3388-8 FULL-2WAY Remote Control Local Interface Unit (LIU)

- (2) Connection of the Web Server Unit to the customer's facility may require configuration of the customer's network device environment. Detailed discussions may be necessary to configure the network environment. Consult Matsushita Electric Works, Ltd. for details.
- (3) Specifications and exterior appearances may be changed without notice due to product improvement.
- (4) Windows and symbols of the software shown in this document may be different from those actually displayed.
- (5) PCs, network devices, and other peripheral devices are expected to be provided by the customer.

Precautions and Disclaimers for Installation

- (1) Please use the following power supply.
 - WR2301-811, WR2311-821 series Transformer (Panel Use)
 - * These items are NOT applicable to U.S.A market. Required UL approval, but NOT approval.
- (2) The power supply for devices must be a non-interruptive power supply (switching time less than 10 ms). It should output a sine curve. Waveforms other than sine waves may damage the remote control transformer specified above.
- (3) Outdoor wiring must be enclosed in a metal conduit to shield it from lightning.
- (4) Do not perform an insulation test on the wiring. Do not perform an insulation test on the signal lines.
- (5) Only devices designed specially for the FULL-2WAY Remote Control System can be used for the FULL-2WAY multiplex signal lines.
- (6) The Web Server Unit is not compatible with auto MDI/MDI-X functions. Therefore, a straight cable must be used. Direct connection between PCs, however, requires a cross cable.
- (7) Configurator ports are reserved for manufacturer maintenance, and customers cannot use them.

Precautions and Disclaimers for Usage

- (1) Initialization after turning ON the power supply requires about 2 to 7 minutes (for the maximum number of connections).
- (2) Determinations and monitoring are disabled for up to 3 minutes after restarting Transmission Units, recovering from signal errors, and completing pattern/group settings from a local configuration. Errors during this period are not recorded.
- (3) Short circuits on the secondary side of the amplifier cannot be detected, and failures in control or monitoring under this condition, although very unlikely, will not be recorded in the error log.
- (4) When control operations are continuously performed in excess of the maximum circuit control speed, the controls will keep on being performed after operations have been completed.
- (5) Several tens of seconds are required to reflect the results of all local point control in the display windows.
- (6) Duplicated addresses for devices and excessive connections to circuits cannot be detected.
- (7) If some error occurs during circuit control, the aborted control will not resume, nor will the whole control be repeated automatically, even after error recovery.

- (8) Warnings during patterns/groups configuration are displayed only while setting on the local system with patterns/groups setting switches. Of all FULL-2WAY system Patterns/Groups settings, those that can control circuits during configuration are not subject to warnings during configuration because they do not interfere with controls.
- (9) Settings from a browser are disabled while setting local patterns/groups.
- (10) Controls from a browser may be ignored during local dimmer level up/down control.
- (11) High volume controls on the local side may delay the execution of new requests, such as monitoring and control, settings for Transmission Units, and system errors.
- (12) Continuous controls on the local side (such as wall switches) during system booting may be reported as FULL-2WAY signal errors because they congest LIU's checking of FULL-2WAY signals. Suspending continuous operation will reset the error condition and disable the errors even when continuous operation is resumed.
- (13) If controls are run locally or from a browser while transmitting patterns/groups settings and download/upload settings, processing will result in longer that usual execution times for both.
- (14) Download/upload transmissions for patterns/groups settings will cause error displays after a forced termination of the Web Server Unit (2 minutes), but the LIUs that continue processing may complete the process before the LIUs are forced to terminate.
- (15) If controlled addresses do not actually exist or are not recognized (registration errors and address setting errors in the controlled T/U or disconnection) in patterns/groups controls, system errors (FULL-2WAY signal errors) may be reported. Check that individual circuit devices subject to controls function normally beforehand.
- (16) Local bus errors or FULL-2WAY signal errors may not be reported during patterns/groups settings made asdescribed in 1 to 4 below, until forced termination is completed (2 minutes).
 - 1. The Edit... or Add new... Button is clicked in the Patterns/Groups Settings Page
 - 2. Submitting Patterns/Groups Settings
 - 3. Downloading of Patterns/Groups CSV Files
 - 4. Uploading of Patterns/Groups CSV Files
- (17) Settings and registration during the power down period during the reboot operation in the browser will not be completed and will not be effective after rebooting.
- (18) LIU settings and zone settings may be deleted if the Web Server Unit is turned OFF while setting zones. Repeat the LIU and zone settings after booting.
- (19) The renew button in the browser (and its equivalent functions in the menu) will return to the initial window after login because the whole page will be reloaded.
- (20) Do not use forward/backward buttons of the browser (likewise, do not use **Display-Move-Go forward/Go backward** in the menus) to avoid inconsistency between frame displays.
- (21) It a screen saver is running on the PC, system errors will not release it. If monitoring regularly, disable the screen saver.
- (22) If PC performance is low, dragging borders in Java applet generated pages may distort displayed figures.
- (23) Opening more than 5 instances of the Web browser at a time may slow down processing or cause transmission errors.
- (24) Powering down or rebooting the Web Server Unit during configuration may disable operations on the

Web browser. If that happens, reopen the menu from the menu frame or close the browser first and reopen it.

- (25) Due to the nature of Web pages, it is possible to log in from multiple PCs with one user name and password at the same time, so passwords must be managed with care (especially for advanced control& settings and system administration rights).
- (26) When logging out, the Web browser should be closed for security reasons. In particular, the browser should not be left logged in with the system administration right.
- (27) To log in with a different access right, the Web browser must be closed first.

Precautions and Disclaimers for Internet Connections

- (1) We have incorporated network security technology (controls to prevent unauthorized access and encryption in SSL) to connections between the Web Server Unit and customers' facilities, but should customers incur any damages resulting from information theft from unexpected wrongdoing or password misuse from theft on the Internet connections, we will not be held responsible whatsoever except for cases where we are at fault.
- (2) When connecting the Web Server Unit to the customer's facility, we will not be responsible for necessary procedures and installation, configuration, and maintenance of equipment and their associated costs to maintain the security of the network. The customer is responsible for them. If the security measures mentioned above are not sufficient and result in damages, we will not be held responsible unless we are at fault. Communications fees will be borne by the customer.
- (3) SSL is incorporated through encryption, but SSL server authentication (issuance of certificate) is not provided.
- (4) When connecting to the Internet, secure a continuous connection network environment that offers open ports to be used and enables the Web Server Unit to set to a global IP address provided by the ISP.
- (5) When connecting to the Internet, the user is responsible for contracting with a provider for a user name and password. Depending on the provider, a DNS server address may be necessary.
- (6) The connection speed of ADSL or better is recommended.
- (7) The user is responsible for contracting with an ADSL carrier and an Internet service provider (ISP) who provides a fixed IP address service.
- (8) The Web Server Unit is not equipped with PPPoE connection functionality. If you subscribe to a service that requires the user authentication by PPPoE, a router with PPPoE functionality (or an ADSL modem with routing functionality) will be needed in addition to an ADSL modem.

I. Appendix	(P.154)
II. Troubleshooting	(P.163)

I. Appendix

Data File Formats

The formats of the CSV data files handled on the Download Manager and Upload Manager pages are shown below along with examples.

• Monitor & Control List (File Name: list.csv)

List	
No., LIU NO., Type, Address	
1,1,I,00_1	
2,1,gb,1	
	1 to 256: Basic Monitoring and Control (001 to 256)
256,0,0,0	
No.	: 1 to 256 (in ascending order)
LIU number	: 1 to 31 (*1 for global address)
Туре	: I (individual circuits), D (dimmers), G (groups), P (patterns), Z (zones), or gb (global addresses)
Address	: 00_1 to 63_4 (individual circuits), 1 to 16 (dimmers), 1 to 127 (groups), 1 to 72 (patterns), 1 to 96 (zones), or 1 to 32 (global addresses)

* LIU numbers, types and addresses for unused list numbers are all zeros.

 Address (File Name:	address.csv)
-------------------------------	------------	--------------

Map address,,,				
Screen No, Icon No., LIU No., TYPE	Screen No, Icon No., LIU No., TYPE, ADDR No.			
1,1,1,P,40				
	1 to 256: Standard circuit symbol number (001 to 256)			
1,256,1,G,16				
1,257,0,Z,2				
	257 to 296: Zone symbol number (01 to 40)			
1,296,0,0,0				
2,1,0,gb,1	2,1,0,gb,1			
	Screen number (Selection range for 01 to 99 only)			
Screen No	: 1 to 99 (in ascending order)			
Joon No	: 1 to 256 (in ascending order)			
	: 1 to 230 (in ascending order)			
IYPE	: I (individual circuits), D (dimmers), G (groups), P (patterns),			
	Z (zones), or gb (global addresses)			
ADDR No.	: 00_1 to 63_4 (individual circuits), 1 to 16 (dimmers), 1 to 127 (groups),			
	1 to 72 (Patterns), 1 to 96 (zones), or 1 to 32 (global addresses)			
* III numbers tune	e and addresses for upused symbol numbers are all zeros			

* LIU numbers, types and addresses for unused symbol numbers are all zeros.

• Groups (File name: groupXX.csv * XX denotes the two-digit system LIU number 01 - 31.)

Groups LIU01 Group address, Type, Address, Timer 001,I,6_3,0 001,I.6_4,0	IU No.
ana 441 -17	Group address (Selection range for 001 to 127 only)
LIUXX	: LIU01 to LIU31
Group address	: 001 to 127 (in ascending order)
Туре	: I (individual circuits) or D (dimmers)
Address	: 00_1 to 63_4 (individual circuits) or 1 to 16 (dimmers)
Timer	: 0 (no timer), 1 (On-timer for 30 s), 2 (On-timer for 1 min), 3 (On-timer for 5 min), 4 (On-timer for 60 min), 5 (On-timer for 120 min), -1(Off-delay by 30 s), -2 (Off-delay by 1 min), or -3 (Off-delay by 5 min)

* Described for group downloads and uploads only

• Patterns (File Name: patternXX.csv * XX denotes the two-digit system LIU number 01 - 31.)

Pattem	
LIU01 LIUNo.	
Pattern address, Type, Address, Status, Tir	ner, Dimmer Level, Fade
001,I,1_3,0,0,0,0	
001,I,1_4,0,0,0,0	
	Pattern address (Selection range for 001 to 072 only)
LIUXX	: LIU01 to LIU31
Pattern address	: 001 to 072 (in ascending order)
Туре	: I (individual circuits) or D (dimmers)
Address	: 00_1 to 63_4 (individual circuits) or 1 to 16 (dimmers)
Status	: 1 (ON) or 0 (OFF)
Timer	: 0 (no timer), 1 (On-timer for 30 s), 2 (On-timer for 1 min), 3 (On-timer
	for 5 min), 4 (On-timer for 60 min), 5 (On-timer for 120 min),
	-1(Off-delay by 30 s), -2 (Off-delay by 1 min), -3 (Off-delay by 5 min)
Dimmer level	: 1 to 128 (ON state) or 0 (OFF state)
Fade	: 0 (Instant), 1 (3 s), 2 (6 s), 3 (1 min)
* If different fade values	are specified in patterns when uploading, the value in the last line will be

used.

* This applies to pattern addresses subject to downloads and uploads.

• Zones (File Name: zone.csv)

Zone	
Boost setting confirmation, 1	Boost setting confirmation
Zone address, LIU No., Pattern A, Pattern B, Patte	em C, Pattem D, Pattem E, Pattem F
1,1,1,2,0,0,0,0	
2,0,0,0,0,0,0,0	
	1 to 96: Zone address (01 to 96)
96,0,0,0,0,0,0,0	

Setting confirmed at boot	: 1 (Executed) or 0 (Not executed)
Zone addresses	: 1 to 96 (in ascending order)
LIU number	: 1 to 31 (* 1 for global address)
ON to Pattern 4	: 1 to 72 (Pattern number)
* Ultra male an Dattains A. Dattain	

* LIU number, Pattern A, Pattern B, Pattern C, Pattern D, Pattern E and Pattern F are zeros for unused zone addresses.

• Global Addresses (File Name: global.csv)

Global
Global address, Type,
Address,AND/OR,L01,L02,L03,L04,L05,L06,L07,L08,L09,L10,L11,L12,L13,L14,L15,L16,L17,L18,L19,L20,L21,L22,L23,L24,L25,L26,L27,L28,L29,L30,L31
1,P,01,0,1,0,0,0,0,0,0,0,0,0,0,0,0,0,0,0
2, G, 001, 0, 1, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0,
1 to 32: Global address (01 to 32)
32, , 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0,

Global address	: 1 to 32 (in ascending order)
Туре	: I (individual circuits), D (dimmers), G (groups), or P (patterns)
Address	: 00_1 to 63_4 (individual circuits), 1 to 16 (dimmers), 1 to 127
	(groups), or 1 to 72 (patterns)
AND or OR	: 0 (AND) or 1 (OR)
L01 to L31	: 0 (subject) or 1(not subject)
* Type, address, AND/OR, and L01 through L31 are zeros for unused global addresses.	

• Schedule (File Name: schedule.csv) * Scheduler

-		
Schedule Schedule No., Name, LIU No., Type, Address, Control Value, Operation, Start Time, Start Time Adjustment, End Time, End Time Adjustment, Su, Mo, Tu, We, Th, Fr, Sa, "Special day 01, Special day 02, Special day 03, Special day 04, Special day 05, Special day 06, Special day 07, Special day 08, Special day 09, Special day 10, Special day 11, Special day 12, Special day 13, Special day 14, Special day 15, Special day 16, Special day 17, Special day 18, Special day 19, Special day 20, Special day 21, Special day 22, Special day 23, Special day 24, Special day 25, Special day 26, Special day 27, Special day 28, Special day 29. Special day 30. Enabled/Disabled		
2, Program 002, 1, P, 1, , Sunrise (Execute), 0:00, 75, 0:00, , 0, 1, 1, 1, 1, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0,		
1 to 930: Sch	edule Programs (numbers) (001 to 930)	
930,		
Schedule number	: 1 to 930 (in ascending order)	
Name	: 16 characters max.	
LIU number	: 1 to 31 (* 1 for global address)	
Туре	: I (individual circuits), D (dimmers), G (groups), P (patterns),	
	Z (zones), or gb (global addresses)	
Address	: 00_1 to 63_4 (individual circuits), 1 to 16 (dimmers), 1 to 127	
	(groups), 1 to 72 (patterns), 1 to 96 (Zones), or 1 to 32 (global	
	addresses)	
Control value	: ON, Pattern 1, Pattern 2, Pattern 3, Pattern 4, or OFF(Zones) * numbers are single-byte.	
* Input values when uploading addresses other than zones will be ignored.		
Operation	: Sunset-Sunrise, Sunset-OFF, ON-Sunrise, ON-OFF,	
	OFF-ON, ON-ON, OFF-OFF, ON, OFF, ON (Execute),	
	Sunset (Execute), Sunrise (Execute), Repeat (Execute)	
Start time	: 0:00 to 23:59	
Start adjustment time	: -90 to 90	
End time	: 0:00 to 23:59	
End adjustment time	: -90 to 90	
Sun to Sat	: 0 (Canceled date) or 1 (Execution date)	
Special day 01 to Special day 30	: 0 (Canceled date) or 1 (Execution date)	
Enable/Disable	: U (Disable)/1 (Enable)	

* Schedule numbers (program numbers) without descriptions when uploading will be deleted (unregistered).

* Start time and end time for sunset/sunrise will be ignored when uploading.

* Names, LIU numbers, ..., and Enable/Disable are blank for unused schedule numbers.

• Special Days (Annual Month X Yth Z Day of Week) (File Name: Special_Week.csv)

Special Day, Days of the Week

Special Day No., Name, Week, Sun, Mo, Tue, We, Th, Fr, Sa.

1,Special Day 01 National holiday, 1,2,0,1,0,0,0,0

1,Special Day 01 National holiday, 7,3,0,1,0,0,0,0,0

Special day number	: 1 to 30 (in ascending order)
Name	: 16 characters max.
Month	: 1 to 12
Week	: 1 to 5
Sun to Sat	: 0 (not special day) or 1 (special day)

* Descriptions are provided only for special days.

• Special Days (Annual Month X Day Y) (File Name: Special_day_every.csv)

Special Day, Days of the Month

Special Day No., Name, Month, Week

1, Special Day 01 National holiday,1	,1
--------------------------------------	----

1, Special Day 01 National holiday, 2, 11

Special day number	: 1 to 30 (in ascending order)
Name	: 16 characters max.
Month	: 1 to 12
Day	: 1 to 31

* Descriptions are provided only for special days.

• Special Days (Year X Month Y Day Z) (File Name: Special_day_once.csv)

Special Day, Dates Special Day No., Name, Year, Month, Day 1, Special Day O1 National holiday, 2005, 3, 21 1, Special Day O1 National holiday, 2005, 9, 23

Special day number	: 1 to 30 (in ascending order)
Name	: 16 characters max.
Year	: 2000 to 2037
Month	: 1 to 12
Day	: 1 to 31

* Error occurs if date in not within 13 months of upload date.

* Descriptions are provided only for special days.

• Individual Circuit Names(File Name: i_nameXX.csv,XXdenotes the two-digit system LIU number 01 - 31.)

Individual Circuit Name	
LIU01 LIU No.	
00_1, Individual Circuit 00-1	Address, Name
00_2, Individual Circuit 00-2	
	Individual Circuit Address (00-1 to 63-4)
63_4, Individual Circuit 63-4	
01,Dimmer 01	
	Dimmer Address (01 to 16)
16,Dimmer16	
LIUXX	: LIU01 to LIU31
Address	: 00_1 to 63_4 (individual circuits) or 1 to 16 (dimmers) (in ascending
	order)
Name	: 32 characters max.
* The initial values for na	mes are individual circuit00-1 to individual circuit63-4 and dimmer01 to
dimmer16.	
• Group Names (File Name: g_	_nameXX.csv, XX denotes the two-digit system LIU number 01 - 31.)
Group Name	
LIU01 LIU No.	
001,Group 001	Address, Name
002,Group 002	
	Group Address (001 to 127)
127,Group 127	
LIUXX	: LIU01 to LIU31
Address	: 001 to 127 (in ascending order)
Name	: 32 characters max.
* The initial values for na	mes are group001 to group127.
 Pattern Names (File Name: p 	_nameXX.csv, XX denotes the two-digit system LIU number 01 - 31.)

Pattern Name	
LIU01 LIU No	
01, Pattern 01	Address, Name
02, Pattem ン02	
	Pattern Address (01 to 72)
72, Pattem 72	
LIUXX	: LIU01 to LIU31
Address	: 01 to 72 (in ascending order)
Name	: 32 characters max.

* The initial values for names are pattern01 to pattern72.

Zone Name	
01,Zone 01	Address, Name
02,Zone 02	
	Zone Address (01 to 96)
96,Zone 96	
Address	: 01 to 96 (in ascending order)
Name	: 32 characters max.
* The initial values	for names are zone01 to zone96.
* The initial values Global Address Names	for names are zone01 to zone96. s) (File Name: gb_name.csv)
* The initial values Global Address Names Global Address	s for names are zone01 to zone96. s) (File Name: gb_name.csv)
* The initial values Global Address Names Global Address 01, Global 01	s for names are zone01 to zone96. s) (File Name: gb_name.csv)
* The initial values Global Address Global Address 01, Global 01 02, Global 02	for names are zone01 to zone96. s) (File Name: gb_name.csv)
* The initial values Global Address Global Address 01, Global 01 02, Global 02	for names are zone01 to zone96. (File Name: gb_name.csv) Address, Name Global Address (01 to 32)
* The initial values Global Address Global Address 01, Global 01 02, Global 02 32, Global 32	for names are zone01 to zone96. (File Name: gb_name.csv) Address, Name Global Address (01 to 32)
* The initial values Global Address Names Official Address Official Address Official Address Official Address Official Address	i for names are zone01 to zone96. is) (File Name: gb_name.csv) Address, Name Global Address (01 to 32) : 01 to 32 (in ascending order)

• Control Log (File Name: XXXXXXco.csv, XXXXXX denotes two digits for the year, two digits for the month, and two digits for the day.)

040506co File Name								
NO., Tme, LIU No., Type, Address, Name, Control results, Control type,								
1000,21:14,01,I,01_1,Individual Circuit 01-1,ON,WE B								
999,21:08,01,1,00_4, Individual Circuit 00-4	,ON,Schedule							
998,20:31,-,Z,4,Zone 04,OFF,Local								
	Control Log (1000 to 1, descending order)							
002.16:25.01.G1.Group 001.ON.Local								
No.	: 1000 to 1 (in descending order)							
Time	: 0:00 to 23:59							
LIU number	: 1 to 31							
Туре	: I (individual circuits), D (dimmers), G (groups), P (patterns), Z (zones), or gb (global addresses)							
Address	: 00_1 to 63_4 (individual circuits), 1 to 16 (dimmers), 1 to 127 (groups), 1 to 72 (patterns), 1 to 96 (zones), or 1 to 32 (global addresses)							
Name	: 32 characters max.							
Control result	: ON, OFF, Match, Mismatch, ON, Pattern 1, Pattern 2, Pattern 3, Pattern 4, OFF, Invalid, Abnormal OFF, Abnormal ON							
Control type	: Web, Schedule, or Local							

• System Error Log (File name: XXXXXAI.csv, * XXXXX denotes two digits for the year, two digits for the month, and two digits for the day.)

040506al File Name	
No., Time, Device, Date & Time Status, NCU Pattem/Group Setting Mode	Connection Status, Local Bus Status, FULL-2WAY Signal Status,
0829,14:38,Web Server Unit,,Normal,,,,	
0828,14:33,Web Server Unit,,Error, Indetermi	nate,Indeterminate,Indeterminate
0827,14:07,LIU01,,,Normal,Nromal,Nromal,	
	System Errors Log (1000 to 1., descending order)
0002,00:01,LIU01,,,Error	
0001,00:00,Web Server Unit,,,	
No.	: 1000 to 1 (in descending order)
Time	: 0:00 to 23:59
Generating device	: Web Server Unit, NCU, or LIU01 to LIU31
Date & Time out of order	: Normal, abnormal, or boot complete
NCU connection	: Normal or abnormal
Local bus	: Normal or indeterminate
FULL-2WAY signal	: Normal, abnormal, or indeterminate
Patterns/groups settings	: Normal, abnormal, or indeterminate

Dimmer Level Specifications

The 7-level shades and 128-level shades of dimmer levels correspond as follows:

Brightness	Dimmer Level	128 Levels	to	7 Levels	7 Levels	to	128 Levels
high	6	128~121	Î	7	7	₽	128
	5	120~ 97	⇒	6	6	⇒	115
	4	96~ 73	⇒	5	5	⇒	90
	3	72~ 49	⇒	4	4	₽	6 5
	2	48~ 25	⇒	3	3	⇒	40
	1	24~ 2	⇒	2	2	⇒	15
low	0	1	₽	1	1	₿	1

Dimmer level expressions differ by address as follows:

		Lighting Number	Individual Circuit Level	Dimmer Level	Group Level
	Level 7	6	128 - 121	128	7
	Level 6	5	120 - 97	115	6
	Level 5	4	96 - 73	90	5
	Level 4	3	72 - 49	65	4
	Level 3	4	48 - 25	<mark>4</mark> 0	3
	Level 2	1	24 - 2	15	2
	Level 1 (OFF)	0	1 – 0 (OFF)	1 – 0 (OFF)	1 – 0 (OFF)
?	Indeterminate		<u>111</u>		()

II. Troubleshooting

- Q. IP address among others have been changed from the initial values from network settings but connections fails.
- A. Is pin 1 on the DIP switch on the body of the Web Server Unit set to "User"? It is possible to register user-defined values and reboot on the window even if the DIP switch is set to "default," but DIP switch setting will take precedence after rebooting, so default network values will be enabled. Be careful especially after installation.
- Q. PCs that connected successfully in the LAN environment failed to connect one-to-one.
- A. Is the proxy server setting for the browser correct?
 If IP addresses and subnet masks are set properly, but if a nonexistent proxy server is specified, connection will fail in the proxy server environment.
 If connecting to a PC directly, be sure that "Use proxy server in LAN" is not selected.
- Q. Ethernet LINK indicator does not light.
- A. The following causes are likely:

Network parameters are not properly set. (Do not match those on PC.)

LAN cable is not properly plugged into a device.

LAN cable is broken.

Counterpart device (or devices on the way) or LAN switch failed.

- Q. Ethernet ACT indicator does not flash.
- A. The following causes are likely: The PC is not sending data due to incorrect settings or other cause. The LAN adapter failed, and frames are not transmitted. LAN switch failed.
- Q. I have forgotten the user name and password for the administrator I changed.
- A. <u>Should a user forget the user name and password for the administrator, he/she cannot recover it by him/herself</u>, once it has been changed. Please contact Matsushita Electric Works, Ltd. in that situation. For security, initialization with a hardware switch is not supported, so please maintain this information carefully.

WR3330-801 FULL-2WAY Web Server Unit (Panel Use) (English) User's manual

Date of Issue November 1, 2006 (1st edition) Issued by Matsushita Electric Works, Ltd. 1048, Kadoma, Osaka 571-8686, Japan Telephone : +81-6-6908-1860 © 2006 Matsushita Electric Works, Ltd. All rights reserved. Printed in Japan.

This document may not be copied or duplicated, either in part or whole, without the prior written permission of Matsushita Electric, except for personal use.

We cannot answer to questions relating to the operation of PCs or software unrelated to the product or this document.

This document has been created with careful attention to details, but if you have any questions or find any errors or omissions, please contact us in writing.

Panasonic

Matsushita Electric Works, Ltd. 1048, Kadoma, Osaka 571-8686, Japan Telephone : +81-6-6908-1860

© 2006 Matsushita Electric Works, Ltd. All rights reserved. Printed in Japan.

791 C58 0000 1